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Corporate Profile
NGIE

China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company”) is a subsidiary of COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ”) and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 506). The primary business of the Company includes
beverage, wine and kitchen food. The Company is committed to providing consumers
with nutritious, healthy, delicious and quality food. Currently, the Company’s product
portfolio includes a number of well-known brands, such as “Greatwall” wine, “ &k
F9” consumer-pack edible oil and “&H £” Shaoxing rice wine. As a strategic partner
of The Coca-Cola Company in China, the Company also bottles and distributes Coca-
Cola beverages.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
FEEEXBBA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

The following table shows the comparison of the final results for the FRRRMENBAR(AHEIAER]DEE
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “year”) of China Foods and its 2016 12 A 31 BIEFE ([ AFE ) KR

subsidiaries (together the “Group”) as compared with 2015: FEM 2015 FHEEMLLUT -
For the year ended  For the year ended Changes
31 December 2016 31 December 2015 (note i)
HBZ2016%F BZE2015F -
12A31HLLEE 12A31BILEE (i)
(HK$' million) (HK$' million)
(BEBBT) (B8AT)
(restated)
(E751)
Continuing operations (note i): BESSER ()
o Revenue o A 27,985.9 27,8422 +0.5%
o Operating profit* o TR 424.8 593.4 -28.4%
¢ EBITDA" o EBITDA" 1,043.4 1,2919 -19.2%
Profit attributable to the owners [SYNSE PN Loyl
of the parent 499.7 54.6 +815.2%
In which: A :
profits from continuing operations FEEERB R 177.8 1532 +16.1%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

*

Operating profit from continuing operations represents:

RS EEBMEETRE

For the year ended
31 December 2016

For the year ended
31 December 2015

HZE2016%F HE2015%F
12831 ALLFE 12A31ALLEFE
(HK$’ million) (restated)
(B&%mT) (&751))
Segment results DEBHELE (FHER ST
(continuing operations)
* Beverage o SR 640.5 695.2
* Wine o EmiA 111.1 94.1
* Kitchen Food e HERM 85.7 117.1
* Others o Eftp 4.2 11.7
Aggregate #amn 841.5 918.1
Less: e
Corporate and other unallocated RNRREAMRD BT
expenses (note iv) (Pf=Eiv) (416.7) (324.7)
Operating profit from continuing FRBICE TSRS FE
operations 424.8 593.4
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EBITDA from continuing operations represents:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B R TSR EBITDASE ¢

For the year ended
31 December 2016

MBRE

For the year ended
31 December 2015

HZ2016F HZE20157F
12A31ALEE 12A31BILEE
(HK$’ million) (restated)
(B&%mT) (&7)
Profit before tax from FHRS BB AR T
continuing operations 648.0 675.2
Add: o
Finance costs BB 35.8 64.8
Depreciation e 464.6 500.3
Amortisation of other Hipmp g =
intangible assets 4.2 9.8
Recognition of prepaid BRBEN LS
land premiums 13.3 114
Impairments, net of reversal BB - FRRBER R
of impairment 34.7 65.5
Provision against inventories GERE 34.6 36.8
Less: e
Share of profits of associates FEAEH & A RE T (73.0) (71.9)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries in  FEETEEEAF MR L ENE QKRG
relation to Junding Assets (note iii)  (Ffd&Eiii) (118.8) -
EBITDA from continuing operations 134845 & 2758 EBITDA 1,043.4 1,291.9

(Note i): Revenue, EBITDA" and operating profit* exclude relevant figures of the
confectionery business segment, a business segment categorized as a
discontinued operation pursuant to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 5.

(Note ii): The results in RMB for the year of the Group were translated at the
average exchange rate of 2016 of HK$1: RMB 0.86615, while the 2015
comparative results in RMB were translated at the average exchange
rate of HK$1: RMB 0.81333. The results reported in HKD terms, when
compared to the 2015 comparative results, include 6.5% translation
effect in relation to the depreciation of RMB.

(1) : YA - EBITDA" RIEEFIE * TR EHE
B EREEREOR B ARIEEEE
B2 KB R RERD B EEEIE -

(GFi) © AEEAFEARBELEU016FET
MR 1B TH 086615 ARETITE -
2015 F AR EBEUFHER1IBITH
0813BARBIIE - ARBREY
L2 OS2 AL 201568
6.5% HrEFE o
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

If the impact of RMB depreciation was excluded by comparing the results in RMB

for the year and the 2015 comparative results:

Continuing operations:

Revenue grew by 7.0%, mainly due to the increase in revenue of the
kitchen food business segment and wine business segment, which was
partially offset by a decline in beverage business segment revenue,
caused by changes in industry-wide consumer trends, and changes in

sales mix of its business.

Operating profit* dropped by 23.8% mainly due to the general increase
in spending on marketing and advertising in response to increased
competition, recorded as directly attributable expenses in segments
results of each of the business segments, and other unallocated
expenses in relation to unallocated consultancy, advertising and
promotional charges for cross-product events, and for raising the
Company'’s corporate profile and reputation.

EBITDA" dropped by 14.0% mainly due to a decline in Operating profit*,
but was partially offset by decreases in provision against inventories,

impairments, depreciation and amortization.

(Note iii): One-off gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$118.8

million, in relation to the disposal of equity and debt interests in loss-
making winery subsidiaries including COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd.
(“Junding Vineyard”) and Shandong COFCO Junding Wines & Spirits
Co., Ltd. (“Junding Wines & Spirits”) (together “Junding Assets”), which
were completed in fourth quarter of 2016.

(Note iv): Corporate and other unallocated expenses mainly comprise of:

China Foods Limited

(@)  the Company’s expenses in relation to the maintenance of its
ongoing listing status, its Party Committee office and its chief
executive and management offices such as staff costs, rental and
office expenses;

(b)  the overhead expenses relating to the finance, information
technology, human resources, marketing, legal and product
quality assurance departments of the Group such as staff costs
and office expenses;

(c)  the general operating and maintenance expenses of the Group’s
sales platforms such as staff costs, maintenance and office
expenses; and

(d)  unallocated advertising and promotional charges in relation to

cross-product events and for raising the Company’s corporate
profile and reputation.

Annual Report 2016
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2016
FEEMm2016 EXER

April MR

During the period from April to July, the 2016 tour of cuisine culture cum the first photo contest carrying
the theme of Fortune rapeseed oil “Follow the fragrance of rapeseed flowers, discover home fragrance” was
successfully held in China’s major cities, including Chongging, Hubei, Jiangxi and Qinghai. The event attracted
the attention and participation of over 240,000 internet users, and collected over 2,000 pieces of outstanding
rapeseed flower photography. The event was also reported by more than 10 television media including CCTV
as well as such portals like Sina and Netease. Major
local print media, including Chongging Commercial
newspaper and the Yangtze River Commercial Daily
also covered the event.

RARET7 AHME - RBERPIS R [IRELEE -
BIRREKRI2016 FR XL 2 IREE —EES
EIEF Ry - FEFELERE I I FE
i BEABHERETN2EEF - WK
2,000 BEFHXEBIER  WPREBRAE
THRRERER R HHEMIPEM - &F
B RIAREFEMS FHEEEERE -

. May EHA

ﬁ' During the period from May to August, the Fortune sunflower oil contest carrying the theme
“I love singing nursery rhymes e Growing up happily” was successfully held in more than 20
cities, including Beijing, Shanghai and Suzhou, helping children who reside in mountain areas to
pursue their dreams in music. An agreement was signed with “Changba” APP to jointly promote
the development of Chinese nursery rhymes in the country. Nursery rhyme “Little Little Fortune
Flower” ({/|\/]NS2A&TE), written by Le duoduo, a renowned children’s literature writer, was officially
released. The event attracted the participation of over a million families, setting a new national
record for family nursery rhymes and drawing favorable responses from the community.
M5 RAESAHM - PRI H [REBEE - FRAKRING] LLBEKINEW - BT
BREPER ~ 28 HFINEZTZEET - BAHLEZTFERSLS1E - WHEBIBAPPEL -
EFEDTRERNER  ERXREXNBERES ZAENERC N NERE)EREM < )55
BElTHEBEBRESNE  RIF T 2ERTFRE-—RBEEELE - s THRUNTERE -
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r MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2016

FREER2016 F RS

Juy tA

The First National Distributors
Conference of COFCO Wines & Wines
International with the theme of “Riding
the tide to win-win e Jointly creating
the future” was successfully held at
COFCO LDC. The event highlighted
the concept of “the power of a major
brand and the value of having a large
platform”. During the conference,
the development history of COFCO
wine import business and its current
operation status as well as the
company’s development strategies and
specific plans going forward were introduced. Over 300 representatives from key distributors across the country
participated in the event, resulting in the successful partnership of some 20 different brands.

[FREHH « RRIRK] EP*—%ﬁing’%/@%% EEBELHERASHELREFRKIEN - BB [ KEEN
HE  KFemEE] ZENMETPRENVEXRFERERRELEN  FAML THRAHEEHRE
AR T — S ARRE - KEiIE%OOﬁ%{ﬁE%ﬁ%ﬁ%]PEﬁREE% B MR A EA 2085 ©

August NA

Greatwall Five-star Wine, Greatwall Chateau Sungod Wine and Fortune Golden Original Maize Oil made
their appearance at the Rio Olympic “China House” of the 2016 Rio Olympic Games, cheering for the
Olympic athletes and showcasing the culture of oriental wines and cuisine to the world. Meanwhile, the

Fortune Olympic gold recipes were officially released.

2 I6BENRESHME RUAEES
i 4 RREBEREEE  BEFAE
SEBTKRHSHEHREHEY
R ARERBIRE - AHRE
RERBRFHEARREERU
[IEERPIBRE S & 35 |TE B HMEA o
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2016 r

FEER2016 EAERD

ik September f1A

A news conference to announce strategies for the “Greatwall ® G20-2016 Greatwall Five-Star
Wine” was held in Hangzhou. Such strategies include: putting a strong focus on the Greatwall
Five-star Wine, strengthening the concept of “state banquet wines and offering a wider choice
of wines for consumers”. The important event was witnessed by industry experts and opinion
leaders, CCTV and other media elites, international wine masters and representatives of different
distributors.
[ R4k e G20 — 2016 & K
hEGEBSKEmE | 7
ﬁ iﬁﬁ B TUNERTT §§1?ﬁ E‘uﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ
g - BERRAEREH
- ;’[';“f,”."i e B TEEAE  E5HE
X 3 3 1.9 9 N EMRE] - TEERAE
LR XX 4 ReEH - RBSHEER -
" ‘ IR B R~ ASSER R

L

ARRETE-EZRKZ -

September 1A
. As a major sponsor of the G20

Hangzhou Summit, the company has
provided Greatwall wines for 15 state
banquets in six cities, witnessing the
high-profile G20 meetings throughout
the period. Winning the applause of
local and overseas VIPs for the summit,
Greatwall wine has become a fine wine
label in China. Furthermore, as the
edible oil sponsor of the G20 Hangzhou
Summit, COFCO Fortune was awarded a medal by the G20 Summit Hangzhou Preparatory Office in recognition of
the superior quality of the products. The 20 signature dishes of the Hangzhou cuisine were brought to the attention
of the consumers at the G20 Hangzhou summit cultural theme exhibition, including the seventeenth (Hangzhou)
food festival.

1ER G20 MM & % REBR Eﬁ%%x@%&ﬂzw%li BRESRMG0EH  KATEN B
K1 BSERINESE -HEE - AR - 1ERG20 FBERNR - PREHEFIREI G20 MM TERHT
T’FAE&MJ\ZH#)J#”*?*HE‘E%%;/ EEEGZOMJHW%AXHZ?E%E CHBT RN XRAFESHRFEEER
ERRT G0MMIESME R 20 BIES L -

20168

PEERAERAE 201645




r MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2016

FREER2016 F RS

I October + A
Fortune corn seeds were sent into

the space through the Shenzhou
XI spacecraft of China. A “Fortune
Corn Escort Team”, comprising 10
Fortune consumers, were invited to
the Jiuguan Satellite Launch Center
to witness this historic moment.
COFCO Fortune was officially
promoted as a strategic partner of the
China Space Foundation to support
the development of China’s space
program, which will offer quality
products of the “space-exploration” to
the general consumers.
BERFEREFEHPBEMKR AT 5] AETHA EXZE - B 102 E@RITVEEEEKR [P EKE
MBI REBARGEBGHPOLORBREFE —BLKEZ - PEREBEPFIEAARRPEMRES SHBESIEE
- BHPBIMAREERR  TEMAREHERFERGERNERS -

+ November +—A

With a streamlined structure and hierarchy, a rice wine
business unit was officially formed, resulting in a significant
improvement in the sales of the wine. “The first COFCO
Shaoxing Rice Wine Kong Yiji Winter Brewing Festival” was held
in Shaoxing to demonstrate the unique brewing techniques and
superior quality of the COFCO Shaoxing rice wine to more than
160 clients from different places across the country, effectively
enhancing the impact of the “Kong Yiji” brand.

EREEI KT - BEEE  ABEREL  HEXRS
BENE - [PRAEBEEEIL AR | EAEET [
1608AMI R B 2 BF N EFPRIR T T RAE BN ERFITE
HEFRE  BRRAT L2l NRBTES -
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2016
FEER2016 EAERD

December +=A

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL")
together with two other Coca-Cola bottling groups in
China and Coca-Cola Company jointly announced
the completion of a definitive agreement to
refranchise Coca-Cola-owned bottling operations
in China and entered into relevant agreements.
Following the reorganisation, Coca-Cola’s bottling
business in China will be operated by two franchise
partners, CCBL and Swire. Bottling plants controlled
by CCBL will be increased from 12 to 18. The new partnership reflects the confidence of both COFCO and Coca-
Cola Company in the extension of their cooperation. The economies of scale effect, regional integration and cost
optimisation brought about by the reorganisation is expected to bring greater development opportunities for the
business of both CCBL and China Foods.

A O AR R AR ([ O A4 ) RE AR O SEER BRI O EARMAS
fio - AR ORI R ER M E BT RN EAEN SR BN IENEL - FAE%E - A ORI EEF R E
MERIE DRI BAPIER O ATEMA S MR E S EREES - IR AT O AT LA AR 60 R S 1L [R 2R
I2REMEISRK - B FREZFTREBEA AR EHEHSIEEAEL  AEREE—FEKX - NXEE
TERAGRIENE - BIEHEE RKABCEAPREAIOULLFERMEFTREANEREMLS -

In2016 =—Z—XfF

Greatwall wines were served during important events such as the First Lancang-Mekong Cooperation Leaders’

Meeting, Boao Forum for Asia, APEC Business Advisory Council and the reception of the 67th Anniversary of
National Day, evidencing that the wines have become a frequent

choice for high profile state banquets and receptions. As such

global attention occasions, “national wine” Greatwall represents

China to serve the world.

REAEBARERBAIFARESASE  BEIMNHRE

.. B LATTSICLON NI APEC T iR S - 2Ee7 AFEE RS G SHEh =M -

(3.1 1 F.]

RABRREERFER LNXERE - 2XBANL - BB
A S G

A number of mid-and high-end professional wine brands were added to the products imported by COFCO Wine
& Wine, including wines from lItalian top brand Antinori, Peter Lehmann of Barossa, Australia, Black Stallion of
Napa, U.S and French champagne Nicolas, enriching
the product mix of COFCO Wine & Wine and a large
brand concentration effect is increasingly apparent. o I
At present, wines imported by COFCO Wine & Wine o
come from 13 major producing countries and 55
producing regions under 80 brands.
PRAHEETHAEANEBT [ZREHR] B
MERERENT] - ZBEMERES] ZE
HI)E—J%.SEJ EL AR RmBEREE LR - Em
BE—FPLE  KRpMERIETEER - Batdh &

-2 gﬁﬂ%%/@ﬂ%%B“Ié. 55 {iEl 2= h— —
& - #EH 80EMmE -

—~—
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

F JE BHAF




Dear Shareholders,

In 2016, the management team of China Food continued to adhere
to the business strategy at the beginning of the year, adapt to the new
norm under China’s economic development and reforms of state-
owned enterprises, and make efforts to overcome the difficulties
and challenges under the economic slowdown, the sluggish industry
and competitive market environment. We strategically disposed of
the loss-making businesses and redeploy resources on our core
businesses, as well as the development of imported wine business. In
respect of operation, the Company strengthened its brand marketing
and market exploration, innovation and development of star products,
reduce costs and explore new revenue growth drivers, which
enhanced the quality of the Company’s operation and improved its
results. In respect of management, the Company advanced incentive
reforms in performance evaluation system and ownership structure
at subsidiary level, in order to further promote the entrepreneurial
spirit among the management, enhance execution capabilities and
attain the goal of enhancement in quality of the Company’s operation
with continuous improvement in business results. On behalf of the
board of directors, | wish to extend my whole-hearted thanks to our
shareholders for their trust and support.

In 2017, under the entrepreneurial spirit, our Board will support our
management team to further execute incentive reforms, allocate
resources on core businesses. Besides, we will further optimize
the business mix, explore new revenue growth drivers, further
enhance marketing, expand our distribution channels, develop star
products as growth drivers, improve corporate management standard
and operation efficiency, as well as reduce costs and expenses.
By implementing the above measures, our target is to strive for
continuous improvement in its operating results.

As the largest shareholder of China Foods, COFCO will continue
to support the Company in implementing its focused strategy,
deepening its internal reform, strengthening operation and
management so as to enhance its market competitiveness and
accelerate the growth of its results.

| believe that by leveraging the concerted efforts of the Board and our
management team, China Foods will make new breakthroughs in its
business development in 2017, succeed in driving better business
performance and create greater values for our shareholders.

Ma Jianping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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MANAGING
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2016 REVIEW

In 2016, the growth rate of macro-economy in China remained at
a low level, with slackened growth in consumption expenditure.
In respect of wine industry, domestic wine was hardly hit by
imported wine, which caused considerable challenge to the
development of domestic wine category. In respect of beverage
industry, consumption demand remained weak, coupled with fiercer
competition, which put pressure on the revenue growth of beverage
category.

Faced with external challenges, the Company has made considerable
efforts in streamlining its strategy, continued to promote “Secondary
Entrepreneurial Culture” and implemented a series of initiatives
to optimize business mix, enhance business competitiveness and
improve the quality of operation. During the year, the Company (1)
completed the disposals of the confectionery business and certain
winery assets, i.e. the disposal of Junding assets (including Junding
Vineyard and Junding Wines & Spirits), in order to redeploy capital on
our core businesses. In addition, agreements had been reached with
bottling partners in respect of the refranchising of bottling operations
in Mainland China, so as to capture a golden opportunity to expand
the scale of beverage business; (2) upgraded its core product
“Greatwall Five-Star &3 £ ”, and further promoted “Fortune Corn
Oil and sunflower seed oil” star products by spending more on brand
promotion, with core products and star products as focus, as well as
better brand communication to effectively enhance brand awareness
and reputation; (3) continued to increase penetration into county-
level markets, with strengthened marketing management, so as to
increase number of points of sale and boost the sales execution; (4)
actively developed imported wine business, as another growth driver
of wine business; (5) optimized performance assessment mechanism
based on result oriented approach, in order to incentivize its team
with the entrepreneurial spirit.

With these strenuous efforts, we optimized progressively in the
business mix and assets, with continued improvement in operation
quality and management efficiency. The Company is now on the track
for sustainable business development.

STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR
ERRIE T

2017 PROSPECT

In 2017, the Chinese economy will still face challenges from
unfavorable factors, particularly the intensified competition in the
food and beverage industry, which will bring enormous difficulties
and challenges to our businesses. On the other hand, with increasing
contribution of consumption expenditure to economic growth,
widening application and innovation of network technology and
business models, together with deepening reforms in state-owned
enterprises, there will be new opportunities and dynamics for our
business development.

The Company will grasp the opportunities and deepen reforms,
overcome challenges and push forward our business development.
Strategically, we will further optimize the business mix and focus
on core products in order to enhance management and improve
profitability. Meanwhile, after the completion of refranchising
transaction of bottling operations, we will integrate the newly
acquired beverage business in order to realize synergy. Under the
entrepreneurial spirit, we will continue to improve operational quality
and efficiency with enhanced execution. We will strengthen the
brand marketing by focusing on promotion of star products and core
products, with enhanced execution, in order to drive sales growth.
Last but not least, we will further launch market-oriented incentive
reforms, with strengthened reward and punishment mechanism. We
believe that with the implementation of the above initiatives, in 2017,
the Company will achieve breakthrough in its development, with
focused strategy on core businesses, enhancement in operational
quality and better expected results.
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR
AR

On behalf of the management team, | wish to thank our shareholders Tt RABRRKREEELE - ROBRHS
for their understanding and trust. | would also like to thank our NIRRT - RS AERHER
business partners for their efforts and support and express my BT BB IRFHMAE -
heartfelt gratitude to each of our staff members for their unrelenting EEMIE O KRAEE K EEER
efforts. Let us join hands to create more corporate value and a better DIEWINES S0 PN

future.

Jiang Guojin EEpaE

Managing Director IEE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017 %8 - 2017F3 H28H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

BEVERAGE BUSINESS

Business Introduction

The beverage business of the Company is primarily carried out by
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL”"), an entity jointly
established by the Company and The Coca-Cola Company (“The
Coca-Cola Company”), in which the Company holds a 65% interest.

CCBL has the exclusive right to manufacture, market and distribute
Coca-Cola products in 15 provinces, municipalities and regions
including Tianjin, Hebei, Beijing, Shandong, Hunan, Jiangxi,
Guizhou, Hainan, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai, Tibet, Inner Mongolia,
Xinjiang and Guangdong (Zhanjiang and Maoming). CCBL has
minority equity stakes in Coca-Cola bottling companies located
in Guangdong, Zhejiang and Jiangsu. CCBL also has associate
interests in Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Holdings Limited, a
manufacturing company which mainly supplies still beverages to all
Coca-Cola franchisees in mainland China.

Development Strategy

The strategic goal of CCBL is to build a world-class bottling group with
a well-regarded professional team, to build the most valuable sales
and distribution network, and to become the most efficient beverage
industry player in every region in which we operate. To this end, CCBL
has been implementing the following strategies:

° Insistence on commitment to food safety and quality;

° The continued improvement of our product offering to the trade
by ensuring that our core products have enduring appeal to
consumers, and by introducing new higher margin products.
At the same time, we will seek to develop strategic cooperative
relationships with, and to raise gross margin for, both CCBL and
its distributors through a reasonable margin sharing model, and
inventory turnover at point-of-sale;

° Strengthen our relationship with participants in our outlet
delivery partners program, and provide support for the growth
of our customers through product category management, and
the application of route-to-market strategies for the sales and
distribution network;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

° Focus on further improving retail execution as this is our
contact point with consumers;

° Effective control of costs and improvement of efficiency; and

o Encouragement of creative concepts and innovative ideas in
business processes, marketing and management systems.

Industry Overview

The post-80s and 90s generations have become the mainstream of
our consumer groups, who have a preference for more diversified
products. Hence, novelty, uniqueness and functionality of the
beverages have become the main criteria in their selection of
beverages. The overall trend of the beverage industry is moving
towards high value-added and diversified products while the volume
of sales for conventional beverage categories remains stable with
increasing price competitions.

Among the principal beverage products, CCBL is a major player in
the sparkling, juice and packaged-water categories. According to
industry data for 2016, in terms of volume growth, the overall non-
alcohol ready-to-drink (NARTD) beverages market (excluding white
milk and bulk water) recorded a positive growth of 2.1%, including
a negative growth of 1.4% and 4.8% respectively for the sparkling
category (volume share of 12.7%) and juice category (volume share
of 9.8%), while the packaged-water category (volume share of
36.2%) grew 5.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB ERIT
2016 ANNUAL RESULTS 2016 F2F¥4&
A comparison of the 2016 annual results with those of 2015 of the MR EE DI 2016 FRFHEEH2015F 2
beverage business segment is summarized below: FEEMEBEWOT -
For For
the year ended the year ended
31 December 31 December Changes
2016 2015 (note)
#Z2016F HE2015F FHx
12A31ALE2E 12A31HILRE (&)
In HK dollar reporting term BILE®RATE (HK$' million) (HK$' million)
(BE#R) (B&AT)
Revenue N 11,290.5 12,335.0 -8.5%
Segment result GEIES 640.5 695.2 7.9%
As percentage of revenue EMAEDE 5.67 % 5.64% +0.03
percentage points
(EEBF:
Percentage point increase of EFRENE DS
gross profit margin +35
percentage points
EEnE

(Note): In RMB terms, segment revenue declined by 2.5% whereas the segment result
dropped by 1.9%.

While the sales volume for sparkling beverage dropped 1.2%,
packaged water products rose 11.4%, both outperforming their
respective categories. Meanwhile, the sales volume of juice products
dropped 6.1%. As a result, the overall sales volume for beverage
products increased by 1.9%. In RMB terms, overall revenue dropped
slightly by 2.5% as the volume contribution of packaged water
products (with lower average unit price) grew while that of sparkling
and juice products (with higher average unit price) dropped.

Benefiting from falling raw material prices, overall gross profit
margins increased by 3.5 percentage points. In respect of expenses,
spending on marketing increased in response to rising competition
while transaction related expenses of RMB15 million were incurred
due to Refranchising Transactions mentioned below. By continued
enhancement of promotional efficiency and strict expense controls,
the ratio of selling and distribution and administrative expenses
increased by 3.4 percentage points.
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Attributable to the above factors, segment profit in HKD terms
decreased by 7.9% from HK$695.2 million to HK$640.5 million. In
RMB terms, the amount dropped by 1.9%.

Refranchising of bottling operations in China (“Refranchising
Transactions”)

On 17 November 2016, CCBL, The Coca-Cola Company and
Swire Beverages Holdings Limited (“Swire”) entered into an inter-
conditional non-public sale equity transfer master agreement,
pursuant to which: (i) CCBL shall acquire the bottling operations of
The Coca-Cola Company in six regions including Heilongjiang, Jilin,
Liaoning, Shanxi, Sichuan and Chongging for an aggregate base
consideration (subject to adjustment) of approximately RMB2,900
million; and (ii) CCBL shall acquire the bottling operation of Swire
in Shanxi for a base consideration (subject to adjustment) of
approximately RMB487 million (collectively, the “Acquisitions”).

On the same day, according to relevant requirements for the sale
of state-owned assets, CCBL and the Company decided to publish
formal disclosures on the website of the China Beijing Equity
Exchange relating to the company’s proceedings with the public sale
of its entire interests in the bottling operations in Jiangxi, Hainan
and Guangdong (Zhanjiang and Maoming) and its associated and
minority interests in the bottling operations of six other regions
(including Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shanghai, Wenzhou, Huizhou and
Guangdong). On 16 December 2016, CCBL, the Company and Swire
(being the successful bidder in the public sale) entered into a public
sale equity transfer master agreement for the disposal of equity
interests in the abovementioned bottling operations at an aggregate
consideration of RMB2,122 million (collectively, the “Disposals”).

The Acquisitions and Disposals represent part of the Company’s
overall strategy to concentrate on expanding its core activities, and
reflect its long-term commitment to the Coca-Cola beverages bottling
business in China. The Acquisitions are expected to further deepen
this important strategic partnership through more cooperation
opportunities between the Company and The Coca-Cola Company.
The Acquisitions are also the important step for repositioning the
Company as one of the largest beverage bottlers in China, presenting
a significant opportunity for the Company to scale-up its beverages
business expand its geographical coverage, creating economies of
scale and capitalizing on the attractive long-term growth trends in
China’s beverage market.
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With over 16 years of experience in the Coca-Cola bottling business,
the Company’s senior management team has a proven track record
and demonstrated capability in the running of the business. We
are confident in facilitating a smooth transition and integration of
the bottling operations which we will acquire in the new territories.
Following the completion of the Acquisitions, we believe that we will
be able to create cost synergies through streamlining the operations
of the Coca-Cola bottling franchise territories, increasing productivity,
improving the flow of the operation and reducing the cost of
distribution and transportation. The significant increase in production
capacity is expected to provide a favorable factor for future production
growth.

As of the date of this report, the closing of the Acquisitions and
the Disposals is still subject to the satisfactory approval of certain
prerequisites.

OUTLOOK

The annual sales volume and revenue are expected to increase
significantly following the completion of the Refranchising
Transactions. The unit cost of the products and the rate of expenses
are however expected to be under pressure resulting from the impact
of the integration, intensifying market competitions and additional
costs for the promotion of the new products. Gross profit margins,
however, are expected to benefit from stable prices of key packaging
materials, continued improvement in packaging mix of CCBL, and the
launching and sale of new products (such as Minute Maid Essential
Delight “/Z%£” high content juice, Ice Dew “Chun Yue” and Aquarius
“Shui Dong Le").

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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WINE BUSINESS LLECE S

Business Introduction EREN

The Group’s wine business is based on its famous “Greatwall”
brand, which has a fine tradition and has long been a leader in
the China wine market. Due to the popularity of the brand and
the high quality of its products, “Greatwall” wine is the top pick
for state banquets.

The “Greatwall” brand covers a variety of wines which include
Cabernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Pinot Noir, Cabernet Franc, Shiraz
for red wines; and Chardonnay, Riesling, Sauvignon Blanc for
white wines. In addition, brandies and sparkling wines are also
produced.

“Greatwall” wines offer single varietal wines and blended wines
using different grape varieties. The majority of the grapes that
we use come from vineyards that are either managed by us
or from sources with whom we have cooperative agreements.
We have four production plants and several wineries in China,
namely Huaxia Wine Manor at Changli in Hebei, Chateau
Sungod at Huailai in Hebei and Chateau YunMo in Ningxia,
and two overseas wineries, Société du Chateau de Viaud SAS in
France and Vifia Santa Andrea Limitada in Chile.

The Group is developing an imported wines platform, COFCO
Wine & Wine (FRIE& 1€ ), based on distribution cooperation
with a number of renowned international wine companies and
well-known chéateau brands from various countries, for the
import of value-added wines into the PRC market.

& u
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Development Strategy

In order to enhance the competitiveness of the “Greatwall” brand, our
focus is to reposition “Greatwall” as a mid-to high-end quality wine
icon in China. Our business strategies for the new brand positioning
are described as follows:

° Products strategy: to satisfy consumers’ demand for healthy,
mid-to high-end quality wine products and focus on developing
strategic products for “Greatwall” that will attract consumers to
upgrade to higher quality wines;

° Brand promotion strategy: to underscore Greatwall’s national
wine status with ongoing promotions for important national
events by highlighting “Greatwall” strategic products; to
promote experiential marketing and direct communication with
consumers to effectively increase brand awareness and loyalty;

° Channel strategy: to streamline the distribution system of
“Greatwall”, actively seize sales growth opportunities in third-
tier and fourth-tier cities, and enhance our channel penetration;
strengthen customer management and control over points of
sale and marketing management; and

o Supply chain strategy: to strengthen supply chain management
and to promote key supply chain processes benchmark, so as
to enhance quality and efficiency.

Industry Overview

The wine industry has been recovering gradually since the second
half of 2014 and a single digit growth rate is expected over the next
few years. Personal and business consumption will once again
lead the market. Red wine consumers will become more sensible
and value-for-money products will continue to be a major focus of
consumers. Meanwhile, wine is becoming a trendy drink for young
people, and with the rise of the middle class, long-term growth is
expected for the consumption of wines.

The current wine market in China is mainly dominated by domestic
wines. However, imported wine consumption is increasing rapidly,
although no individual imported wine brands are currently dominating
the market.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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2016 ANNUAL RESULTS

A comparison of the 2016 annual results with those of the

2016 F2FXE

BmEEBE DI 2016 F R FHEEM 20154

comparative period of 2015 for the wine business segment is SFEERAEWEOT -
summarized below:
For For
the year ended the year ended
31 December 31 December Changes
2016 2015 (note)
BZ2016F HBZE2015% pEIp
12A31AIL2HE 12A318 27 63
In HK dollar reporting term BILE2HAT (HK$’ million) (HK$' million)
(B8BT) (A8ET)
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue LN 2,503.1 2,295.4 +9.0%
Segment results DEELE 111.1 %.1 +18.1%
As percentage of revenue 2 ONER 4.44% 4.10% +0.34
percentage points
[EEPaE
Percentage point increase of ENEEME A
gross profit margin +3.8
percentage points
(EEPaE

(Note): In RMB terms, segment revenue and segment profit grew by 16.1% and 25.7%

respectively.

During the year, the repositioning exercise for the “Greatwall” brand
has been executed as scheduled and is beginning to take effect.
Consequently, we focused on the optimization of our product mix,
together with raising ex-factory prices and replacing the sales of
low-end products by mid-to high-end products. Despite this, the
overall sales volume of “Greatwall” wine dropped by 9%, while the
improvement in sales mix resulted in its revenue growth of 6% in
RMB terms. In addition, the business of our imported wine platform
COFCO Wine & Wine (12 iE ) grew substantially by 147% to
RMB400 million during the year, albeit from a low base. As a result,
segment revenue grew by 16.1% in RMB terms.
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Due to the enhancement of our product mix and relatively lower
prices of raw wines stored in previous years, the gross profit
margin for “Greatwall” wine increased by 4.8 percentage points.
Nevertheless, with increased contributions from our imported wine
platform COFCO Wine & Wine (F1g &% ), which has a relatively
lower gross profit margin than “Greatwall” wine, the segment’s overall
gross profit margin increased by 3.8 percentage points.

With the repositioning of the “Greatwall” brand, the “Greatwall wine
for national celebrations” promotions were held during important
national events throughout the year to emphasize “Greatwall”’s
credibility as “the designated wine for serving at state banquets”.
It was indeed an honour for us that the “Greatwall” wine has
been selected to serve guests from around the world in 19 state
banquets. Since the second half of the year, “Greatwall” brand’s
online advertising investment has been substantially increased
and advertisements which focused on “Greatwall Five Stars” were
launched on CCTV in order to enhance the brand’s popularity and
reputation. As a result, advertising expenses substantially increased
by RMB85 million, which partially offsets the effect of a rise in gross
profit.

Attributable to the above factors, segment profit in HKD terms grew
18.1% from HK$94.1 million (restated) to HK$111.1 million, whereas
the amount in RMB terms grew by 25.7%
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OUTLOOK

In 2017, we will continue to reposition “Greatwall” as a mid-to high-
end wine brand. To this end, we will increase brand promotion
and investments in advertising and marketing, continue to launch
promotions during important national events; focus on “Greatwall
Five Stars” strategic products and streamline our product types for
the continuous optimization of our product mix. We will also further
improve our distribution systems by deepening channel penetration;
further cooperating with distributors by employing resources on
promotional activities at points of sale so as to improve inventory
turnover and to enhance quality and efficiency in the supply chain by
benchmarking. With such initiatives, we will strive for the continuing
growth of our wine business.
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KITCHEN FOOD BUSINESS

Business Introduction

The Kitchen Food business covers the sale, distribution and
marketing of edible oil which is the principal product category, as well
as the sale, distribution and marketing of sugar, soy sauce, vinegar,
MSG, seasoning sauce and cereals. “Fortune” brand is a well-known
consumer-pack edible oil brand in China and is ranked number two
nationwide in terms of market share.

Development Strategy

The Group’s strategic objective for the kitchen food business is to
maintain its position as one of the leading companies in the industry.
To this end, we will pursue the following strategies:

Strengthen the promotion of the core values of the “Fortune”
brand and improve the sales network for all products under the
brand;

Conduct product research and development to respond
effectively to changes in consumer preferences, develop
products that meet consumer preferences, with various
characteristics;

Conduct channel upgrades according to the current status
and development trend of channels, enhance channel
management to seize opportunities in the fast growing new
channels;

Enhance the supply chain system and save operation costs;

Continue to explore new business models to drive sales growth.

We have further expanded our sales and distribution of large-pack
edible oil (8-20 Litres per container) since the second quarter of 2015
to meet the growing demand of the catering industry in China.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Industry Overview

During the year, the overall growth of the volume of sales of packaged
edible oil has slackened, but prices remained stable. Corn oil
recorded a slower pace of growth as the product has reached its
maturity stage. Among the healthy oil products, sunflower seed oil has
replaced corn oil to become the growth driver. Meanwhile, more tasty
products such as rapeseed oil and peanut oil have grown at a rapid
pace. After years of declines, blended oil has staged a mild recovery
while soybean oil continued to decline. Consumers tend to prefer a
wider variety of nutritious and tasty oils, with increasing demands for
products with unique aroma.

ITHEE

FATERLORBERBEREEREER
Bz MHEEMAYRE - TXKBEEAK
P BRS¢ EAPMER BT KmBERRE
FOMTE  S0Hh ~ FEAh IR 2 i R
R FAUHEF TRENBEEEBEZRM
PEFTRES  KEmAEE T - HEER
HANESREXK  ZHERXEER - A
R EE R Sk H 8RR -

2016 ANNUAL RESULTS 2016 FEF 45
A comparison between the 2016 annual results and the 2015 annual BEREMERD I 2016 F 2 F LA 2015
results of the Kitchen Food Business segment is extracted as follows: FREFEMAEBE2NOT
For For
the year ended the year ended
31 December 31 December Changes
2016 2015 (note)
BZ 20165 HBZE2015% gk
12A31ALL2E 12A31HIERF 63
In HK dollar reporting term BILE2HAT (HK$’ million) (HK$' million)
(B8BT) (R&EET)
Revenue WA 13,963.2 12,8519 +8.6%
Segment results NEEE 85.7 117.1 -26.8%
As percentage of revenue ERABERE 0.61% 0.91% 03
percentage points
(BB
Percentage (decrease) of EFERCAD)EDE
gross profit margin -1.0
percentage point
(EERE:

(Note): In RMB terms, segment revenue grew by 15.7% while the segment result
dropped by 22.1%.

Sales volume of “Fortune” branded consumer-pack edible oil and
large-pack edible oil increased by 14.3% and 16.2% respectively. In
RMB terms, sales prices remained stable and overall sales revenue
increased by 15.7%.
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Affected by changes in the sales mix, the overall gross profit margin
for oil products dropped by 1.0 percentage points due to the
increasing contribution of large-pack edible oil, with relatively lower
margin.

Advertising and marketing expenses continued to increase in view
of intensifying competitions in the market. Attributable to enhanced
supply chain management, increased marketing efficiency and strict
control over administrative expenses, the overall expenses to revenue
ratio improved, but not enough to offset the effect of a decline in gross
profit margin.

Segment profit in HKD terms dropped 26.8%, from HK$117.1 million

to HK$85.7 million, whereas the amount in RMB terms decreased by
22.1%.

AR PTG L el i

At 10% < 20% 10% < 20%
Tt <20% 20% < 30% 30% < 35% >35%
o B SRS i R HE L
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Q%

o | 24

BEEEE R

OUTLOOK

Changes in supply and demand in edible oils are expected in 2017
due to rising commodity prices with volatility for bulk oil. At the
same time, advertising and marketing expenses for major competing
brands will increase. Hence, gross profit margins and selling prices
for packaged edible oil products will continue to be under pressure.

In this regard, we will adopt different development approaches for
different sectors. For medium to high-end oil products, the increasing
popularity of non-genetic modified products and new product items,
with relatively higher profit margin, will provide excellent opportunities
for our business. For the more economy-type of oil product, which
we have relative cost advantages, the turnover rate is expected to be
accelerated through strengthening execution capability in points-of-
sale. As affected by intense competitions, marketing expenses will
continue to increase but we will target to enhance our marketing
efficiency, together with more effective expense control measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREwmT
FINANCIAL REVIEW Br 75 B R
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BFEREXER
REVENUE LON
For For
the year ended As percentage the year ended As percentage
31 December of total 31 December of total
2016 revenue 2015 revenue
HZ2016F HENLE
12A31H B A 12A31H GEL 9N
JI:355 Bt ItEE BAK
(reported in HKD terms) (ETOEZ5) (HK$’ million) % (HK$' million) %
(BE%R) (B8AT)
Beverage segment R 11,290.5 40.3 12,335.0 443
Wine segment BRENH 2,503.1 9.0 2,295.4 8.2
Kitchen food segment BERGHAH 13,963.2 49.9 128519 462
Others segment Ei 229.1 0.8 359.9 13
Total &t 27,985.9 100 278422 100

Revenue from continuing operations of the Group grew by 0.5% in REE BT OE2MNSER S EERIK
HKD terms, whereas the amount in RMB terms, increased by 7.0%. AER0.5% @ AMUAREOEZHAE
Revenue growth in RMB terms is mainly attributable to the continuing FAT7% - AREORZFHHMALER - £
revenue growth of the kitchen food segment, and the substantial ZHNEFERRO TN ABELER - AR
growth in business scale of imported wine platform COFCO Wine EOAETETEEHENEKEENRER
& Wine (& 4% ) albeit from a low base, which was partially (HEERIE) MR D EZTITE BB
offset by a decline in Beverage segment revenue caused by changes Bt B mBsEEL  BEZYHRA
in industry-wide consumer trends and changes in sales mix of its T8 UREAREERESEHRZOER R
business, and a decline in others segment revenue due to the Group's Eoh o EmMESSIBRARLD - #HiE TIHRA
decision to focus on core businesses and products. KR 1L IR o

In view of consolidating the Group’s business focus and enhancing BEREREBAZ ER RIE MR R -
shareholders’ return, the board of directors decided that the sale and EEYRTAEEIBKHREROLE D EER
distribution by the Group of certain consumer products including AR E At | 5 ERAGTE 2017 F&R S48 1 (BIAE$H
fruit juice beverages, instant noodles, peanuts and others, collectively ETHEBER BEIETEHE - AFEE - JE
categorized as the “others” segment (not categorized under the EREMEBR - ETRERI D AR EE B
beverage segment, wine segment and kitchen food segment) in BN LBEEREMD S ER) o
operating segment information of financial statements, would be

progressively terminated in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit margin from continuing operations increased
from 22.8% (restated) to 23.3%, mainly attributable to the margin
improvements in Beverage segment and Wine segment, which was
partially offset by a decline in gross profit margin of Kitchen Food
segment.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

One-off gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$118.8
million, in relation to the disposal of Junding Assets was completed in
fourth quarter of 2016.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES/
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Aggregated amount of selling and distribution expenses and
administrative expenses from continuing operations was HK$6,354.6
million, grew by HK$344.2 million or 5.7%, mainly due to additional
spending in advertising, brand promotion and marketing expenses
as a result of intensifying market competition, under management’s
ongoing efforts to optimize supply chain management, enhance
promotional efficiency and control expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs were HK$35.8 million, a decrease of 44.8%, mainly
due to lower outstanding loan balances, caused by repayment of
certain Hong Kong dollar borrowings by the use of proceeds from the
disposals of a discontinued operation and Junding Assets during the
year.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates (related to Beverage business segment)
of approximately HK$73.0 million were comparable to the results in
2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIREWRT
INCOME TAX EXPENSES B
Income tax expense was HK$226.1 million, a decrease of 19.3%, B HAE2261EET B 19.3%
mainly because the gain on disposal of Junding Assets was not Iy%lﬁjﬁ’%%‘lﬁé%ﬁ@%ﬁ BIRENER
subject to income tax. 1356 -
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIFREER

Post-tax gain on disposal of approximately HK$365.5 million, and FRSFEDEEBHTEUERL 3.655E8
a loss from confectionery business segment (a business segment IC AR AAB R REBED I (EEFEM R

categorized as a discontinued operation pursuant to the HKFRS 5) ERABSEABARIEEET I BE
of approximately HK$43.5 million for the five months ended 31 May 201645 A31 HIER{E A EEL4,3508%5
2016 were recorded during the year. JC °

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES REBESRUKEER

The Company’s treasury function operates as a centralized service RARIECEETER -

for:

. Reallocating financial resources within the Group; o FEHOREAEEZPFEER

e Procuring cost-efficient funding; o  AALEFHENAMZZES

e Managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign o  EIRFEKEZRREREAZTBER

exchange rate risks; and B &
e Targeting yield enhancement opportunities. o  HBRREREGZ M -
The treasury function regularly and closely monitors its overall cash B CH R ERARBRG RER
and debt positions, proactively reviews its funding costs and maturity AR~ B A B B E B AN R B HBE R A
profiles to facilitate timely refinancing, if appropriate. Cash pooling FERNEESEATHRE - AEESNER

is applied in mainland China for more efficient utilization of cash. Be  AEBEAEPBRAREFRRS - 1t
Also, the treasury function formulated financial risk management Sh - BB T BRERERRE AR
procedures, which are subject to periodic review by the senior NEEREEEFHER -

management of the Company.

During the year, EBITDA" from continuing operations dropped by FR - FECEEBHEBITDAE A 2.485
HK$248.5 million to HK$1,043.4 million (2015: HK$1,291.9 million BB T E104341E 7% T (20154 : 12.919
(restated)), mainly attributable to the general increase in spending BAT(EY))  EZHREEMISGHEFIE

on marketing and advertising in response to increased competition, e MIGHEREERTEEIEN - UK
together with translation effect of amounts in RMB term. ARBHECEMINTE S EME -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

In the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents totalled
approximately HK$1,120 million (31 December 2015: approximately
HK$899 million). The amount of net current assets improved to
approximately HK$1,438 million (31 December 2015: approximately
HK$189 million), mainly attributable to the classification of certain
Beverage business segment assets and liabilities in relation to public
sale equity transfer agreement of Refranchising Transactions, as
“assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale” and “liabilities
directly associated with the assets of a disposal group classified as
held for sale”.

Having considered the (i) budgeted cash flow from operating activities
from continuing operations, (ii) existing financial resources and
gearing level of the Group, (iii) existing banking facilities available
to the Group, and (iv) further borrowings under negotiation with
potential lenders in relation to Refranchising Transactions, in the
absence of unforeseeable circumstances, the management believes
that the Group’s financial resources are sufficient to fund its debt
payments, day-to-day operations, contracted capital expenditures as
at 31 December 2016, and financing the Refranchising Transactions.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016, the total
number of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged at
2,797,223,396.

In the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,620 million (31 December 2015: approximately
HK$2,610 million). Bank borrowings carried at annual interest
rates, floating in nature, ranging between 0.92% and 1.75% (31
December 2015: between 0.92% and 5.66%, majority of bank
borrowings carried at floating rate). All of the Group’s bank loans
were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (31 December 2015: all
of the Group’s bank loans were denominated in HKD except for
certain bank loans and other borrowings of approximately HK$263
million in total were denominated in RMB). As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had other borrowings of approximately HK$25 million,
carried at fixed, annual interest rate of 4.28% (31 December 2015:
approximately HK$38 million, carried at fixed, annual interest rate of
5.60%).
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Maturity profile of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2016, is analyzed as:

° HK$820 million borrowings repayable within one year or on
demand;

° HK$800 million borrowings repayable in the second year; and

° HK$25 million borrowings repayable in the third year.

As at 31 December 2016, net assets attributable to owners of the
parent were approximately HK$5,461 million (31 December 2015:
approximately HK$5,493 million (restated)) and net borrowing
position of the Group (interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
less unpledged cash and cash equivalents) was approximately
HK$525 million (31 December 2015: approximately HK$1,748
million) and the net gearing ratio (ratio of net borrowing position of
the Group to net assets attributable to owners of the parent) was
approximately 9.6% (31 December 2015: approximately 31.8%
(restated)).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2015: Nil).

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by charges over certain buildings, land use rights and time
deposits of the Group with aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$188 million.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT

Majority of monetary assets, monetary liabilities and transactions of
the Group were principally denominated in Renminbi and recorded
in the books of subsidiaries operating in mainland China (functional
currency as Renminbi), while all bank borrowings as at 31 December
2016 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and recorded in the
book of the Company (functional currency as Hong Kong dollars). For
consolidated financial statements reporting of the Group (reporting
currency as Hong Kong dollars), foreign exchange differences, arising
from translation of financial statements of subsidiaries operating in
mainland China, are directly recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

Although the Group has not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose, the treasury function actively and closely monitors
foreign exchange rate fluctuation, particularly the exchange rate of
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollar. The foreign exchange risk exposure
at the operational level is not significant, but entering of hedging
agreements would be critically considered to mitigate any material
foreign exchange risk exposure.

Nevertheless, the currency mismatch by using Hong Kong dollar
borrowings to finance assets and businesses denominated in
Renminbi, exposes the Group to the risk of unexpected cash
outflows for repayment of such borrowings by realization of assets
denominated in Renminbi, if any.

During the year, the Group repaid certain Hong Kong dollar
borrowings, mainly by the use of proceeds from the disposals of a
discontinued operation and certain winery assets. Upon the maturity
of existing bank borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
the Group will gradually repay and/or refinance them by Renminbi
financing, if it's appropriate.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 14,015 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2015: 17,325).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO scheme
or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as life
insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland China are
provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in compliance
with the requirements of the laws of China. Details of these benefit
schemes will set out in the “Other employee benefits” under note
2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies” to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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The Company’s share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”) was
adopted on 21 November 2006 for a term of ten years for the purpose
of rewarding eligible employees of the Group (including executive
directors and non-executive directors of the Company) based on
individual merit and the Option Scheme expired on 20 November
2016.

As at 1 January 2016, a total of 25,080,000 share options of the
Company remained outstanding. During the year, a total of 2,960,000
share options lapsed. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2016, a total
of 22,120,000 share options of the Company remained outstanding.

CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

During the year, COFCO Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, set up a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Tianjin named COFCO Fortune Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd.
FIEERGPIR S & 5 AR A Alwhich is mainly engaged in sale and
distribution of edible oil and other kitchen food products.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China, France and Chile while the
Company itself is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland
China, France, Chile and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland
China, France, Chile and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the Board, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout
the year. Details of the Company’s work in corporate governance
during the year are disclosed in the corporate governance report on
pages 92 to 113 of this report.
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l
I DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EENSREEERBN

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
EREFRFYITES

MR. MA JIANPING

Mr. Ma, 53, is currently a non-executive director of the Company and was appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors of the Company in August 2015; and
also as a director and the chairman of the board of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited and a director of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment Limited,
both of which are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ma joined
COFCO Corporation and/or its subsidiaries (together but excluding the Company
and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “COFCO Group”) in 1986 and is
currently a vice president of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Ma holds several directorships
MR. MA JIANPING in certain subsidiaries in COFCO Group, including the deputy managing director of

FRFRE COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited. Currently, Mr. Ma is also the chairman of the board
and a non-executive director of each of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited
and COFCO Meat Holdings Limited, both of which are listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma
served as a deputy manager of the Company from June 2003 to February 2008 and
was an executive director of the Company from March 2007 to March 2008. Mr. Ma
was also a non-executive director of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited from
August 2009 to March 2014. Mr. Ma was a director of COFCO Property (Group) Co.,
Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen until December 2016, and also a non-executive
director of Joy City Property Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, until January
2017.

Mr. Ma graduated from University of International Business and Economics in
China in July 1986 and subsequently received an Executive Master of Business
Administration from the same university in December 2005, and he has extensive
experience in strategic planning, corporate finance, investment and M&A, and
business management.
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MR. JIANG GUOJIN

Mr. Jiang, 49, was appointed as the managing director and an executive director of
the Company in September 2013 and is currently a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Jiang is also the chairman of the board and a non-executive
director of Jiugui Liquor Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Jiang joined
COFCO Group in 1989 and was the general manager of COFCO Malt (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd. from December 1995 to August 2000, the general manager of the Malt Division
of China Foods (Beijing) Company from August 2000 to December 2007 and a
deputy general manager of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong, as well as the general manager of the Brewing Materials
Division of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited from December 2007 to July
2008. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jiang was the general manager of COFCO
Meat Investment Company Limited.

Mr. Jiang graduated from Beijing Institute of Light Industry (now Beijing Technology
and Business University) with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering and holds
a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School and has extensive experience in food business and
general management with strong performance record.
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MS. LUAN XIUJU

Ms. Luan, 52, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in January
2017. Ms. Luan is currently a director and the chief executive officer of COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Luan joined COFCO Group in
1989 and is currently also a director of certain subsidiaries of COFCO Group. Ms.
Luan was an executive director of the Company during the period from March 2007
to September 2013 and the managing director of the Company during the period
from February 2011 to September 2013.

Ms. Luan graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in economics and a Master of Arts degree in economics, and has extensive
experience in food and beverage production, marketing and general management.
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Mr. Wu, 46, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in September
2016 and is currently served as a deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of wine category management department. Mr. Wu joined
COFCO Group in 1992 and has held various management positions in the Company
since 1999, including the general manager of the wine business unit and sales
management south center, and also an assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Wu graduated from University of International Business and Economics in
Beijing with a Bachelor’s degree in business administration and has over 20 years
of experience in corporate management and wines business.
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Mr. Zhou, 40, was appointed as an executive director and the chief financial officer
of the Company in November 2016. Mr. Zhou joined the Company in February
2015 and is currently the head of the Company’s finance department. Mr. Zhou
joined COFCO Corporation in 2006 and has served as a manager of infrastructure
audit department of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a listed company in
Hong Kong, and the deputy general manager of audit and supervision department
of COFCO Meat Investment Company Limited. Prior to joining COFCO Corporation,
Mr. Zhou worked in AlA and Lafarge Shui On Cement Limited.

Mr. Zhou graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in Dalian
with a Bachelor degree in accounting and holds a Master's degree in management
studies from The University of Waikato in New Zealand. Mr. Zhou is a certified
internal auditor (CIA) and also holds a certification in Risk Management Assurance
(CRMA) issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. Zhou has extensive
experience in finance and auditing.
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MR. QIN YELONG

Mr. Qin, 54, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in January
2017. Mr. Qin is currently a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment Limited, both of which are
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qin joined COFCO Group in
1992 and has held various management positions, including the vice president of
COFCO International Limited during the period from September 2014 to November
2016, the deputy director of the strategy department of COFCO Corporation during
the period from May 2013 to September 2014, and the general manager of COFCO
Tunhe Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shanghai, during the period from September
2005 to May 2013.

Mr. Qin graduated from Nanchang Institute of Aeronautical Technology (now
Nanchang Hangkong University) with Bachelor degree in engineering and holds a
Master’s degree in technologies and economics from Tsinghua University. Mr. Qin
has over 20 years of experience in business management.
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MS. XIAO JIANPING

Ms. Xiao, 53, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in January
2017. Ms. Xiao is currently a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment Limited, both of
which are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Xiao was the
deputy general manager and the chief accountant of China Merchandise Reserve
Management Center during the period from April to November 2016. Ms. Xiao
joined The China Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. in 1999, and has held
various positions in the finance department. Ms. Xiao was the chief accountant and
the finance manager of The China Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. during
the period from December 2013 to April 2016.

Ms. Xiao graduated from Party School of the Central Committee of Communist Party
of China majoring in economics and management. Ms. Xiao is a senior accountant
and has extensive experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark, 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in January 2005. Mr. Clark is a joint managing director of The Anglo
Chinese Investment Company, Limited, the chairman of the Takeovers and Mergers
Panel and a member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission, a former director of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and has served as an alternate member of the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Clark has extensive experience in
corporate finance.

Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and history of art
from the University of Nottingham in England and a degree of Master in Business
Administration from the University of Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa.
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MR. PAUL KENNETH ETCHELLS

Mr. Etchells, 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in August 2012. Mr. Etchells is currently also an independent non-
executive director of each of Samsonite International S.A. and Swire Properties
Limited, both of which are listed in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Etchells also serves
as an operational adviser to Cassia Investments Limited. Mr. Etchells was employed
by The Coca-Cola Company from July 1998 to June 2010, and worked in the
U.S.A., Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells has held various positions at
The Coca-Cola Company, including the deputy group president of Pacific Group of
The Coca-Cola Company from 2007 to 2010 and the president of China Division
of The Coca-Cola Company from 2002 to 2007. Prior to joining The Coca-Cola
Company, Mr. Etchells was employed by the Swire Group in Hong Kong from 1976
to 1998. Mr. Etchells was the chairman of the board and a non-executive director
of Twenty20 Limited until February 2017.

Mr. Etchells graduated from the University of Leeds in the United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in political studies, and holds a degree of Master of Arts
in Asia Pacific Studies from the University of Leeds. Mr. Etchells is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in November 2008. Mr. Li was a member of each of the Takeovers and
Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures Commission and the Listing Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert member of the Finance
Committee of the Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and an executive director
and the chief finance officer of Hang Lung Group Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and sociology from
The University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland. Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. YUEN TIN FAN, FRANCIS

Mr. Yuen, 64, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 1993. Mr. Yuen is currently also the independent non-executive deputy
chairman of Pacific Century Regional Developments Limited, a company listed in
Singapore; an independent non-executive director of Agricultural Bank of China
Limited, a company listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong; and an independent non-
executive director of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, a company listed in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen was a chief executive of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited from 1988 to 1991, an independent non-executive director of China
Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong
until June 2013; and an independent non-executive director of China Chengxin
International Credit Rating Co., Ltd. until January 2017.

Mr. Yuen holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from the University of
Chicago and is currently a member of board of trustees of the university. Mr. Yuen
is also the chairman of the board of trustees of Hong Kong Centre for Economic
Research, a member of Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference and a
member of the board of trustees of Fudan University in Shanghai.
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MR. CHEN GANG

Mr. Chen, 45, is a deputy general manager of the Company and the general
manager of the kitchen food category management department. Mr. Chen joined
COFCO Group in 1994 and has held various management positions in the Company
since 2008, including the general manager of each of the confectionery business
unit, kitchen food business unit, chief legal counsel, procurement department,
sales management east center and an assistant general manager of the Company.
Mr. Chen has also served as a deputy general manager of the oilseeds processing
unit of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chen has over 20 years of experience in oils and oilseeds processing, edible oil
trading, brand marketing, business model innovation and corporate management.
Mr. Chen graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in law,
and from Tsinghua University with a Master of Business Administration degree.
Mr. Chen also held a doctorate degree from Institute of Population and Labour
Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
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Ms. Xu, 42, is a deputy general manager of the Company and the general manager
of human resources department. Ms. Xu joined COFCO Corporation in 1997
and has been the deputy director of human resources department of COFCO
Corporation. Ms. Xu joined the Company in October 2013 and has served as an
assistant general manager of the Company. Ms. Xu has extensive experience
in human resources management. Ms. Xu graduated from Beijing International
Studies University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics, and then from
Hochschule Pforzheim University with a Master degree in economics.
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MR. ZHANG JIXIANG

Mr. Zhang, 54, has been an assistant general manager of the Company since
May 2013 and currently also the chief operating officer of the beverage business
unit of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined COFCO Group in 1987, and has served
as the deputy general manager of Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola since 1996 and the
general manager of that company since 1999. In 2002, he was appointed as the
general manager of Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Company Limited and was
appointed as the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. in 2010.
Mr. Zhang has extensive operations and management experience and has more
than 20 years of experience in the beverage industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
China Agricultural University and holds a Master of Science degree in agriculture.
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MR. LU XIAOHUI

Mr. Lu, 39, is an assistant general manager and the general manager of the audit
and supervision department of the Company. Mr. Lu was an executive director
during September 2013 to August 2015 and served as the chief financial officer
of the Company during September 2013 to March 2014. Mr. Lu joined COFCO
Corporation in July 2008 and prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lu was the deputy
general manager of the Performance Audit Division of the Audit and Supervision
Department of COFCO Corporation and the deputy general manager of the Finance
Department of China Grain and Logistics Corporation. Prior to joining COFCO
Corporation, Mr. Lu worked at Vocation International CPAs (now known as Baker
Tilly International) for more than six years. Mr. Lu has extensive experience in the
area of accounting and auditing.

Mr. Lu is a senior accountant, a PRC registered accountant and a PRC registered
tax adviser as well as a member of China Institute of Internal Auditors (authorised
by the Institute of Internal Auditors). He graduated from Tianjin Open University
with a college diploma in finance and securities management, and subsequently
graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree in economic.
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Mr. Zheng, 38, has been the chief legal counsel of the Company and the general
manager of the legal department since July 2014. Mr. Zheng joined COFCO
Corporation in 2001 and has served as the general manager of contract and
corporate law division of the legal department of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Zheng
has extensive experience in legal practice and management. Mr. Zheng graduated
from Sun Yat-sen University and China University of Political Science and Law with
a Master of Arts degree in laws.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIB - HERERESE

INTRODUCTION

China Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as “China Foods” or the
“Company”), as a leading food company in the industry, has inherited
the social responsibility philosophy of “being loyal to national policies
and making people’s life better” and is committed to the corporate
mission and responsibility of “offering nutritious, healthy, delicious
and quality foods, and achieving value maximization for customers,
shareholders and employees”, and striving to achieve sustainable
development of itself and the society.

This report is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(hereinafter referred to as the “Report”) of China Foods Limited.
The contents of the report are prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG
Reporting Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and are in compliance with the relevant regulations.
The scope of the Report covers the Company's major production and
operation activities in China and the reporting period is the same
as the 2016 financial year. The purpose of this report summarized
China Foods’ performance in terms of environmental, social and
governance (ESG) aspects in 2016, and responded to the concerns
of various stakeholders.

The Company understands that the standard of its management
and performance in environmental, social and governance play
an important role in achieving the strategic objectives of the
sustainable development of China Foods. Through the Report, we
hope to receive positive suggestions from various stakeholders of
China Foods for further enhancing the management standard and
performance in the aspects of environmental, social and governance.
If you have any feedback on the Report, please send it by email to
zhangpengfei@cofco.com.
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 1. ESGEERZR
1.1 ESG philosophy and management structure 1.1 ESGECHEEELE

China Foods, a listed subsidiary of COFCO Corporation FRRMAEATEREBERAR
(hereinafter referred to as “COFCO”) in Hong Kong, (AT ERw g REB LT
always adheres to the sustainable development MEBAR  —EEAFERNIE
philosophy of COFCO — “being loyal to national policies BREERES-[BARHF - RR
and making people’s life better”. We have integrated RAe] UHEeESRARD
green operation into the development vision of corporate EEEERBEST 0 KOHEER
strategy, vigorously promote low-carbon economy, A - RRIKEERE - K52 -
explored low energy consumption, low pollution, EBEmAEEET, - BREER
low emission model of operation, and regarded BT ErAEErELSERE
environmental impact reduction as an important REZIZT -

benchmark for measuring corporate social responsibility.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE -t RERRE

ESGEHEEAR (H)
1.1 ESGESREEEME (H)

1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued) 1.

1.1 ESG philosophy and management structure (continued)

In order to achieve the vision of sustainable development
strategy of China Foods, the Company has set up an
ESG Work Leading Group which is leaded by the Board,
managed by the management and participated by each
relevant functional departments, as well as established
and continuously improved the ESG management system
of the Company, optimized its own ESG management
measures, and effectively enhanced the performance
ability of the social responsibility of China Foods.

China Foods
ESG Work Leading Group
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ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued)

1.2 Stakeholder’'s communication and response

B - HgREAHRE

While developing its own businesses and creating value
for the community, China Foods actively identified
stakeholders as well as built and maintained good
relationship with stakeholders through multi-channel
communication, in order to keep abreast of their
demands and concerns. The identified key stakeholders
includes: government and regulatory institutions,
investors/shareholders, employees, consumers, media,
suppliers, distributors, universities and colleges/research
institutions, and surrounding communities.

Stakeholder
Flz= B S

Description of Stakeholder

HHEG B

1. ESGEEEA (&)
1.2 FESEREEREE

TRERMEERESER /it
SREBENRE - BREFE
RIMEEEREYT - WRBZREH
8 3 L% N 25 AR B U7 S L AR HF
REFRAR - KB TR FIRERK
ERRE Y] - ThfPIERI Y E B M 2mAR
BB BT REEHE - 1%
BEA/BRER BT HEE K
B LR - R AR
HieE - ABRtRSE -

Communication method

BEARN

Government and
regulatory
organizations

B REERSE

Departments of Food, Taxation,
Environment and Safely, etc.,
direct management and regulatory
institutions which has the authority
to exercise national or local laws
and regulations (such as local
governments)

R B RIR - T2 1A
BT & BABBIR it 7 A A R AT
RN EEEENEERE

Important meetings, policy advice,
case reports, institutional visits,
official correspondence, information
disclosures, etc.

EREH  BRFEN - BUER - #18
ER AXER  FEHEF

Investors/Shareholders

Natural persons/institutions who hold
certain shares of China Foods

General meetings, corporate annual
reports, announcements, etc.

BREANBRR FETERM—EHENBEARAAHE BRRAE tEFR 2EF

Employees Persons who has entered into labor Employee satisfaction survey, employee
contracts with China Foods and are activities, employee training, employee
serving China Foods handbook, corporate internal

publications, etc.

BT HOBRmRSEBER  MERNTE BImEEHAE 8158  BI1F
RmAAE Al BETFM - RERNETIME

Consumers People who purchase and consume the Customer service hotline, satisfaction
products of China Foods survey, etc.

HEE BEMHERERMERNEFR FERER  WEEREE

China Foods Limited

Annual Report 2016
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued)

1.2 Stakeholder’s communication and response (continued)

1.

B HRREARS

ESGEHEER (H)
1.2 R85 mEEE ()

Stakeholder Description of Stakeholder Communication method

FzAEEE T AR =8 BREAR

Media Newspapers, television stations, websites,  Corporate operation interviews, corporate
etc., and other relevant media culture promotion, media press
organizations conferences, special feature activities

e Wit BRE  PUFERAEENKE ORQETHK  PEXLEE - Hg%

e  BEEBEHS

Suppliers Enterprises, shops or individual Supplier inspection, open tender
businesses who supplies raw materials meetings, strategic cooperation
for production and office supplies to negotiations, exchange visits, etc.
China Foods

fHIERS MHBERRHEEEREERFARRE HEFNZER AHBRESS  BKE
B2 - EassIERRE S e~ RME %

Distributors Enterprises, shops or individual Product exhibition, industry research,
businesses who conduct legitimate cooperation negotiations, distributor
business of all brand products under meetings, etc.

China Foods
ReEmm BECEPRREETEMEERNT ERRERDE  TERAM - e - &

% mEsEEns

BERES

Surrounding communities

AEtE

The communities and public of the place
of operation

BEMTEHMR  HEAR

Public welfare activities, community
activities, volunteer activities, social
support projects, etc.

N Ed - HREE  EREEE - 4
EEEXIHEESE

Universities and colleges,
or research institutions

BRI TS

Universities, colleges and research
institutions which have established
cooperative relations with China Foods

EhERMEVEERENAS - 2
B - RH#E

Provision of internship opportunities,
corporate recruitment, staff training,
seminars, academic exchanges and
research cooperation projects

REEEHRS  EHREEE B1HE
& fatg - BMOR KBS ER
B%

o B A PR A T
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued)

1.2 Stakeholder’'s communication and response (continued)

ESGEEEZR (&)

1.2 FFARELBEEDE (&)

1.

Relatively important issues Key issues
HEEESRE BREE
e 12 ® 29
@ ® 28 ® 19
g ® 100 11 2 @ 26 ® 3]
2~ ®14 o1 ©33 @32
© §i A
X 6 ® 150 4, 0 37 O 22
%"g o7 o3 %em ® 39
e ® 3 ® 34 ® 16
%E ® 41 ® 20
o2
£ ® 42 ® 40
_.\E’ﬁ ® 25 ® 18 ® 23
GJ% e 2 ® 13 @ 35
%'HI ® 21 ® 30
(O ® 43 ® 5
2 hi
i ® 17
g? ® 24
k)
>
L
BRTEERE HHEERE
Less important issues Relatively important
issues
RERETME (HEBHE)
Internal assessment
(Impact on business)
TR MESGHBE 2 M AR

Materiality Assessment Matrix of China Foods’ ESG Issues!

Through actively communicating with its stakeholders and
understanding their concerns and expectations, the Company
identified the focus of the 2016 annual ESG initiative and report,
covering key ESG issues such as emissions, use of resources, product
responsibility, rights of employees and supply chain management.

1 Materiality Assessment Matrix of China Foods ESG Issues: The ESG issue number
corresponds to the ESG reporting guide (see the “ESG Reporting Index Table” in the
Appendix to the Report).

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

China Foods adheres to the sustainable development
philosophy of low-carbon environment, and actively identifies
and complies with national and local environmental laws and
regulations, such as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China({F# A R KFIBIRIBRE
J£)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({FEE A RFEFE K
SOTRBTAEY), Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({F#E A R HAE
AGEHEIASE)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
(AR M E B RE Y5 2 IRIFP6%)) and Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment ({FFEE AR EMBIRIBFETEL)), etc. At the
same time, the Company, on the basis of improving its own
environmental management system, continuously explores
the viable energy-saving and emission reduction technologies
and techniques in the operation process, strives to reduce the
impact of the Company's production and operation activities
on the environment, and earnestly implements sustainable
development philosophy of low-carbon environment. According
to the results of environmental compliance assessment, there
are no significant violations occurred in the environmental
management of China Foods in 2016.

2.1 Environmental management system

To further enhance the Company's standard of
environmental management, China Foods, in its
subordinate production units, actively promotes the
establishment and operation of their own environmental
management system, with reference to the ISO14001
standard. As of the end of 2016, 12 subordinate plants
under a total of 15 units of the Company's subordinate
branches/subsidiaries/plants (including China Great Wall
Wine Co., Ltd., COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd.,
COFCO Greatwall Wine (Yantai) Co., Ltd. under the wine
business unit and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
(“CCBL") were certified to ISO14001 environmental
management system.

B HRREARS

RIREME
FERMBHERRENAIFERER
B BRERWETEER kT E
ERBREHERER - 0 (P E
ARKAMBRRFREE) (FEAR
HMBEARISRIAE)  (FEAR
HMBAKFRPDOE) (PEARHK
B E 8 R D)5 RIRIR A A ) R
FEARKNMBERRZEFER)F -
R ARAETEBFRETIES
EONER L THRRELBEDA
TTEVERBE BRI R T2 - BHRE
RAREEELRHHRIREKNT
2 PERTHERMEFRRERNA
FEERNED - KREFREGR
AR - 2016 FER - FERM
REEEAEARBELEERNEREN

2.1 REEERZA
A — BRI RN RINIRIREEK
o pERmEGREE TESE
E BN 2M1S014001 Z#=E T
WETESHIRREEER - 8
Z20I6FE  ARAITES A
A,/ FRE,/ TH&EE ANt
ISREMN (RIERESELRTE
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(continued)
2.1 Environmental management system (continued)

In the actual management, the Company, in accordance
with the relevant provisions of COFCO and taken into
account of its own business characteristics, formulated
a series of environmental management systems and
regulations, including the Procedures of Identification
and Evaluation of Environmental Factors ((GRE R %5
RIEAFF{BF2FF)), Procedures of Evaluation of Laws and
Regulations and Compliance (CEEER KA RIERT
{BF2F)), Safety Management System for Hazardous
Chemicals (Bt B REE2EEFIE)), Management
System for Safety and Environmental Equipment and
Facilities (22 IRIRZXMERMEEILHIE)), Safety and
Environmental Management System for Construction
Projects ((FERIBEH L2 RIREIEHIE)) , Management

RREE ()

2.1 RIEEERZ(HE)

EREEF - ARBHRBHIEN
BRARE - BEBHEHRH
HIFE T — RO RFEE B E A
ME - BRECGREREZRHR S
BERF)  CERER KA R
EBEF) (eRBnt2EE
HIE) (LZ2RERERIEEIE
HIED) - GERAE Z2RIREE
HIEY  OFKEEEERSE)
(ERBERFEIZHIR ) - (ERERE
EMERHE)IF - RARAIR
BERRRM T HIERE - R
hERMIEE TREREREH
RIS MRS - STHIRBRET

System for Sewage Treatment (CF/KEEEIRHIE)), BRRAENEIINGS BT
Management System Energy Conservation and Emission K BB A R LRI IRIRAY AT
Reduction ((EigE BBFEEHIE)) and Management BEERES -

System for Solid Waste ({ B2 &= W B I HE )),
which has provided a system of protection for the
Company's environmental management. At the same
time, China Foods has focused on the establishment and
enhancement of environmental protection awareness

of its employees, and developed corresponding training
Enforcement
of System

B
BT

content under the theme of environmental protection,
in order to strengthen the sustainable development
philosophy of low-carbon environment in the employees’
mindset.

3
=g

Environmental
Management

Environmental
Protection
Training

Compliance
Assessment

a3
B fi
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)

2.2

Emission control

PRI

Emission control

China Foods has strictly implemented the “Three
Simultaneities” management system for environmental
protection ([FRIFRE=RKRHIE ], which means that
installations for the prevention and control of pollution
at a construction project must be designed, built and
commissioned together with the principal part of the
project) , carrying out full cycle management, from stages
of design, construction to operation, on all projects. At
the stage of project design, we conscientiously identify
the pollutant emissions and potential environmental
impacts arising from the construction and operation
phases and propose corresponding prevention and
mitigation measures; at the stage of project construction,
we strengthen the environmental supervision work to
ensure that the environmental protection measures are
implemented in detail, and the impact of construction
activities on the surrounding environment is minimized;
after the project putting into operation, we strictly enforce
environmental management systems and regulations
of the Company to ensure that the relevant pollution
control and environmental protection measures are
implemented and effectively operated.

RiE -t RERRE

2. RREMFEE)

2.2 HrREs

TERMEEEE [RERE=
R | BILGIE - $HAAAEB K
it T ERIELREEET
2AMEE  AEREERE
a5 it T ANE & P BUS EE £ H)5
OB EENRETZE 12
HABREF T E AR IR IEHE - THE I
Ti2RFEBIGRIRIBEIE T
RERRRFREF ST AR
RE - BB EEREN
TERIRE  HERAELR
BRI MAIT AR B IRRIRE I
EMRE - HRIARISZGEM
RIEREBRSIEEL BWE
T

China Foods continues to promote various management and control systems on the control of pollutant

monitoring of emissions:

EREFEINERR

S ——

emission, mainly covering waste gas emissions, re-use of wastewater, management of solid waste and

HE R MAEEG SRS BFEEEREAENIESEE - T2REEFER  BKEA - EEE

D

Control of waste gases 1= 4IEEK,

Further promoted the re-modelling coal-fired boilers to natural gas boilers and the reduction of the emission of smoke and
dust, sulphur dioxides, nitrogen oxides and greenhouse gases in the subordinate plants of China Foods

- SHETERR T B TR RERSRTE  BOER - R

RE(Y SR ERAEBEN

>

Re-use of waste water EE7K @] B

The wine production enterprises under our wine category management department continued to strengthen its efforts in
implementing policies on water re-use and greywater re-use, and irrigation with treated water

BREEERTBREEEESFEE N THKERFBMPKEBEE - RIREAEERKERANER

&

Management of solid waste ZZE 1

for treatment

AEME=TETRERE

Adhered to the categorized collection process of hazardous and non-hazardous waste: recyclable waste (such as waste
residues from wine production) to be given to third parties for integrated use; hazardous waste to be given to qualified parties

BREEZNEEERY O BNERE - IDRERM(NFEBEER)EXRFE=TETEENA  BRERYMZHARE

[ <[4

Monitoring of emissions & B3|

Further strengthened the monitoring on the emissions of waste gases, waste water and noise to ensure the emissions attain

the applicable standards
E— P Iss SRR AR - KR BRNEDD - HERERI

o B A PR A T
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2.3
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)

B - HgREAHRE

Emission control (continued)

In 2016, China Foods invested RMB8.9 million into the
project of replacing coal-fired boilers with natural gas
boilers in plants located in Shaoxing, Huailai, Shacheng
and Yantai, etc., to reduce the emissions of atmospheric
pollutants from the boilers, and almost all enterprises
under the Company have phased out the use of coal-
fired boilers; at the same time, China Foods invested
RMB270,000 to upgrade sewage treatment stations in
Huaxia and Yantai to enhance their efficiency and reduce
the emissions of pollutants.

In addition, the Company has used its intranet system
to collect, summarize and analyze the data of relevant
environmental performance indicators, covering each
subordinate branches/subsidiaries, in order to further
strengthen the tracking and monitoring of environmental
performance of the Company, and based on this to
formulate the relevant improvement plans and future
development targets.

Energy saving

China Foods, in its production and operation, has
adhered to explore and promote feasible energy-saving
technologies and measures, and developed a series of
energy, water resources and materials management
practices and operating procedures such as the
Energy Saving Management System ({E5AEFEFEE T2 HI
f£)). In day-to-day operation, in accordance with the
Measures for the Management of Energy Performance
Assessment ((BEREE B X E R PHE)), the production
management departments issue energy consumption
targets to the subordinate production units on a regular
basis (monthly, quarterly, semiannual or annual), and
the production units report the energy consumption
data through the intranet system, while the management
departments assess the completion of the energy
consumption targets of each departments based on the
data. For those units which have not reached the targets,
the Company would timely arrange relevant employees to
analyze the causes and formulate improvement plans.

RREME (B)
2.2 PHIIEH ()

2.3
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. REBEEF(E)
(continued)
2.3 Energy saving (continued) 2.3 HigERRFE (&)

B o3
@&

a0
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A
\\%‘%*"‘%

Sujue

e FE

Energy saving

/7/7 . 0(\“9
cement sugel™

BAgd

During the year, China Foods launched a series of REERN - FREEMART — &
energy-saving projects, which achieved remarkable DIERREFSFEEZRIAR - BUS TH .
results: in 2016, the wine business department reduced EWRK : 2016 FEBEMmEE
water consumption to 1.7 tons of water/ton of product ERmiRE — S EMOKERNAS
through further implementing water recycling measures. B - KRR MK ERER T
The subordinate plants of COFCO Coca-Cola launched a 1L7MEK,WEEE S : FIER O A
number of energy saving projects, and achieved positive LTBIHFARET LA
results in the reduction of water consumption, fuel HZIAR - ERDKERERE
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions. BRELE AR E RS U EER
15T HEBHME -
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B - HgREAHRE

(continued)

2.3 Energy saving (continued) 2.3
Cases and results of China Foods’ energy saving projects

in 2016:

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2.

BT (&)

BRREREFE (AR)
016FHERmMENEERAEE
PR PISARR

i

COFCO Chateau YunMo

PEE RN

Gaining support from the World Bank, the Israeli drip irrigation technology was
introduced to 6,000 acres of vineyard, saving 130 cubic meters of water per acre
per year compared with the current irrigation method

Yellow River water irrigation: gained the right to the use of Yellow River water of
5.5 million cubic meters per year, and basically no longer taking groundwater for
irrigation, saving 2.3 million cubic meters of groundwater per year

B RIRITEE - 6,000 EE S| AABIRERN - REFER A N SHEE
BFAEIK 13032 75K

SIEER - BISEE 5508 A RERKEUKRE - BEAR FNEEU TKETTE
B SE DM TK230 87K

COFCO Coca-Cola Beijing

plant
g A A AT 24 R

Launched Sprite continuous mixing-up project, and reduced CIP washing process
of syrup tanks, saving 15,000 tons of water

FMRSEERAR @ B ERFECIP LB - BIKE 15BN

COFCO Coca-Cola Inner
Mongolia plant

B R O AT AR M

Used the waste heat of preform mold and bottle cap blowers for substitution
of hot-air blowers to warm the preform molds and bottle caps, saving a total of
130,000 kWh electricity, equivalent to 46.8 tons of standard coal/year in 2016
R - i E R VOR M AR BV 2R MR LR 2 - 2016 F HETEIE 2 13
BE 1A 46 8WIZER 4+

COFCO Coca-Cola Tianjin

plant
FRE A] O A SE KRR

Replaced 500-1 line heat shrinkable boilers, with the total saving of electricity
equivalent to 235.9 tons of standard coal in 2016

$1500-1 REVRIEHETT T EHR - 2016 FHABOEENSIFHEHK 235,91

COFCO Coca-Cola Shandong
plant

R R] ORI 24U R R

Implemented the LED contract energy management project, and replaced the
Company’s normal lightings by LED lightings with high-efficiency, saving 768,000
kWh electricity, equivalent to 276 tons of standard coal/year
BitLEDARIAREREIER - BARANT ERABELRLEZ LR LEDE -
FEHNAE76.8BE « A 276 MEIRER F

COFCO Coca-Cola Zhanjiang
plant

Focused on the remodeling of the spraying water pre-heating process of bottle
warmers and the process water cooling system of mixer, with the total saving of
electricity equivalent to 22 tons of standard coal; implemented linkage control
technology on air curtains, with the total saving of electricity equivalent to 15 tons
of standard coal in 2016

Implemented a number of water-saving measures (RO concentrated water
recycling, washing water linkage control, water-spraying linkage control, syrup
pump cooling water system), saving a total of 8,040 tons of water in 2016

China Foods Limited

Annual Report 2016
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B HRREARS

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. REBEEF(E)
(continued)
2.3 Energy saving (continued) 2.3 HigERRFE (&)

g A] H AT 4R T IR ST YT BR A ML T AR FB AN ZA BB LY M BR BB OIO% ANAR A FI R BRiE © 2016 F A HENAY
BENAIZER 220 : HEITRBME BN S - 2016 FHFAHOBEENAIZ
A 158

B T ARG OKEEROEKEIURFIA « hif/KEE B RS « B/ KE s
il - HEIR B REERLAIKEGE) - 2016 FF HEHE67K 8,040 1

COFCO Coca-Cola Hebei plant  Promoted the LED project, and replaced lightings in the whole plant, saving
170,000 kWh electricity from October 2016 to January 2017, equivalent to 61.2
tons of coal

Promoted the photovoltaic project, and established solar power supply facilities,
which is now in trial operation phase and is expected to reduce about 3,972 tons
of carbon dioxide emissions, about 38.6 tons of sulfur dioxide emissions, about
17.2 tons of nitrogen oxide emissions in the year

HEIEDERIER - FA2KBAEE - 20164 10 HE 2017 F 1 A £FHEAA
B 170,000/ - FTEEEHE61.20F

EBHAEREE - @UANGREMRERE  REERETRER - Bit2FRD
ZEUEBRBENAD 3,972 « — AL HERRA) 38.6ME « MEACYIHERA) 17.2 8

A& R O A 247R LR

In 2016, subordinate plants of China Foods not only 2016FEE  PHEER B ILMAEERITENE

achieved outstanding results in the implementation of
energy-saving and emission reduction, but also achieved
fruitful results in awarding energy-saving and emission
reduction awards from various sectors of the society,
including: 9 plants awarded the title of Excellent Water-
saving Enterprise of the beverage industry (#REITT2E
ENBEEF %), 8 plants awarded the title of Excellent
Energy-saving Enterprise of the beverage industry ( k¥t
TTEERREES ), 1 plant awarded the title of “Clean
Production Enterprise of Zhanjiang city in 2016” (“2016
FEHITMEZEERLE"), 1 plant awarded “Water-
saving Pacesetter Enterprise” (“Ei7KIZEM%E") and 2
plants awarded “Energy-saving Pacesetter Enterprise”
(“ENREARRRE).

WPERIER NMERS IR - FRERT
MR RE RS IR L BTRAR - B
TR IR TRESHKTREVKESD
KRS SR T MAREARTREREESD
EMSE - 1R THERE [2016 38T M5 &
HEEME B IR IREN EKEER
%] AR 2K TBERT [BIREIR R ]
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B - HgREAHRE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. BIREE (&)

(continued)
2.3 Energy saving (continued) 2.3 HigERRFE (&)

e Beijing plant e Jiangxi plant e Beijing plant e Jiangxi plant
iy L iy AN

e Hebei plant e Gansu plant e Hebei plant e Gansu plant
AL R HERK SAT3E R HERK

e Jinan plant e /hanjiang plant e Jinan plant e Hainan plant
pAEa) LT RR pAEa) yisT=a] e

e Shandong plant e Hunan plant e Shandong plant e Hunan plant
LI SRR R 1L SRR HAE R

e Tianjin plant
RIER

e Beijing plant awarded “Water-saving Pacesetter Enterprise”
It RBERT [k EERE ]

e Hebei plant and Shandong plant awarded “Energy-saving Pacesetter Enterprise”
SAAE RN R R RT [Eipe Rz |

e /hanjiang plant awarded the title of “Clean Production Enterprise of Zhanjiang city in 2016”
OISR [2016F ) ImEREE ] Bk

3. EMPLOYEE CARE 3. BETEE

China Foods adheres to the concept of "people-oriented", and PEEGREA[UAEKR] MBS &
in the development process, commits to provide fair and open ERERMBIEFR - ARBEALEEME
employment opportunities for those meeting the recruitment BB EHOALTRHEATFE - 2FAOR
conditions. At the same time, we attach importance in providing it o [ BMERASRKERE
a favorable career development platform and opportunities SRERTNBEZRFAMKS -
to university and college graduates, and hope to attract and FEARMITEWRSINBEEETEZHNE
develop more talents for the food industry. FEAA

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3. ETEE(HE)

3.1 Employment and employee benefits 3.1 ERESIER
China Foods strongly believes that talent is the FRERERBEEFHAT EAF
Company's most valuable asset and the basis for RBEENYE @ 2REQFAEF

ensuring the Company's sustainable development. The
Company, during operation, actively recognizes and
complies with laws and regulations on employment and
employees’ rights, such as the Labor Law of the People's
Republic of China({F#E AR EFMBEILEE)), the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hEAREMBELEERE)), and the Minimum
Wage Regulations({ (X T &R E)). The Company has
established a series of policies and systems on employee
recruitment, remuneration and benefits, attendance,
training and development, performance appraisal and
employee interests protection, etc., in order to protect
the basic interests of the employees and ensure that the
employees are not discriminated against by nationality,
age and gender, etc., while strictly prohibit the hiring of
child labor and oppose to any form of forced labor.

During the process of employee recruitment, the
Company's human resources department confirms
the accuracy of the age and identity of the candidates
through examination of the identity and qualification
check of the candidates, etc., and enters the personnel
information of the successful candidates into the China
Foods Human Resource Information Management
System, and the System is maintained regularly. The
Company enters into labor contracts with all employees
legally, and pays social insurance for its employees
according to regulations.

For working hour management, the Company has
established relevant systems of attendance-leave
management regulations, overtime applications,
performance management, etc., and the employees’
working hour is reviewed and managed by the
human resources department. If abnormal situation
is discovered, the human resources department
immediately communicates with the person in charge of
the relevant department with warning, and at the same
time arranges leave for the overtime employees.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.1

3.2

Employment and employee benefits (continued)

At the same time, the Company has promulgated the
China Foods Staff Handbook, helping its employees to
have a comprehensive insight of China Foods’ corporate
culture and values, its human resources management
system, employee benefits and rights protection, and
the relevant assessment criteria, etc. The Company has
also established a staff communication and complaint
mechanism to ensure that employees can raise their own
claims and opinions through reasonable channels.

As at 31 December 2016, China Foods’ total number
of employees was 14,015, and there was no significant
violation of relevant labor laws and regulations in China
Foods.

Employee development and training

China Foods has always adhered to the “people-
oriented” concept of talent, and committed to provide its
employees with a favorable development platform and
a complete training system, in order to achieve a joint
development of the enterprise and its employees. The
Company has formulated relevant management systems
and regulations such as the Training and Management
System of China Foods Limited (FEI& RAR AT
=3B IB4IEZ)Y) and the Regulations on Training of
New Employees of China Foods Limited ({1 E& &
RARE LHEIEERE)), and the Company’s
Human Resources Department is responsible for the
formulation and implementation of the annual training
plans. The human resources department of each region/
plant is responsible for cooperating with the Human
Resources Department of China Foods to promote the
implementation of the Company’s training programs, to
formulate the training plans for its region/plant and to
manage the relevant training records.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.2 Employee development and training (continued) 3.2

3. ETEE(HE)

BT REEI (F)

The training contents provided for the employees by the
Company mainly include:

Training for new employees — Induction training for new
employees, including
centralized training
organized by the Company
and professional training
organized by various
departments;

General skills training — Training to improve employees’
productivity and professional
skills;

Professional skills training— Training to enhance the
professional skills of the
employees, including series
of technical-based and
research and development-
based training;

Leadership training — Training to enhance the leadership
ability of the Company’s management
staff.

The training methods of the Company are classified
into internal training, external training and auxiliary
education, etc., including the internal training of COFCO
and China Foods, the employment of external trainers to
provide training for employees, and the arrangement for
employees to participate in external open classes and
education/degree education. In 2016, the total training
of China Foods provided for its employees accumulated
to 39,475 hours; the number of trained personnel was
2,588, accounting for 17.2% of the total number of
employees.

At the same time, China Foods has built a platform for
internal talent flow, launched internal open recruitment,
and promoted the reasonable flow of talent, which
provided abundant opportunities for the career
development of employees.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued) 3. ETEE(E)
3.3 Occupational health and safety 3.3 BEREHZZE

China Foods strives to create a safe and healthy working
environment for all employees. The Company actively
recognizes and abides by the laws and regulations
on occupational health and safety management at
national and local levels, including the Labor Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases ({2 AR M5 ZE MR8
%)) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Work Safety({FE ARKEMBEZ2EEE)). In
terms of occupational health and safety management,
China Foods has formulated a relevant system that
includes the occupational health management system,
production safety inspection system and employment
injury insurance management system, as well as a
series of operation safety procedures. The Company has
continued to promote the establishment and operation
of the occupational health and safety management
system in its subsidiaries/plants, as the system is one
of the important methods to enhance the occupational
health and safety management level of the Company. As
at the end of 2016, a total of 15 production units of the
Company (including China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd.,
COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd, COFCO Greatwall
Wine (Yantai) Co., Ltd under the wine business unit) and
12 subordinate plants under COFCO Coca-Cola were
certified to OHSAS18001 occupational health and safety
management system.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.3 Occupational health and safety (continued)

3. EIREE)
3.3 BERERZ2 (H)

On the implementation of the specific measures
provided by the relevant system: China Foods
requires its subordinate plants to set up safety and
environmental protection departments or quality and
safety departments, as well as to establish the position
of safety and environmental protection specialists
who is responsible for plant safety and the work on
environmental protection management; each plant has
formulated a compliance list on the EHS (environment,
health and safety) regulations, which is renewed and
maintained by specialists; the plants identify dangerous
operational positions and potential hazards, and provide
the operator with personal protective equipment (PPE)
such as goggles, helmets, safety gloves and safety shoes;
implement strict approval and supervision procedures
on special operations, and provide relevant protection
measures; for machinery and equipment which may be
harmful, adopt appropriate protective measures such as
adding protective cover on rotational component, which
once the protective cover is opened, the entire production
line will automatically stop, and will be examined by
production and maintenance staff.

At the same time, China Foods arranges annual body
check-up for all employees and arranges annual body
check-up on occupational disease for employees
of specific work types, and in accordance with the
relevant requirements, keep the employees’ records
for subsequent follow-ups. For example, each plant
requires employees who work under noise of over 80 dB
to undergo health examinations, and the examination
results are organized as a comprehensive report and all
employees are informed of the results.

In 2016, the number of work-related fatality in China
Foods was zero, and the number of loss of working days
due to work-related injury was 542 days.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY

In order to achieve the corporate mission of “offering nutritious,
healthy and delicious quality foods, and achieving value
maximization for customers, shareholders and employees”,
China Foods has always seen product quality assurance as the
top priority of daily work and strived to provide consumers with
satisfactory and reliable quality products. The Company has
continuously followed and strictly abided by national, regional
and industry laws and regulations relevant to product liability,
including the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
ChinaKpEARKXMBERMELZEE)), the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({F2E A R E
mE L)), the Measures for the Administration of Food
Production Licenses { B EERTAI BIENE)) and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests ({FFZE AR KEMBENH BEERIREE)),
etc.

The Company has also been committed in building and
enhancing the brand value of the Company, and strengthening
brand maintenance and intellectual property protection. In
2016, the Company’s Forture brand was awarded BrandZ™
Top 100 Most Valuable Chinese Brand (BrandZ &x E{BEF
B 5% h2 100 5%) for the sixth consecutive year, and became a
strategic partner of China’s space business, while Forture’s
edible oil was appointed as the specific oil used for the G20
Hangzhou Summit.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)
4.1 Food quality and safety

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

China Foods continues to promote the Company’s
quality and safety culture, and continues to enhance the
Company’s food quality and safety management level.
The Company has been promoting and implementing
the quality and safety system certification of grassroots
factories for six consecutive years and has been audited
by a third-party professional certification body. As at the
end of 2016, the Company’s enterprises officially put into
operation were all certified FSSC22000 and ISO9001
system. In the construction of management system, in
recent years, China Foods promulgated the China Foods
Limited Food Safety Management Regulation ((FF &
ERBRAFRMEEEEMRE)), the China Food
Limited Food Safety Accident Emergency Plan ({fF &
mERARRMEEFHESTER)), the China Foods
Labeling Management Guide (P EI R RiZEIZHE S
$57)), Product Recall Emergency Plan (¢ 5 3 Bl fE &
¥822)) and product quality inspection related systems of
all business products.

Product quality inspection

The subordinate production units of China Foods, on
one hand, conduct normal production inspection such
as raw materials, semi-finished materials and finished
products; and on the other hand, regularly hire qualified
third-party institutions to conduct regular inspection on
certain nation-required standards, while the other parts
of standards are supplementarily inspected by the self-
built laboratories of the production units, in order to
cover all standards of national requirements. Also, at the
beginning of each year, China Foods’ Quality and Safety
Management Department formulates the supervision
and sampling plan for the year and issues the plan to
various plants, and the plants quarterly conduct sampling
inspection on the finished products, semi-finished
products, raw materials, packaging materials, etc.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)
4.1 Food quality and safety (continued)

Special capacity building on food safety

Taking full account of the risks of upstream, downstream
and manufacturing steps, the Company, on the basis of
attaching importance to the traditional manufacturing
step of HACCP management system, has extended
forward to its production base, suppliers and new product
development and backward to the customer services
system.

On the basis of the original integrated planning,
integrated technology, integrated planting, integrated
procurement, standardized pesticide/fertilizer, full-
time supervision by the base management department
and systemized base management, the seven major
production areas of the Company’s Great Wall Wine have
formulated and completed the China Foods Grape Base
Quality and Safety Management Standards ({ R & &)
HEMESLE2EEIZA)), which includes the quality
during grape growing process and before harvest, and
pesticide residue standards into real-time monitoring, in
order to ensure that the sampling monitoring inspection
of the safely of the wine in the extracting season are
100% qualified, and that the pesticide residue and heavy
metal indicators of wine are safe and in control.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued) 4. E‘Eﬁ:l]l,%{ (&
4.1 Food quality and safety (continued) 41 EREENZ2(E)
Product quality inspection (continued) E EEmE (E)

Production inspection process of China Foods

HERmEERBERBRRE

Inspection of
semi-finished

Inspection of
raw materials

Outgoing inspection
of finished products
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The Company has constructed and completed a RAREETK T BB AEER
monitoring platform for wine hygiene standards, and SERTE - mIEEESEE
achieved results in a phase manner in precise instrument B A BEYI T EmEE F&.Ex
configuration and professional testing personnel training, MERGR - B BEEE AT
in which the investment into the wine monitoring platform " AZEEIS00E T %ﬁx@lﬂ?ﬁ
has reached RMB8 million, and the wine factories can 7] LABR R 52 18 E Rkl o

carry out test of 52 pesticide residue indicators.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)
4.1 Food quality and safety (continued)

B - HghERHRE

Special capacity building on food safety (continued)

In addition, the Company developed and completed
the SAP-QM sector, which integrated the quality and
technology standards and inspection and testing
procedures maintenance into the database of the
SAP, so as to ensure the information management in
respect of the material quality testing is applied to all
production process of the plants, such as procurement,
manufacturing, warehousing and sales, and to enhance
the traceability of the quality and safety standard of
the products. The Company has also applied two-
dimensional code technology to all wine factories and the
traceable precision has changed from the “production
batch” into “bottle”, and traceable management has
reached the industry’s leading level.

China Foods has established an emergency response
plan system for food safety incidents from the Company
to plants, and organizes drills on a regular basis. The
Company has established a preventive and early warning
mechanism through special control of significant risks,
in which the special treatments on significant hidden
dangers such as raw material plasticizer and wine
pesticide residues have achieved remarkable results,
and it has reached the target of 100% of passing rate in
sample testing. In addition, the Company has continued
to rationalize the Industrial Chain Risk Outline ({2
SEEEAANY) and prepared the risk list through risk
identification and assessment, and developed grading
and classification control measures, in order to solidly
implement the control measures of significant risks
into the normal dynamic control process and ensure
the applicability, completeness and effectiveness of
the risk outline. The Company has also established
a comprehensive product recall and tracing method,
verifying the response sensitivity and product traceability
of the product recall system through regular drills.

In 2016, there was no incident of recall of sold or
delivered products due to safety or health reason in China
Foods.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

4.2 Customer services system 4.2

4. EmEE(HE)

EFR&ZER

China Foods’ objective is to provide consumers with
satisfactory products of high-quality. The Company
has established a customer services center which is
equipped with information service system for recording,
transferring and handling information such as customer
complaints, enquiries and recommendation. The
Company has also developed a consumer complaint
handling procedures, and focusing on customer
complaints, responded to consumer demands with
greatest effort and with the handling attitude of open-
minded acceptance, careful investigation, positive
feedback and subsequent follow-up.

In 2016, the total number of calls received by China
Foods’ customer services center was more than 70,000.
Through the all-weather operation of the customer
services center, skilled customer services staff handled
customer advice and maintained a positive customer
relationship, which enhanced the reputation of China
Foods’ services. In 2016, China Foods invested a
larger amount of capital for the upgrade of customer
information services system, and promoted the use of the
online system platform in various major sales regions in
the country. The new system provided more convenient
and efficient customer services in major sales regions,
enhancing consumers’ experience and customers’
satisfaction after its upgrade.

China Foods’ customer services center has made an
internal service pledge — to follow-up an oral complaint
within 24 hours and to confirm a written complaint within
48 hours. The Company’s customer services staff of each
sales regions attach great importance to every case, and
make every effort to provide consumers and customers
with products and services of high-quality. In 2016,
China Foods’ rate of concluded consumer complaint
reached 96%, while customer satisfaction rate reached
98%.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

4.2

4.3

Customer services system (continued)

For the protection of consumer information, sales
orders and their delivery are all completed in the SAP
system, and only authorized personnel can access the
information and maintain the system, which effectively
protects the information and privacy of customers.

Advertising marketing and brand management

China Foods strictly abides by laws and regulations
relevant to advertising and marketing such as the
Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hEARFELMBAEEE)) and the relevant regulations
of COFCO. The Company, through COFCO, selects
the advertising companies and media companies
which meet the unified selection standards, and all
advertisements are approved by the Company’s legal
department in relation to risk-control aspect. For the use
of COFCO and China Foods’ trademarks in cooperation
with media and marketing, the Company has also
formulated corresponding strict assessment standards,
which after stringent review, China Foods proposes the
needs in the use of the brand’s trademark, and reports to
COFCO for approval.

In 2016, there was no violation of laws and regulations
relevant to the advertising and marketing of China Foods.

5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In order to ensure the Company’s product quality and safety
and control the risk from its origin, China Foods has continued

to strengthen its supervision on supply chain quality and safety.
The Company is committed to working with suppliers to build
a credible green supply chain, and has continuously improved

the operation management performance of its own and of its
co-operative partners.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

In order to ensure the quality of the raw materials purchased
by the Company, China Foods has formulated systems such
as the Supplier Management Control Procedure ({{tfERg &
HYEHIF2RF)) | the Rules Governing Supplier On-Site Review
Management (L EFIRZEIZEIEIEE)) and the Rules
Governing Quality Management of Raw Materials ({ Rk}
TEHEESIEYPHLR)). At the same time, China Foods has
formulated supplier assessment tools such as the China Foods
(Producer) On-Site Review Evaluation Form ({FPEIR & (4 E
) IRI5TEXFTEE)), the China Foods (Domestic Trader)
On-Site Review Evaluation Form ((FEIR R (EANE 5%)H
S 2EAZ A 7<) and the China Foods (Domestic Trader) On-
Site Review Evaluation Form ({FEIRm GERNE 57) REE
%2R )). The Company’s review on the social responsibility
of suppliers is one of the basic contents of on-site review,
which aims to judge comprehensively the environmental and
social risks of the suppliers, including whether the relevant
laws and regulations are complied with, whether the relevant
license is obtained, whether use of the product additives
comply with regulations, and whether the source of water
for agricultural products and discharge of waste water have
complied with local requirements, etc. For suppliers who fail
to meet the requirements, the Company immediately ceases
the corporation, and issues a rectification notice requiring
rectification be completed within an agreed period.

China Foods has established a supplier information
management system, implemented whole process
management from supplier access verification, regular audit
and performance evaluation, etc. The Company conducts a
comprehensive performance evaluation of suppliers on regular
basis, and exercises failing exit system on suppliers who fail.
After the end of each assessment, the contents of the supplier
information management system will be updated, and each
unit can timely carry out relevant purchase in accordance with
the updated list of suppliers.

The Company has also attached great importance to the
business ethics and contract spirits of suppliers, and has
signed the Agreement of Cooperation in Good Faith on Anti-
Commercial Bribery { R EFEREHIE G ERE)) with all
suppliers in order to prevent any improper procurements.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Statistics on the number of suppliers of China Foods by region

Region Statistics of 2016 (number)
North-east region 17

North China region 97

Central China region 6

East China region 112

South China region 39

North-west region 16

South-west region 15

Total 302

ANTI-CORRUPTION

“Integrity” is one of the core values of China Foods, and the
Company has “zero tolerance” on the violation of professional
ethics and business ethics. The Company has actively
identified and abided by the relevant laws and regulations such
as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#h%E
ARFEFIEFSEY), the Law of the People’s Republic of China
Against Unfair Competition ({FZE AR FEFBE R TN EE 55
7&)), the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery
KERZEI-BERBITRANEITRE)) and the Opinions
on Issues concerning the Application of Law in the Handling
of Criminal Cases of Commercial Briberies ({BIR 13
XERAERMEREZEETEENER)), and actively
implemented COFCO regulations relevant to integrity discipline
management.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

China Foods has long-term adhered to anti-fraud system
construction, and constantly improved its internal system
to strengthen the relevant mission training. The Company
has strictly implemented COFCO’s 14 Provisions on COFCO
Manager Professional Conduct (Revised Edition) (A 1g4%
BB TIE (1B85ThR) D), which stipulates that all
employees shall not “conduct business with relatives, use
their authorities to seek benefits for themselves and relatives
and friends, obtain benefits from subsidiaries and customers,
and take any form of rebate”. If the regulations are violated,
the employees will be subject to disciplinary action according
to the severity of the act, until legal liability is pursued. The
Company has also formulated the China Foods Limited Close
Relatives Avoidance System (P EBRMAR AT HER
#HE)) and the Rules Governing China Foods Limited Staff
Indiscipline Report Award (Trial) ( FEIE RAR AT ETE
LITARREREIESLE (377))) to encourage employees
to actively report any violation of laws and regulations and
the Company’s regulations and any act which damages the
Company’s economic interests and social reputation, while
setting reporting channels such as report line and e-mail.

The Company has attached great importance to the supervision
and management of the work of tender and procurement,
and implemented the Rules Governing China Foods Tender
and Procurement (P Bl R @ BERBEEIIE)), in
order to avoid incompliance such as fraud in the tender and
procurement.

In 2016, China Foods received 18 concern and clue reports,
handled and closed 18 cases, of which 2 corruption cases were
raised and concluded.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Inheriting the social responsibility philosophy of “being loyal to

national policies and making people’s life better”, China Foods
provides qualified foods for the market and consumers and at
the same time play the role of a corporate citizen, and strives
to reward to the society and is committed in the promotion
of the joint development and progress of the enterprise and
the society. The Company actively responds to the call of the
country, proactively understands the expectations and needs
of the community and its surroundings, and encourages its
employees to participate in various public welfare activities in
order to fulfill the corporate social responsibility.

In 2016, the Company launched a series of multi-form social
welfare activities, and the cumulative labor hours devoted
were about 77,218 hours, while the capital invested was about
RMB2.92 million.

Representative Cases

Education

° Donation to Dandelion School:
Dandelion School, located in Daxing District, Beijing,
is the first secondary school found specifically for the
children of migrant workers approved by the government
in Beijing, and is devoted in solving the education
difficulties of the children of migrant workers. In order to
protect the health of children, China Foods’ kitchen food
category management department has donated healthy
oil products to the school every semester, so that children
are accompanied by care and love on their growth paths.
In 2016, The Company continued to donate edible oil
products with a value of about RMB13,126 to Dandelion
School.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

“Flowers Blossom” (“JE5EZ52%") aid program:

Since 2011, COFCO Coca-Cola under China Foods has
launched a “Flowers Blossom” aid program, and through
its coordination, employees have involved in continuous
one-on-one donation for students in poverty areas. As
at the end of 2016, the program has been launched in
various plants such as COFCO Coca-Cola Hunan plant,
Jiangxi plant and Gansu plant. In 2016, the Company’s
accumulated donated funds reached RMB109,138.

Campus football promotion:

In recent years, COFCO Coca-Cola has carried out the
support of the development of campus football as its
long-term public welfare activities. In Shandong, Hunan,
Inner Mongolia and other places, COFCO Coca-Cola has
become an active promoter of the local campus football
development through continuous support, and cultivates
hopes for football in China. In 2016, the Company
continued to invest RMB883,938 for the activity.

Charity activities

Environmental protection charity: China Foods has
continued to launch environmental protection charity
activities such as “Earth Hour” and afforestation, in
order to influence more people and enhance their
environmental awareness and sense of responsibility. In
2016, the Company continued to invest RMB198,572 in
the relevant activities.

Water Purification Program: COFCO Coca-Cola has
actively participated in the “Water Purification Program”
charity project initiated by the Coca-Cola China United
One Foundation Fund (AIOAJ &R EBAEETES),
which aims to ensure that local children are protected
from the harm of unsafe drinking water through assisting
schools and communities in remote areas to install water
purification equipment. In 2016, the Company invested
RMB123,302 in the program.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

Charity activities (continued)

Voluntary beach-cleaning action: various plants of
China Foods located near coastal, such as Huaxia
Plant, Yantai Plant, Coca-Cola Qingdao Plant, Coca-Cola
Zhanjiang Plant and Coca-Cola Hainan Plant, regularly
organize employees to local beaches picking up litter,
carrying out beach-cleaning action, in order to arouse
the environmental awareness of the general public and
tourists through actions.

Love donation

China Foods Limited

Giving love to the community: China Foods has regularly
donated basic necessities such as food and oil products
to the needy residents of Chaowai sub-district in Bejing.
In 2016, the Company donated a total of RMB24,701 in
value of daily necessities.
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COFCO “Loving old clothing — Donation of clothing to the
poverty areas in Xinjiang” (“KE&EIHRE — MIFEE R
[2EBHEKHD") activity: In October 2016, the China Foods
actively responded to COFCQ’s call to donate more than
2,000 pieces of clothing to the poverty areas in Xinjiang.

Sending greetings to special groups: In 2016, various
plants of China Foods, sent the Company’s greetings to
traffic police and sanitation workers, making contribution
to creating a harmonious society. This year, the Company
invested a total of RMB200,505.
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RIR - HER

o

E/Di&%

F 4 -

BRPTESGIES|I R S|&k

EXCHANGE
Whether the contents
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject are covered in the report
ZEEH ZERS SEET ot TRENERBRE
Aspect Al:
Emissions 1 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
EBEAL — MR BERERRREREHN - MKk BEREERE
B EMNEESH
@B% : &
(o) BFHEITAREAF BRIEMEERRGIHER - P
2 KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. No
BB RIRAL L ERIE I S AR A R A
3 KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where No
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BIRETUEZALL RERBAHNE (UM E) R (WER) ZBE (WABESE B
i ~ BRI E) ©
4 KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where No
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BRAEIERALS FIEAAEREEYEE UEHE) R (ER) BE (MAGE &
2B - BIHEFMGE) °
5 KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where No
appropriate intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BRESIERALA FIEEREEEDRAS (UNRE) R (ER) wE (20 )
BESHEN - BERBTE)
6 KPI Al1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Yes
achieved.
BREBIEIZALS  HEIURKBERE e R FTSAR © =
7 KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Yes
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
FREBIEIEALE HMEBEEERESTEEYNTE  REEEENEHE =
RFFASRCR ©
Aspect A2:
Use of Resources 8 General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Yes
water and other raw materials.
B A2: — MR BRULAEIR (BIERER « K READEMED BBOR =
EIRE A
9 KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. No
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREBIEIZEA2.] REAESWERER SKEEER(NE - mslh) 2% &

BOATETERAE) RBE (MASESEN - §IAR
hestE)
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Py 8% : B RXPTESGHE 5l R5l &

EXCHANGE (continued) (&)
Whether the contents
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject are covered in the report
FEEH ZRmER BEBE ok ARENDRERE
10 KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of No
production volume, per facility).
FRESIEIEA22 BFKERTE (WABESB - BERMEAE) )
11 KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Yes
achieved.
BREBIEIZA2.3  TEIREIRE AT B RFTS AR © =
12 KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Yes
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
WREBIBIZA2.4  HEAUSKEVER/KR EAT A AR BERE - ARIEA KR E =
FTEIRFTERR -
13 KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) No
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BRESIEIEA2S ERMATASEMNASE (ANE) R (WER) 84 S
EBRIEE -
Aspect A3:
The Environment and 14 General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the Yes
Natural Resources environment and natural resources.
BT A3: — MR B IRET AR RRABRERKEARZENBOR 2
RIBERRAEIR
15 KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Yes
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BRESIEIEA3]l HAEREHEHRBERAABERNEAZEREEKNE &
BEBTENTE -
Aspect B1:
Employment 16 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EEBI: — MR B AT RE  BEREA  ITERE - RH - TE 2
(= e Zirfh - RIBRIAREAFRRERE
(@) B3R : &
(b) BFEHBEITABEAZZNEBEERROINER -
17 KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and No
geographical region.
BREBIEIEB1.l  RMR - ERER - FRAERI KRB S EIEBS LS - "
18 KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical No
region.
BARERIEIEBL.2  RIER - AR R EE D I E B IRARLLE - S
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Py 8% : B X PTESGHE 5l &R5l %

EXCHANGE (continued) (%)
Whether the contents
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject are covered in the report
ZEEE ZAmS BEBT ot TRENERBRE
Aspect B2:
Health and Safety 19 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
[EH B2: — MR EE BRRHZ 2 THERRRREREBEBELAED : =
REREZ S (@) BE: &
(b) BFEBITABERLENEIEELROIRER -
20 KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Yes
RESIEIEBR2.] BEI{ERERMBTH AR - Z
21 KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Yes
BRESIEIER22 HIBGHEAIIERE - &
22 KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Yes
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
BREMIEEB2.3 MM PTRAMBRERE R 216 - U RBERTRE =
BHE o
Aspect B3:
Development and 23 General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Yes
Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
[EHEB3: — MR BRI HE B BT TIERE A A LR BE AR - fit =
R R IE BIES
24 KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee No
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
FREMIEEBR3] RUFIREEFEMN(MNSREERE HREEES)EH )
HXIEEB DL ©
25 KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender No
and employee category.
FREMIEIEB3.2 RURIRESERED - FRESTKZ A TR - &
Aspect B4:
Labour Standards 26 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
[ETHE B4 — BB EE BEADT IEZE T aos 45 THy =
A TR (@) B : &

) ETHETARERZENHEBERRRPIHES -
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK Bt % : BRXFTESGIE S| &5l &

EXCHANGE (continued) (&)
Whether the contents
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject are covered in the report
FEEH ZRmET BERE b TRENERBRE
27 KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Yes
avoid child and forced labour.
BREMIEIEBA.]  HEMURAT B IR B AR R E T REHST - =
28 KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Yes
discovered.
FREBIEIEBA.2 MR B R IT R ERE BB RTINS 5 o &
Aspect B5:
Supply Chain
Management 29 General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Yes
supply chain.
B B5: —RIREE BIRMH A IRE KA S RBRBUR =
HrEEER
30 KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Yes
RABEEIEIZERE.]  RitEE SN EREE - =
31 KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number Yes
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.
FREMIEIEBRS.2 HMBEMERRERNEN  mERTEREMNNHE 2
FEE - AREBAEBOINAITRERTE
Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility 32 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
[ETE B6: — MR B BEMREERMRBNERELZS  BES  FERIL &
EmEE BEEURBRED
(@B &
(b) BFHBIT AR EAZBNMRBEEERROINER -
33 KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Yes
for safety and health reasons.
BRESIEIEBR6.1 BENEEREMBERE L 2RISR MZA B 2
ERia
34 KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Yes
and how they are dealt with.
RABHE IR B6.2 RN E m KRG R B B AR S 5% - =
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EXCHANGE (continued) (&)
Whether the contents
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject are covered in the report
EEEE EOfmT EEEIE EAEtEp ARENBRERE
35 KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Yes
intellectual property rights.
PREMIBIEB6.3  HEul B AR AR E R B o =
36 KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Yes
FRESIEIEB6.4 HEIVE B EREREMEIKIERT &
37 KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Yes
how they are implemented and monitored.
FREMIBIZB6.S  HEIUHE E BIRRE RFLBBCR - ARABRAIT REER =
abz~d
Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption 38 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
EMEB7: — MR BRI - $R - HEFRERER =
RESF (@B% &
(b) EFHBEITABERLENHEBERRAEOINER -
39 KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Yes
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
BREBIEIER7.1 NERPANEETASHEBIREVEFENESHA =
REMBE RFAER o
40 KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Yes
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
BARHERIEREB7.2 AP S AR B RIZT - AREERITRERFE ° =
Aspect B8:
Community 41 General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Yes
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
[ BS: — MR EE AR R 2 BRI R 2B PR AL R TR E MR L 7S P
HERIRE TEENEE AR AR AR o
42 KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Yes
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
FREMIEIZBRR.]l BIERERE(NHE  BREEH  SIF K BE X =
- 88F) -
43 KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

MR AEBIEIEBS.2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEARE

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is committed to achieve high
standards of corporate governance. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recognises the importance of maintaining a
good corporate governance standard and practices for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the interests of our shareholders,
investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions throughout the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “year”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Board (“Director(s)”), they
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based on
the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees in the
securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are required to comply with the
Employees Trading Code in respect of their dealings in the securities
of the Company. The terms of the Employees Trading Code are no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code.
During the year, the Company has not received any non-compliance
report from any of such employees.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and seven
non-executive Directors of whom four are independent as defined
under the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive Directors
constitute more than one-third of the Board and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the definition of the
Listing Rules.

At as the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven directors,
two of them are women. The educational background of the directors
cover accounting, business management, economics, social science,
history, engineering and political studies. The Company considers
that the current composition of the Board has the characteristics
of diversity, whether from perspectives of gender, professional
background and skills.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in Directors and
Senior Management Profile on pages 40 to 53 of this annual report.
To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors are involved
in any relationship as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has also maintained on its website (www.chinafoodsltd.
com) and the HKExnews website of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “HKEX") (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list
of its Directors identifying their roles and functions. Composition of
the Board, by category of Directors, is explicitly identified in all the
Company’s corporate communications.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in August 2013.
When determining the composition of the Board, the Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, work and professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All appointment of the members
of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate decision will be based
on merits of the candidates and the contribution they will bring to
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying and
nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board and, in carrying out this responsibility,
will give adequate consideration to the board diversity policy.

Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings as
and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings are
sent to Directors or Board committee members at least fourteen (14)
days prior to such meetings and Directors or Board committee members
can include matters for discussion in the agenda for such meetings if
the need arises. For ad hoc meetings, shorter notice may be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors at
least three (3) days before the intended dates of Board meetings or
Board committee meetings.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

It is the practice of the Company to record in sufficient detail
of the matters considered and decisions reached, including
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed, by the Board and
Board committees. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board
meetings and/or Board committee meetings are sent to Directors or
committee members (as the case may be) for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after
the meetings. The decision of the Board can be made by written
resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors for
inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring these
professional services will be borne by the Company.

In case a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, such matter will be discussed through
an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will
be present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

During the year, other than resolutions of the Board passed by
written resolutions, a total of five Board meetings, a special general
meeting and an annual general meeting at which the external auditors
attended were held and the attendance of such meetings by each
Director is set out below. In the following table, the figures in brackets
means the total number of meetings held during each Directors’
tenure throughout the year ended 31 December 2016:
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

EEg(R)
EEENAR (8

Special General Annual General

more details are set out in the circular dated 27 April 2016 and the poll results
announcement dated 1 June 2016.
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Meeting Meeting
Board Meetings (Note 6) (Note 7)
Name of Director Y EEZged RREIAE:  BRRAFAE-
(Hiz6) (B27)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Jiang Guojin B L% 5/(5) 111) (1)
Ms. Wu Wenting (Note 1) BXEBLL(Wit1) 3/(4) 011) 01(1)
Mr. Wu Fei (Note 2) RRFE (HiF2) /(1) 0/0) 0/(0)
Mr. Zhou Chenguang (Note 3) BRI FEE (H3) 0/(0) 0/(0) 0/(0)
Non-executive Directors kBTES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) BRIEE(FR) 5/(5) 0/(1) (1)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 4) ERELE(Hit4) 0/(0) 0/(0) 0/(0)
Mr. Yu Xubo (Note 4) FeR & (Hi7t4) 0/0) 0/0) 0/(0)
Ms. Liu Ding (Note 5) WT 2t (Ha£5) 0/(5) (1) 0/(1)
Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note 6) T2 BEE(Ht6) 3/(5) 1) (1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark st 4/(5) 111) 11(1)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI SEE 5/(5) 111) /(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FROEE 5/(5) 111) 11(1)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANESE 5/(5) /1) /1)
Notes: Bi5E
1. Ms. Wu Wenting has resigned as executive Director with effect from 15 1. RELTEBHEANITES - B20165F9A15H
September 2016. HBAERK -
2. Mr. Wu Fei was appointed as executive Director with effect from 15 September 2. RREERZEAHIITES - H20165F9H15H
2016. HBAERK o
3. Mr. Zhou Chenguang was appointed as executive Director with effect from 9 3. FRNEEEZTARITES  B2016F11 A9
November 2016. AR o
4. Mr. Ning Gaoning and Mr. Yu Xubo have resigned as non-executive Directors with 4. EREAELTRELERTIAENTES B
effect from 15 February 2016. 201642 A 15 B4R »
Ms. Liu Ding has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 9 November 5. WMT ZtEHEAIENITES - 520165611 A9H
2016. FEAERR o
Mr. Wang Zhiying has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 17 6. T REEFTRIENITES  A2017F1717
January 2017. ABAERN -
The special general meeting of the Company was held on 6 May 2016, and 7. ARAZBREHR KNG ER2016F5H6H &
more details are set out in the circular dated 19 April 2016 and the poll results 17 HIEHN BHIA201645E4 A 198 8@ K - A
announcement dated 6 May 2016. K& 201645 A6 AMERRRERAE -
The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 1 June 2016, and 8. ARAZBREAFAEEN2016F6 A1 HE

17 FHBEHNEEA201654 527 BEYEK - A
201666 A1 ANKRRRERAE -



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies, reviewing
and monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
supervising and managing management’s performance of the Group,
and approval of matters or transactions of a material nature or those
requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation of the strategies and
policies set by the Board to the management under the leadership of
the managing director.

Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in the annual report of the
Company.

During the year, the Board has performed the corporate functions by
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment and Election/Re-Election of Directors

Director who is appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director to the Board shall hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
election at such meeting pursuant to bye-law 94 of the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”). All non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) were appointed for specific
terms of three years. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws, each
Director (including those appointed for specific terms) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
the retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The directors
who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are set out on pages 122 to 123 of this annual report.

All current Directors have signed formal appointment letters with the
Company with respect to their directorship with the Company.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman or executive Directors’ briefings on the operations and
business of the Group and an induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding on his responsibilities under the relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. From
time to time, the company secretary disseminates information on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to the Directors to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
The Company will organise seminars on specific topics of significance
or interest for Directors and management staff and sponsors Directors
to attend professional development seminars or other programmes
where necessary.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (continued)

During the year, a training session provided by a professional institute
on the topic of HKEx Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide was organized for the Directors.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the year is set out below:
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Attending briefings,
seminars, conference and/or
reading materials relevant
to the director’s duties

and responsibilities

SHEERES - FIF

AEEER SHEEHE
Name of Director EEME EESHERBEEENER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TS %A v/
Ms. Wu Wenting (Note 1) Ryt (HaE1) 4
Mr. Wu Fei (Note 2) RRSTE (Hit2) 4
Mr. Zhou Chenguang (Note 3) AR &E (HE3) v/
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) BEFEE(EE) v/
Ms. Liu Ding (Note 4) T 2t (Hfit4) 4
Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note 5) Tr@EkE(HEs)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 6) BRESRAE(HE6)
Mr. Yu Xubo (Note 7) TR SEAE (KBt 7)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFBTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS v/
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI v/
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred = Eebtas v/
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANSEE v
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Wu Wenting has resigned as executive Director with effect from 15
September 2016.

2. Mr. Wu Fei was appointed as executive Director with effect from 15 September
2016.

3. Mr. Zhou Chenguang was appointed as executive Director with effect from 9
November 2016.

4. Ms. Liu Ding has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 9 November
2016.

5. Mr. Wang Zhiying has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 17
January 2017.

6. Mr. Ning Gaoning has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15
February 2016.

7. Mr. Yu Xubo has resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15 February
2016.

Directors’ Insurance
During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are segregate and
discharged by different individuals. Currently, the chairman of
the Board is Mr. Ma Jianping, while the managing director of the
Company is Mr. Jiang Guojin.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring all significant and key
issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a
timely manner.

The managing director of the Company is delegated with the authority
and responsibility to manage the businesses of the Group in all
aspects effectively, implement major strategies, make day-to-day
decision and coordinate overall business operation and regularly
report to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
defined terms of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee currently consists of four executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Guojin who is the chairman of this
committee, Ms. Luan Xiuju, Mr. Wu Fei and Mr. Zhou Chenguang.
Ms. Wu Wenting, a former executive Director, ceased to be a member
of the executive committee upon her resignation took effect from 15
September 2016.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com). The primary
responsibility of the executive committee is to deal with and supervise
the day-to-day business operations, management and administration
of the Group. There is no minimum meeting requirements and this
committee shall meet as and when necessary for proper discharge of
its duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee currently consists of four members,
including three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis who is the chairman of this committee, Mr.
Stephen Edward Clark and Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells and one non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. Ma Jianping. Mr. Wang Zhiying,
a former non-executive Director, ceased to be a member of the
remuneration committee upon his resignation took effect from 17
January 2017.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the website
of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the HKExnews website
of the HKEx (www.hkexnews.hk). The duties of the remuneration
committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Duri

ng the year, the remuneration committee held four meetings and

HFMESE (&)

AEERBITTHRER  BURBEKE

the attendance by each committee member is set out below: 2 HEERENINT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEENERR HESFRE

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Chairman) — ®=AN%c4 (F/E) 4/(4)

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS 3/(4)

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI AE 4/(4)

Mr. Ma Jianping BEREE 4/(4)
Mr. Wang Zhiying TrREE

(resigned on 17.1.2017) (R20174F 1 A 17 H#EEF) 2/(4)

The

following is a summary of the work performed by the

remuneration committee during the year:

reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management;

reviewed the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management in 2015;

reviewed the performance of all executive directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the
Board on bonus for 2015 for executive Directors and senior
management;

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of newly appointed executive Directors and the chief
financial officer; and

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of independent non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) falls into three
brands, 3 individuals in the range of HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000;
1 individual in the range of HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 and
1 individual in the range of HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000. Such
amount includes equity-settled share option expenses and pension
scheme contributions.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in the note 8 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Ma Jianping who is
the chairman of this committee and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan,
Francis.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the HKEx (www.hkexnews.hk). The duties of
the nomination committee are mainly to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors; make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and review whether non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are spending enough time to fulfill their
duties annually.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REZEEE ()
During the year, the nomination committee held four meetings and AFERNBITTIONE S BUZEEKE
the attendance by each committee member is set out below: ZHEERESAT
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Name of Committee Member EEGREHR HEEERE
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) SEYEE(EHE) 4/(4)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FIEHEE 4/(4)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRAEE 4/(4)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the nomination RELZEENAFERNNTIERENT ¢
committee during the year:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; ° iy Ti FEeMRE - RELRKEA
AN
A

e reviewed the time required from non-executive Directors o  BIIRTERT(BEBILIFNTE

(independent non-executive Directors) and assess whether B)FIERMAEE  UETHERES
they are spending enough time to fulfill their duties; B R MR A BITIE

e assessed the independence of independent non-executive o  FHEBNIERITESMEIE K
Directors; and

o made recommendations to the Board on the appointments of o MEARTEERENEZERITES

executive Directors and re-appointments of executive Directors ARBIIENTESRAESSRLE
and independence non-executive Directors. B o
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark who is the
chairman of this committee, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, Mr. Li Hung
Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the HKEx (www.hkexnews.hk). The duties
of the audit committee are mainly to assist the Board to ensure
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting, and ensuring effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are in place. The audit committee’s responsibilities also include
the appointment, compensation and supervision of the external
auditors. The audit committee is further authorized by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and may make
recommendations to the Board to take appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHR HIE,E3RE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Chairman) — #1254 (F/Z) 2/(2)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BirM s E 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TR E 2/(2)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RALGE 2/(2)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit
committee during the year:

o reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015;

° reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2016;

° reviewed matters relating to the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices;

° reviewed continuing connected transactions;

o reviewed external auditor’'s management letter;

o reviewed the internal audit results and the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems;

° approved the internal audit plan for the year 2016;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programs;

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
the external auditors of the Company;

° reviewed updates on the improvement of the Company’s
finance function;

° reviewed the audit fee proposal (including audit and non-audit
services) for the Group for the year 2016; and

° met with the external auditors to discuss the general scope

of their audit work for the financial year ended 31 December
2016.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s

external auditors are set out below:
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BB AT R B &
AEEN - AARTNINBZBETE X2

FEZ SV ERE ST -

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered Frig i AR 7% 2t EANER

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services FiH R 3,037

Non-audit services* IEEAT RS * 1,680

Total &5t 4,717
* Such services included, among others, interim review and compliance review

relating to continuing connected transactions and tax advisory services.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board, which is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements, receives monthly management accounts
and updates on the Group’s performance and financial position and
prospects. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Board adopted appropriate accounting
policies consistently, made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates. The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Company on a going-concern basis.

The Board is committed to presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s affairs to its shareholders
and the public in a timely manner. In 2016, the Company published
its annual and interim results within three months and two months
respectively after the relevant period end.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems through
the audit committee of the Board.

The Company has established an internal audit and supervision
department (the “Internal Audit Department”) which functions
independently and reports directly to the managing director and
the audit committee. The Internal Audit Department assists the
audit committee to assess the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and attends meetings of
the audit committee at least twice a year, and reports on the work it
has undertaken and its principal audit findings.

Management of the Company, under the Board supervision, is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has established its risk management and internal
control systems based on the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission) risk management
framework.

The Company identifies key risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for managing the risks to
acceptable level.

The Company has also designed and formulated appropriate policies
and control measures to safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use and disposition. The Company maintains reliable accounting
records, and financial information in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards and reporting requirements, and properly
identifies and manages risks that may affect the performance of
the Company. Such systems and internal controls are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. They can only provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
In respect of 2016, the Board has reviewed, through the audit

committee the work of the Internal Audit Department, and its audit
findings in relation to the risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance controls),
and considers the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company are effective and adequate, and that the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal controls. The qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions, and the training programmes, budgets and the resources
available to these functions have been reviewed and are considered
to be adequate.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Company formulated a whistle-blowing policy to ensure
inappropriate business practices and behaviors are properly
reported and handled. The Internal Audit Department has
established the discipline supervision department, and provided
an email address and telephone number for whistle-blowing and
formulated procedures for handling whistle-blowing matters, and
the whistleblower protection system. For cases in action, they are
recorded in detail, tracked and monitored, and report significant
accusations and results of treatment (if any) at a regular meeting to
the audit committee.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policies and Guidelines of China Foods Limited”, which has set out
clearly the procedures of identification, report and disclosure of inside
information to ensure that the Company is able to disclose inside
information properly on a timely, fair and lawful manner, and keep
confidential before such information is approved appropriately, so as
to enhance the market transparency and provide better protection for
shareholders and investors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to bye-law 68 of the Bye-laws and section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, shareholders shall have a right
to request the Board to convene a special general meeting of the
Company (“SGM”). Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less
than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company may
send a written requisition to the Board to request for convene a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three (3) months from the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the total voting rights of all the members of the Company; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting (in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution) or not less than one week before the general meeting (in
case of any other requisition). The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangement once a valid requisition is
received.

Procedures for Director’s Nomination and Election by Shareholders
If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at 33/F.,
COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,
(a) a written notice signed by such shareholder (other than the
proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
of his/her intention to propose such person for election and (b) a
written notice by the proposed person indicating his/her willingness
to be elected together with the personal information of the proposed
person as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and consent
of publication of his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given shall be
seven days (or such other period as determined and announced by
the Board). Such period will commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, once valid
notice is received.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and the Shareholders
Communication Policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with the Company’s information in a timely and effective manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the

investment community used by the Company including the following:

corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are
available on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsitd.
com) and the HKExnews website of the HKEx (www.hkexnews.
hk);

corporate announcements are made through the HKEx and
published on the website of the Company and the HKExnews
website of the HKEX;

corporate information is made available on the website of the
Company;

annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and management executives; and

Tricor Progressive Limited, the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and

concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together with

his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address or fax

number, via the company secretary whose contact details are as

follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws during the financial year 2016. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-
laws is available on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.
com) and the HKExnews website of the HKEx (www.hkexnews.hk).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

With a view to ensure the Company’s sustainable development and
to enhance shareholder values, the strategic objectives of investor
relations function have been clearly defined as follows:

Strategic objectives:

1)  to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant in
the branded consumer foods industry in China, that is in line
with our strategic positioning within the COFCO Group;

2) 1o build a long-term and trusting shareholder base;

3)  toenhance the knowledge of our investors about the Company;
and

4)  to understand the key concerns of the investment community
and provide timely feedback to our management.

Interactions between the Company and the investor community:

We believe effective communication and fair information disclosure
builds investor confidence, and also facilitates constructive
feedbacks for continuous improvement.

In 2016, apart from disclosing transparent and fair financial and
operational information in annual and interim reports and having
direct communicate with shareholders at annual and special general
meetings, we have also effectively bridging the Company and the
investment community through:

° Interactive communications between our management and
investors/analysts directly at post-results briefings, investor
conferences and regular investor meetings; and

° Collection of market feedback, such as research reports and
market views, for the review of our management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which were approved by the Board
on 28 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries and associated
companies operates three principal businesses involving beverage,
wine and kitchen food.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2016 and material factors underlying its results and
financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
as well as the Group’s business outlook can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman Statement”, “Statement from Managing Director”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, and “Notes to Financial
Statements” in this report. Such review and discussion from parts of
this Directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
is contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 54 to 91 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 92 to 113 of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the

state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 268.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.2
cents (31 December 2015: HK1.0 cent) per share for the year ended
31 December 2016, subject to the approval obtained at the annual
general meeting to be held on Thursday, 1 June 2017. An interim
dividend of HK1.2 cents per share was paid on Friday, 14 October
2016 (30 June 2015: Nil). The proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 will be distributed on or after Friday, 7 July
2017 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 16 June 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Friday, 26 May 2017 to Thursday, 1
June 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 25 May 2017.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 15 June 2017 to Friday, 16 June 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The ex-dividend date will be Tuesday, 13 June 2017. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 14 June 2017.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 269. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s authorised or issued
share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 November 2006
(the “Option Scheme”) which has a term of 10 years and expired on
20 November 2016. All outstanding options granted under the Option
Scheme will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme. No further option will be granted
under the Option Scheme. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the
Board on 28 March 2011, the vesting and exercise periods for the
options granted under the Option Scheme have been modified. The
following are the principle terms of the Option Scheme:

1.  Purpose of the Option Scheme
To attract, retain and motivate senior management personnel
and key employees of the Company, and to provide eligible
participants with an opportunity to acquire interests in the
Company so as to encourage eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2. Participants of the Option Scheme
Participants of the Option Scheme include (i) any executive or
non-executive directors (excluding independent non-executive
directors) of any members of the Group; (ii) any senior
executives, key technical staff, professional staff, managers
and employees of any members of the Group; or (iii) any other
individuals as may be proposed by the Board.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under any other share
option schemes of the Company (if any) are in aggregate equal
to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Option Scheme, i.e. 178,508,197 shares.

As at 31 December 2016, a total of 22,120,000 shares may be
issued by the Company if all share options which were granted
under the Option Scheme have been exercised, representing
approximately 0.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Option
Scheme

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
(the “Individual Limit”) at the relevant time. Any further grant
of options in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Period within which an option must be exercised

The directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which an option may be exercised, save that in
any event such period of time shall not exceed a period of seven
years commencing on the date of acceptance of the option and
expiring on the last date of such seven-year period, subject to
early termination thereof as provided in the Option Scheme.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

An option must be held for a minimum period of two years from
the date of grant before it can be exercised.

The first batch of share options, which were granted on 27
September 2007, has lapsed on 27 September 2014 due to the
expiry of the exercised period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

6.  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised (continued)
The options granted after 28 March 2011 are subject to the
following new vesting schedule:

ﬂﬁﬂ’i’f’é*f_J (%)

BRETEALABREZRERR

(&)

7220114 3 A 28 H AR & K eV B AR i
ABRIA TR B RR )

Maximum
percentage

of options which
may be exercised

Periods BZHTE

R BREZES

— Upon and after the second anniversary of the ~ — B#&H B EI#EsHE — FFE 20%
grant until the third anniversary of the grant LEBREE=FF

— Upon and after the third anniversary of the - BRPEHRE=ZATF 40%
grant until the fourth anniversary of the grant LEBEFENET

— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the - BRI BHRETENEF 60%
grant until the fifth anniversary of the grant LEBREERRT

— Upon and after the fifth anniversary of the - BRP BRI ERAF 80%
grant until the sixth anniversary of the grant LEBEERET

— Upon and after the sixth anniversary of the - BRI BHREE AT 100%

grant until the seventh anniversary of the grant LEBEELRT

7. Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance
of the option
The offer of an option made pursuant to the Option Scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer and
the amount payable on acceptance of the option is HK$1.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer; (b) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
or (c) the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) ﬂﬁﬂﬁ*g“f_J (&)
9.  Duration of the Option Scheme 9. BRETEZENH
The Option Scheme is valid for ten year from the date of FEARERT 8 B 5N 2 BB 10 A 1ER,
adoption and expired on 20 November 2016. WEM2016F 11 H20 BfE)H °
10. Movement of share options 10. BREZEE
Details of the movements in the share options during the year HE2016F12A31BILFE - BRK
ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: EZEEFEIFIOT ¢
Number of share options
BRENEE
Exercise Exercise
Name or Granted Exercised Lapsed period price
category of Date of grant of At during during during At of share of share
participant share options  01.01.2016 the year the year the year 31.12.2016 options options
SEENS Bt R2016%F R2016% BRE BRiE
RER ERERN 1B1B  EakE  FRTE FAXN  12A31H L] %8
HK$
AT
Current Director
RiEES
Mr. Ma Jianping 29.03.2011 600,000 - - - 600,000 29.03.2013- 4910
SRTEE 28.03.2018
Mr. Wu Fei (Note 1) 29.03.2011 700,000 - - - 700,000 29.03.2013- 4910
RVEE W) 28.03.2018
Former Directors
HEES
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 2) 29.03.2011 740,000 - - (740,000) - 29.03.2013- 4910
EREERE(Wi2) (Note 5) 28032018
(h73£5)
Ms. Liu Ding (Note 3) 29.03.2011 600,000 - - (120,000) 480,000 29.03.2013- 4910
NTxtW#3) (Note 5) 28.03.2018
(h73£5)
Ms. Wu Wenting (Note 4) 29.03.2011 600,000 - - - 600,000 29.03.2013- 4910
RERL (Hit4) 28.03.2018
Other employees 29.03.2011 21,840,000 - - (2,100,000) 19,740,000 29.03.2013- 4910
HibfER (Note 5) 28032018
(Hr:25)
Total
ay 25,080,000 - - (2960,000) 22,120,000

hPRERARATF 20164 .119||.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
10. Movement of share options (continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. Wu Fei was appointed as an executive Director on 15 September
2016 and 700,000 share options was granted to him under the Option
Scheme on 29.3.2011.

2. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from
15 February 2016.

3. Ms. Liu Ding resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 9
November 2016.

4., Ms. Wu Wenting resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15
September 2016.

5. During the year, 2,114,000 vested share options lapsed upon the expiry of
stipulated period in accordance with the term of the Option Scheme, while
846,000 unvested share options lapsed upon the resignations of Mr. Ning
Gaoning and Ms. Liu Ding, both former Directors, and certain employees
of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKS AGREEMENTS

Other than the Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered by the
Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 42 and 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to approximately HK$6,246,834,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 5% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately
66% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting for
approximately 46%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the other four largest suppliers
or the five largest customers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Guojin

Ms. Wu Wenting (ete I

Ms. Luan Xiuju Mete2)

Mr. Wu Fej (Note 3

Mr. Zhou Chenguang Mt

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (et

Mr. Yu Xubo (ete®

Ms. Liu Ding (et ”?

Mr. Wang Zhiying Nte 8

Mr. Qin Yelong (et

Ms. Xiao Jianping (ote 10

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells (o 1

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Notes:

10.

11.

Ms. Wu Wenting resigned as an executive Director with effective from 15
September 2016.

Ms. Luan Xiuju was appointed as an executive Director with effective from 17
January 2017.

Mr. Wu Fei was appointed as an executive Director with effective from 15
September 2016. Mr. Wu has tendered his resignation as an executive Director
with effect from 1 April 2017.

Mr. Zhou Chenguang was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 9
November 2016.

Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 15
February 2016.

Mr. Yu Xubo resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 15 February
2016.

Ms. Liu Ding resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 9 November
2016.

Mr. Wang Zhiying resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 17
January 2017.

Mr. Qin Yelong was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 17
January 2017.

Ms. Xiao Jianping was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 17
January 2017.

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells has tendered his resignation as an independent non-
executive Director with effective from 1 April 2017.

All Directors including non-executive Directors and independent non-

executive Directors are appointed with specific terms.

According to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws, any director appointed by

the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director to

the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the

Company after his appointment and be subject to election at such

meeting. In this regard, Ms. Luan Xiuju, Mr. Zhou Chenguang, Mr.

Qin Yelong and Ms. Xiao Jianping will retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the Bye-laws.
Accordingly, Mr. Jiang Guojin, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark and Mr. Li
Hung Kwan, Alfred will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and that a confirmation of independence has
been received from each of them.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGMENT
PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management are set out on pages 40 to 53 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for election or re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur or about the
execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into
or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
OPTIONS

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
issued any convertible securities, warrants or options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”) as recorded in the register of interests of the Company
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
the “Discloseable Interests”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)

(A)

Discloseable interests in the shares and underlying shares of

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERIE

EERROREBERN 2ERR

xE ()

(A RAERXFAZRHOREERO ZARE

of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e. 2,797,223,396

shares.

the Company R
Total
number of Approximate
Number of  shares and percentage of
Name of Capacity/ Number of  underlying  underlying issued
Director Nature of interest shares held shares held shares held shares
Fris 4 BT
Frig FristEE REBERG 87
EENE 51/ mHE BEE BREOEE By HHEDLE
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Ha1) (Hizz2) (17 3)
Mr. Ma Jianping Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
BEELEE EnlEA
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 426,000 - 426,000 0.02%
TEE A EnlEEA
Mr. Wu Fei Beneficial Owner 100,000 700,000 800,000 0.03%
RmEAE EmEEA
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells Beneficial Owner 200,000 - 290,000 0.01%
BB E EnEEA
Interest of Spouse
B (Rt = 90,000 -
Notes: Bt EE
1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity derivatives 1. ANBIRED 2 5F B (BASTE T A anfER
such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. W R F S IR EFBRIN) o
2. Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company under share 2. IREERETEMES R L OEREET
options granted to Directors pursuant to the Option Scheme. AAREBERD MR -
3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares 3. AL IRIBEAARR 201612 A31 A

2 BRI agk (B12,797,223,396 A% A%
9)atE °

o A A B A E
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=
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)

(B) Discloseable interests in the shares and underlying shares

of an associated corporation, China Agri-Industries Holdings

Limited (“China Agri”)

EERKROREBERD 2EER

P

(B)

= (&)

R—FEBEE (FEEHRIZERER D

B[P EEH ) 2R RABRERAD 2

AR EELS

Total
number of Approximate

Number of  shares and percentage of
Name of Capacity/ Number of  underlying  underlying issued
Director Nature of interest shares held shares held shares held shares
P 12 e 1T
FriE FrisiEE  RABRARR 2 8y
EENE B1ip/ #EmEME BRHEEAR BRHOEE wy HHESL
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(K1) (Hiz%2) (H1#3)
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 100 - 100 0.00%
IR A EnEEA
Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 39,000 583,000 622,000 0.01%
T RBEAE (HiE4) EnlEA
Notes: FRE -
1. Long positions in the shares of China Agri, other than equity derivatives 1. RERBRD 2 FE (RAPTET MR
such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. fEtE - SRARAEE Sk AT EH R AN) ©
2. Long positions in the underlying shares of China Agri under share options 2. R B h S AT Bl D B AR TR
granted pursuant to a share option scheme of China Agri. TREERERRGD T8 -
3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares of 3. B IRERBIEHAMN 20164 12 A 31

China Agri in issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e., 5,249,880,788 shares.

4., Mr. Wang Zhiying resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from

17 January 2017.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors nor their associates had any other Discloseable

Interests.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMATRRG KA
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS BERG 2R RKXR

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of MR2016F 12 A31 8  IBIEES LS &0

substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the EXVEE 2 REIDEMAMEARAF] IR
Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of B A K EE (51] 28 336 IR AL ek AN EIFT
Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests of the FEZHEDELMA  EERENARAFIR
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, were as 7 RAARERR D 2 R SO B AR T -

follows:

Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the REQXBRGREERG ZFEEH
Company

Number of shares held (Note 1)

RO B (H7 1)
Directly Through Approximate
Name of beneficially controlled percentage of
substantial shareholder owned corporations Total issued shares
HERITROHN
FTERRER BEEERRE ZBBRTELE e BHREIHE
(Note 2)
(Hiat2)
China Foods (Holdings) Limited 2,072,688,331 - 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FERMGER) BRAR
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
HiesE (H8)BRAA (Note 3)
(H15t3)
COFCO - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
Hig (Note 4)
(Brst4)
Notes: M5E -
1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity derivatives such 1. AAEIRG e (RASTETANERE - 2
as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. & A ol ATIR AR B BRHN) ©
2. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares of the 2. BOLLIRBARARN2016F 12 A31 Bz %
Company in issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e. 2,797,223,396 shares. 1T 482 (BN 2,797,223,396 AEME(D ) 5HE ©
3. COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)”) was deemed to be interested in 3. FRERE (FB)BERAA([HREEE D BERR
2,072,688,331 shares held by China Foods (Holdings) Limited which was a FEERIZR)ERAR(ATEETBNEENE
wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO (HK). AR FTEE 2,072,688,331 BRAR A HEH A o
4. COFCO was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held by China 4. FRERARTERER(ER) BRAFKH
Foods (Holdings) Limited and COFCO (HK) which were wholly-owned subsidiaries RESMAPENZENBRR) e
of COFCO. 2,072,688,331 I P A= -
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
were not aware of substantial shareholders and other persons who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company. These transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing continued
transactions and are subject to reporting requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

L. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTERESTS AND
ASSIGNMENT OF DEBT OF PRIZED DEVELOPMENTS
LIMITED
On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into
an equity transfer and debt assignment agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Tops Properties Limited (“Top
Properties”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company
will transfer its equity interests and shareholder’s loan,
each relating to the Prized Developments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, to Tops Properties for a total
consideration of RMB611,000,000, subject to potential
adjustments as disclosed in the Agreement (the “PD
Disposal”). Details of the Agreement were disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 3 January 2016
and a circular of the Company dated 19 April 2016.

Tops Properties is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO
Property (Group) Co., Ltd., which is 45.67% owned
by COFCO, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, hence, a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The PD Disposal was approved by the independent
shareholders at the special general meeting convened on
6 May 2016 and the transactions under the Agreement
were completed on 31 May 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
I.  CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2. DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN COFCO
JUNDING VINEYARD CO., LTD. (FEEEBHER
2F]) AND SHAN DONG COFCO JUNDING WINES &
SPIRITS CO., LTD. (ILRFPEEEBEERAF)

On 12 September 2016, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries, COFCO (BVI) No. 30 Limited (“BVI 307),
entered into an asset and equity transaction agreement
with Longhua Group Co., Ltd. (BEEEHR A F])
(“Longhua Group”) (the “Junding Vineyard Agreement”),
pursuant to which BVI 30 shall sell its 55% equity
interest in COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd. ( IEE
TEEEAMRARF) (“Junding Vineyard”), to Longhua
Group at a consideration of RMB1.0. As a condition for
BVI 30's selling its equity interest in Junding Vineyard,
Longhua Group must assume the outstanding debts
owed by Junding Vineyard to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. On the same day, COFCO Wines &
Spirits Co., Ltd. ( FIEBEEBRAF) (“COFCO Wines
& Spirits”), another of the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into an asset and equity transaction
agreement with Longhua Group (the “Junding Wines &
Spirits Agreement”), pursuant to which COFCO Wines
& Spirits shall sell its 55% equity interest in Shandong
COFCO Junding Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd. ( [IEF1E
EIEBEBRAR) (“Junding Wines & Spirits”) to
Longhua Group at a consideration of RMB1.0. As a
condition for COFCO Wines & Spirits, selling its equity
interests in Junding Wines & Spirits, Longhua Group
must assume the outstanding debts owed by Junding
Wines & Spirits to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. Details of Junding Vineyard Agreement
and Junding Wines & Spirits Agreement were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 12 September

2016.

Junding Vineyard and Junding Wines & Spirits are
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company;
and Longhua Group is a substantial shareholder of both
Junding Vineyard and Junding Wines & Spirits, hence,
Longhua Group is a connected person of the Company at

the subsidiary level under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.

DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN COFCO
JUNDING VINEYARD CO., LTD. (FEEEBHER
‘27]) AND SHAN DONG COFCO JUNDING WINES
& SPIRITS CO., LTD. (WRFEETEBEEEBRAR)
(continued)

The transactions under each of Junding Vineyard
Agreement and Junding Wines & Spirits Agreement were
completed on 7 December 2016.

ACQUISITIONS OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN THE
CERTAIN BOTTLING COMPANIES IN CHINA

On 17 November 2017, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited (“CCBL"), a 65%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, The Coca-Cola Company (“KO”) and Swire
Beverages Holdings Limited (“Swire”) entered into
a master agreement (the “Non-Public Sale Master
Agreement”), pursuant to which, among others, CCBL
shall procure its wholly-owned subsidiary (the “CCBL
Purchaser”) (1) to purchase from certain subsidiaries of
KO (“Non-public Sale KO Sellers”) their respective equity
interests in eight bottling companies in China (“KO-CCBL
Sale Equity Interests”) at an aggregate base consideration
(subject to adjustment) of approximately RMB2,900
million; and (i) to purchase from a subsidiary of Swire
(“Non-public Sale Swire Seller”) its equity interest in a
bottling company in China (“Swire-CCBL Sale Equity
Interest”) at a base consideration of approximately
RMB487 million (subject to adjustment) (collectively, the
“Acquisition”).

KO is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under the Listing Rules, the acquisition
of the KO-CCBL Sale Equity Interests under the Non-
Public Sale Master Agreement and the entering into
relevant equity transfer agreements constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
I.  CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

ACQUISITIONS OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN THE
CERTAIN BOTTLING COMPANIES IN CHINA
(continued)

Written shareholders’ approval was obtained on
17 November 2016 from China Foods (Holdings)
Limited which holds 2,072,688,331 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 74.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the announcement, approving, among others, the
Acquisitions, the Non-Public Sale Master Agreement
and other transactions contemplated thereunder. As the
conditions set out in Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules are
satisfied, no general meeting of the shareholders of the
Company was convened for the shareholders’ approval of
the Acquisitions, the Non-Public Sale Master Agreement
and the other transactions contemplated thereunder
pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Acquisitions and the Non-Public Sales
Master Agreement were disclosed in announcements of
the Company dated 10 February 2016, 23 August 2016,
17 November 2016 and 24 November 2016; and the
circular of the Company dated 21 December 2016.

II.  CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

2014 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION OF PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and COFCO
entered into a mutual provision of products and services
agreement for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017
(the “2014 COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014 COFCO
Mutual Provision of Products and Services Agreement,
the COFCO Group and COFCO’s associates shall supply
certain raw materials, consumer products, packaging
materials and other products owned, manufactured, or
resold by the COFCO Group and COFCO’s associates and
provide property leasing and other services to the Group
while the Group shall supply certain consumer products
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

China Foods Limited

2014 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION OF PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES AGREEMENT (continued)

and other products owned, manufactured, or resold by
the Group and provide information technology services
and other services to the COFCO Group and COFCO’s
associates. Details of the 2014 COFCO Mutual Provision
of Products and Services Agreement were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 8 December
2014 (the “2014 Announcement”) and a circular of the
Company dated 10 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, (a) the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the COFCO Group
and COFCO’s associates for the purchase of products,
raw materials, packaging materials, services and others
was approximately RMB10,764 million; and (b) the total
amount paid/payable by COFCO Group and COFCOQO’s
associates to the Group for the purchase of consumer
products, services and others was approximately
RMB312 million.

2014 BEVERAGE BASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Tianjin Jin
Mei Beverage Company Limited (“Tianjin Jin Mei”),
a connected person of the Company, entered into a
beverage base purchase agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2015 and expiring
on 31 December 2017 (the “2014 Beverage Base
Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014 Beverage
Base Purchase Agreement, members of the Group with
prior written approval from Tianjin Jin Mei shall purchase
beverage bases from Tianjin Jin Mei at prices determined
by Coca-Cola Beverages (Shanghai) Company Limited
(“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”). Details of the 2014 Beverage
Base Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the 2014
Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to Tianjin Jin Mei
for the purchase of beverage bases was approximately
RMB1.13 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

2014 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai), a connected person of the Company,
entered into a concentrate purchase agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014
Concentrate Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2014 Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members of
the Group with prior written approval from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates from Coca-
Cola (Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-Cola
(Shanghai). Details of the 2014 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola (Shanghai)
for the purchase of concentrates was approximately
RMB1,430 million.

2014 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai) Limited
(“Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai)”), a connected person
of the Company, entered into a still beverages purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the
“2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain
members of the Group shall purchase still beverages
from the Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution
and resale within designated areas in the PRC. Details
of the 2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola Bottlers
(Shanghai) for the purchase of still beverages was
approximately RMB1,606 million.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

BRERZ RFEBRERS (&)

FERERS (K)

3.

2014 FRERFE S
2014412 A8H » AR F|EEA]
AA2E( L8) (EARARREE
AT)RISDR MR R Z -
[RA=F B2015F1A1H#
Z2017%12A31H1E([2014%F
BRRIREHZE D - BIE2014
FREREE RS Canag
(B8 FrEmmERNNEEMK
BT ORI (L8 ) EETME
e O 4 ( L)8) IRBRE
MR o 2014 F R R R IE R H D
HIBEER 2014 FREPIFE -

HZE2016%12 A31HILEE -
RE B BRI R AR R A1 7] O 7] 4%
(B3I AR EEN A
AREE1431ETT »

2014 FREREHHEB G R

MR2014F 12 A8H » AR H
ATARTEESRAE R R (8)
ERAR([A O 2% ( Lk
) D) (AR RRIBEALT)R
YN EREBMERERZ - AR
A= B2015F1A18 #
F20174 128318 (2014
FTERKEHRERZE]) - RIE
2014 F T EREEHRE R -
REEE T E f5 M n] O Al 45
mE (L8 RETSRERRN
FPRIEFTEEADHREBE -
014F T E R EBEBHES
HIBEER 2014 FREPIFE -

HE2016F12A318I-FE -
REBFBEHBE TS REL A A
AR (L8 AR
BEEHBARE16.061ETT °

PEERAERAE 20164

il

133




134

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

China Foods Limited

5.

2014 ZIJIANG PROVISION OF PACKAGING
MATERIALS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverage
Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Bottler”), a deemed subsidiary of the
Company and Tianjin Shifa Zijiang Packaging Co., Ltd.
(“Zijiang™), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a provision of packaging materials and services
agreement for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017
(the “2014 Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials
and Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014
Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and Services
Agreement, Zijiang shall supply packaging materials and
provide conversion services and other services to Tianjin
Bottler. Details of the 2014 Zijiang Provision of Packaging
Materials and Services Agreement were disclosed in the
2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total amount
paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang for the
purchase of packaging materials and conversion services
was approximately RMB34 million.

2015 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 11 December 2015, the Company, COFCO Foods
Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd. (“Sales & Distribution
Company”) and COFCO Finance Corporation Limited
(“COFCO Finance"”), a connected person of the
Company, entered into a financial services agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016
and expiring on 31 December 2018 (the “2015 Financial
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to which, COFCO
Finance shall provide the Group depository services, fund
transfer services, entrustment loan services and the other
financial services. Details of the 2015 Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 11 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the maximum
daily deposit amount (including the corresponding
interest accrued thereon) placed by the Group with
COFCO Finance was approximately RMB397 million.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the report of the Company’s auditors,
and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors are considered to have interests in any
business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of
the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERIE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB200,000.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditors of the Company
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period
is set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young shall retire and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forth coming annual general meeting, a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

MA Jianping
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report

EY

To the members of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 143 to 268, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B ZHE RS ()

Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill

Management performs goodwill
impairment testing annually.
The estimation of the value in
use of cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated is
complex and involves significant
management judgements and
estimates, such as forecasted
cash flows, revenue growth
rates and discount rates, which
are sensitive to the expected
future market conditions and
the cash-generating units’ actual
performance.

Related disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 17 to the financial
statements.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included
the evaluation of key
assumptions including those
related to the revenue growth
rates, gross profit margin

and discount rates applied.

In performing our audit
procedures, we involved
internal valuation specialists
to assess the assumptions
applied by benchmarking
against independent data. We
reviewed historical financial
performance of the business
units and compared with the
original forecast to evaluate
the accuracy of management’s
budgeting process. We also
evaluated management’s
assessment of the sensitivity
of the Group’s impairment
model to reasonably possible
changes.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Provision for inventories

Inventories constituted a
significant portion of total assets

as at 31 December 2016 and the

Group was exposed to risks of
excess and obsolete inventories

as a result of the macroeconomic

challenges. The determination of
the provision amount is complex

because it depends on the future

net recoverable amounts. The
determination of the future net
recoverable amounts involves
significant management
judgements and estimates of the

market condition, future sales and

inventory liquidation plans.

Relevant disclosures are included

in notes 3 and 21 to the financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included
the gaining an understanding
of the Group’s accounting
policy of provision for
inventories. We re-calculated
the impairment amounts of
the inventories based on the
management’s methodology at
year end. We also considered
the inventories turnover days
and reviewed the ageing
analysis in evaluating the level
of provision for inventories as
at 31 December 2016.

Recoverability of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable constituted a

significant portion of total assets
as at 31 December 2016 and
the Group was exposed to credit
risks thereof. When determining
whether an account receivable
is collectable, significant
management judgements are
involved, taking into account
various factors including the
age of the balance, existence

of disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and other
available information concerning
the creditworthiness of the
customer.

Relevant disclosures are included

in notes 3 and 22 to the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures
included the assessment

and testing of the design and
operating effectiveness of the
Group’s controls relating to
the monitoring of accounts
receivable and the granting

of credit terms, and over the
quality of underlying data

and systems. We reviewed

the ageing analysis, obtained
direct external confirmations
for accounts receivable
balances on a sample basis
and considered the receipts
from customers subsequent to
the end of reporting period. We
also evaluated the level of the
Group’s provision for accounts
receivable by reference to

the Group’s debtor collection
history.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
B B RN ()

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
B B RN ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseqguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Siu Ki Ricky.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE20164F 12 A31 BIEFE

BEMmER

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET T
(Restated)
(&%)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE WA 5 27,985,881 27,842,170
Cost of sales SHE A (21,468,896) (21,517,628)
Gross profit EA 6,516,985 6,324,542
Other income and gains H U A Rz 5 489,264 423,136
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kD SHX H (5,639,499) (5,266,204)
Administrative expenses TBE (715,146) (744,116)
Other expenses and losses Hbsz i & E5E (40,908) (69,240)
Finance costs BB RS 7 (35,750) (64,822)
Share of profits of associates FE(REE R A A 73,010 71,872
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BEREER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Z BB ADE R 6 647,956 675,168
Income tax expense FriS sz 10 (226,085) (280,110)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM HEREER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ZEEER 421,871 395,058
DISCONTINUED OPERATION fﬂ.l]:@'“‘%ﬁ%
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to IR EERZ (L2
a discontinued operation ¢Jﬁmi"/(ﬁ§ﬁ,§\ 11 321,964 (98,523)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEHH 743,835 296,535
Attributable to: FEMLTT ¢
Owners of the parent NEEA A 13 499,735 54,633
Non-controlling interests IR 244,100 241,902
743,835 296,535
EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY B RAFEERES
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BEABRLERET 13
Basic HAR
— For the profit for the year —FEEH HK17.87 centsi&{ll  HK1.95 cents 41l
— For the profit from continuing I8 4 M e 2
operations Zmﬂ HK6.36 centsi&fll  HK5.47 cents /&Ll
Diluted 09
— For the profit for the year —FEEH HK17.87 centsi&{ll  HK1.95 cents 41l
— For the profit from continuing —FHEIRE TS
operations Z Al HK6.36 centsi&fll  HK5.47 cents /&Ll
pEERAERAE 201645

a3
Er—z



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEEHEBARK

Year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE20164F 12 A31 BIEFE

2016 2015
2016 20154
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FHET FAET
(Restated)
(E31))
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 743,835 296,535
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2EER
Other comprehensive loss to be 1R LATE B EE %
reclassified to profit or loss DEFEBRZ
in subsequent periods: HEEmEE :
Exchange differences on HBE G INETE RS
translation of foreign operations 2 N ZERR (543,168) (544,033)
Share of other comprehensive FEAG — B & A A
income of an associate E2mEmABA 548 682
Net other comprehensive loss to be H A LA T8 HRR = 5T
reclassified to profit or loss DEEEERmZEM
in subsequent periods ZHEBFEE (542,620) (543,351)
Other comprehensive income not to 1N HA LAT% HA RS
be reclassified to profit or loss BN EERE
in subsequent periods: Efh2AEBA -
Gains on property revaluation YIS E 2 Was 14 = 5,586
Income tax effect IS His & - (1,397)
Net other comprehensive income not A A LATE BRfE
to be reclassified to profit or loss in BN EEREE
subsequent periods HE 2R AFEE - 4,189
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEHMEEEE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B IBRTIE) (542,620) (539,162)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/ FEEERAN,
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (E518) 48 %8 201,215 (242,627)
Attributable to: FE1G 7 ¢
Owners of the parent SARER A 32,690 (397,357)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 168,525 154,730
201,215 (242,627)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R R R

31 December 2016 2016412 31 H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
2016 F 20154 20154
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt FHET T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(2731) (251)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% BE NGRE 14 4,012,050 4,670,644 4,901,078
Investment properties RENE 15 32,644 34,735 98,331
Prepaid land premiums BELibE 16 472,574 459,851 424,026
Prepayments for items of property, ME - BELEEERE
plant and equipment ZTERFUR 54,304 15,500 14,286
Goodwill RS 17 1,522,354 1,684,061 1,742,224
Other intangible assets HinER EE 18 11,272 15,610 27370
Investments in associates REE R R 2 RE 19 726,412 780,759 758,932
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 20 12,975 209,637 214,106
Deferred tax assets EEFBEE 26 154,964 182,837 184,521
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 6,999,549 8,053,634 8,364,874
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories #& 21 4,007,825 4,038,615 4,301,418
Accounts and bills receivables G e 22 1,319,672 1,376,410 1,771,192
Prepayments, deposits and BIHE - e
other receivables RE b feliR 1,269,455 1,372,867 1,186,912
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEEYNGVE 35 321,552 351,977 578,278
Due from the immediate holding company & Z £ A &R 3 35 162 162 171
Due from the ultimate holding company ALK A RIR K 35 13,037 14,157 15,202
Due from non-controlling B AR 2 FEER
shareholders of subsidiaries SV 35 946 15,394 37711
Due from associates i NCIUSES 19 26,297 10,496 16,273
Prepaid tax TR 26,722 42703 41225
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE = = 399,305
Equity investments at fair BRATEABR
value through profit or loss LIEREE - = 14,728
Restricted bank balances R HIRITE 8 23 = 6,974 -
Pledged deposits HHER 23 51,607 64,980 162,947
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEER 23 1,120,224 899,170 1,356,458
8,157,499 8,193,905 9,881,820
Assets of a disposal group NERRAEREL
classified as held for sale HERABE 11 958,220 375,131 =
Total current assets MEEELE 9,115,719 8,569,036 9,881,820
MEEMARAT 20165 145
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RE TSR (88)
31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
2016 20154 20154
12831H 12A31H 1A1R
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iir3 THER THT THL
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (E71))
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts and bills payables AR R ER 24 1,199,220 1,300,096 1,372,106
HibERFHIER
Other payables and accruals [EstaE 3,146,051 3,246,483 3,368,978
Due to fellow subsidiaries RAZMBEARFE 35 1,885,271 1,270,244 1,253,117
Due to the ultimate holding company RESEIER R AR 35 23,989 25,467 27915
Due to related companies REGENRIFE 35 6,232 9,817 88,765
Due to non-controlling shareholders RITBAR]Z IR
of subsidiaries PR IE 35 64,612 553,991 48,103
Due to associates REENRFHIE 19 124,753 176,405 154,453
Interest-bearing bank and FEBRTERR
other borrowings HiE% 25 820,000 1,647,650 1,360,994
Tax payable [ETE 78,371 48,536 96,784
7,348,499 8,278,689 7,771,215
Liabilities directly associated with ERENEARE
the assets of a disposal group FEZHERS
classified as held for sale EERHZARE 11 329,299 101,694 =
Total current liabilities mEAGEEE 7,677,798 8,380,383 7,771,215
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,437,921 188,653 2,110,605
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES ERARRRBEE 8,437,470 8,242,287 10,475,479
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
IRE SRR R ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
2016 F 20154 20154
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
/0f3 THT T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FEBETERR
other borrowings HiEHR 25 825,086 1,000,000 2,100,000
Due to non-controlling RITBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries R RFUR 35 = = 28 446
Deferred income BRI A 294,719 155,888 160,613
Deferred tax liabilities REBEAE 26 25,545 34,200 63,873
Total non-current liabilities FRBAERE 1,145,350 1,190,088 2,352,932
Net assets BETE 7,292,120 7,052,199 8,122,547
EQUITY AR
Equity attributable to owners BARERA
of the parent FEfk AR AR
Issued capital BETIRA 27 279,722 279,722 279,722
Other reserves Hi 29 5,181,359 5,213,039 5,607,927
5,461,081 5,492,761 5,887,649
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,831,039 1,559,438 2,234,898
Total equity RAEE 7,292,120 7,052,199 8,122,547
Jiang Guojin Zhou Chenguang
IS AExt
Director Director
EZE EZ
pEERAERAE 201645
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERETBSEHKE

Year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE20164F 12 A31 BIEFE

irbutabe o owners ofthe parent

ENREEARE
Emplojee
Share  share-hased Exchange Rsset Non-
Issued ~ premium  compensation Capital Reseve  fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account Tesene Tesene funds Tesene Tesene profits Total  interests equity
k8
s Ed 1
BRORA  ROEEE  BMEE  EAEE  BEE  MERR  EMRE  REE B shRER  ResE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKG000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000
TR tAr A T TR fRR TR TAm TR tAn TR
(note 27) (note29)  (note 29)
(Watar) (K2 (&)
At 1 January 2016 RIEIA1A
s previously reported Fx2l 9,12 37,367 3004 324733 3019 6735%3 16573 818677 5516317 1559857 7,076,174
Pioryeradusiments~~ BAEE 7% - - - - - 964 - (M50) (255 (419 (@397)
s restated L] 9,12 31,367 3004 324733 32019 674517 16573 84157 5492761 1559438 7,062,199
Prftfor the year ERRA - - - - - - - 4973 49735 2100 74383
Oter comprefesive EREfRER/
ncomellos) orheyear,  (B5E):
Eichange diferences
Tl o foreign REIER
operafons EiZE - - - (700 - - [gTdon (5767 (543,168
Share ofother
comprerensteinoome Bl -EEEAT
of gsscie Ef2ERA - 3% - - - - 36 192 548
Toel comprefesie ERRTRTl/
nroftfloss) for the year (ER)aE - - - 356 - (4740 - 499735 32690 168525 201215
Disposelof subsides~~ HEMERA - - - - - - (6910 6,910 - 16261 16260
Equiy-sefted hare FhGEERE
pfion aangements 43 - (2821) - - - - -8 - Qs
Trnsfer fom etained poffs. - SREHER - - - - 2809 - - 28 - - -
Transfer of employee
<hare-based compensaton - RERRE a1
eseneup e forete BREERIEE
oreiyof shareopions  EARE (4475) - - - - 4475 - - -
Final 2015 dividends DERRE - - - - - e @) -
Inerm 006 diidends 2016 EHERS - - - - - 335 335 - (35
Dividends attioutable o
non<ontolingsharcholders B 235
of subsidais RaEhRe - - - - - - - (958)  (59,559)
At 31 December 2016 R6E12A318 9,12 N3 B8 3247688 4SSt 2071164 9663 1300899 5461081 1831039 729120
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
FERAEBmE (8)

Year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016412 A31 BIEFE

Atrbutable t owners of the parent

SRAREARR
Employee
Share share-ased Bichange Aoset Non-
Issued — premium  compensafon Captal Resene  fuctiatn  revaluation ~ Retained controling Total
captal aocount fESere [ESene funds Tesene Tesene’ rafs Total Inerests equity
Ut EY i

BATRE ROEEE  FMRE  AABE  BRE  JOEE IR AR g JthER  BagE
HESODD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKBOOD  HKSOOD RSO  HKSOOD  HKSDOD  HKSOOO  HKBOD  HKSOND
Tan TRt TR TR T TAr TR TAn T T TEn

o2 27) (oe29)  (note9)
(x2n) (o) (o)
At 1 January 2015 ROBEIRIA N0 31367 0301 34680 W83 L1311 1234 8058 DATOA9 2288 812207
Puft ot ear (eseed) SR 7)) - - - - - - SMER MR M 65
Othercompreensive EREWAENN/
incomelloss) fortreear. (B8
Botangedifeenceson— BESHEE 2
transeon offoreign =
aperations (restaed) (E2) = = = = - ([l662) = - ([l662) @141 (0%
Share of oher
compretensieincome El-FBEAT
of anassonae Ef2ERA - - - 3 - - - - 0 ol 6
el on propery VEELE
reeluaion,net ot (BrkiE) - - - - . = 1189 = 4189 . 4189
Toel comprefersie noomel EEAERA/
(oss) o theyer restaed) ~ (E8) 4288 (253]) - - - 03 - (e 48 BER (U B (426)
Fouiyseted shre st
opfon anengemen's Rz - = 2469 = = = = = 2469 = 2469
Transfer of employee
shareased REREM
compensafonresene A1
tponhe e or SREERT
eoiyofshaeopions BEEHEE - - (1200 - - - - 10 - - -
Tensler fom refened pofts - ERBETER - - = S = - (10128) - - -
Contribution from a
non<onoling shaeholder - —EHBRREER
ofasubsidary IRl - - - - - - - = - 9374 937
Dividends attibutablg o
non<onolig shereholdrs - HER 2 5E2R
afsubsidaies EElE/Ra - - - - - - - - N A )
431 December 2015 ROLEA3IA
(resateq) (E71) nn 31367 07 3 0y 6Tl 1673 &A1 ARl 1948 7002199
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves & ZEEERR B AR A B LR AR
of HK$5,181,359,000 (31 December 2015: HK$5,213,039,000 A A #E5,181,359,000% T (2015 4F 12
(restated)) in the consolidated statement of financial position. A 31H :5213,039000&7T (£%)) °

The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from owner- # B YR BREYEELNEEE G
occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value. RN FES R -
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L Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SmEETRER

Year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE20164F 12 A31 BIEFE

150
r—y

2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz THET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRBIANRET] (B518) -
From continuing operations REFERLEK 647,956 675,168
Attributable to a discontinued operation BG4 AR RS 11 374,519 (98,470)
Adjustments for: B TFITEE fEL AR
Finance costs BMERAK 7 35,750 64,822
Share of profits of associates AN | (73,010) (71,872)
Interest income FEWA (18,494) (27,924)
Dividend income from AHHERE
available-for-sale investments % BUA 5 (48,689) (46,862)
Gain on disposal of equity investments HERATEYABE
at fair value through profit or loss ZHERRE 2 Wam 5 - (4,466)
Impairment of receivables, net P FIRR B S5 31,842 49525
Equity-settled share option expense (write-back) IAL EEERER S (FE) 6 (2,821) 2,469
Amortisation of other intangible assets HibEmR & E 6 4,242 9,794
Depreciation e 468,897 520,140
Fair value loss/(gains) on investment REMEZ NFE
properties BB/ (W) 59 (2,004)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & /Mm% - HE
plant and equipment B = 6,299 4,546
Impairment of available-for-sale investments AR ERE ZRE 6 378 3,477
Impairment of items of property, W -~ B R
plant and equipment 158 ZRE 14 2,431 15,873
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREN LS 6 13,265 11,359
Provision against inventories GFERE 35,452 54,966
Government grants BT HHED (155,122) (168,054)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB A B 11,31 (537,016) -
785,938 992,487
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

= A\ Py =g —1 (435
FeEReRER(8)

Year ended 31 December 2016 #;Z= 20164 12 A31 BILF[E

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
23 TET TAET
(Restated)
(=71)
Increase/(decrease) in inventories FEEN,/ (i) (211,639) 118,794
Decrease in accounts and bills receivables G ES 5,477 325,196
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BRHE - Ze K
other receivables H fth e SR IR 0 (370,293) (229,412)
Decrease in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries EERENEIVE V2 59,567 201,461
Decrease in an amount due from
the ultimate holding company REER AR RFORD 1,120 1,045
Decrease in an amount due from
the immediate holding company H R A B R FOR D - 9
Decrease in amounts due from B8 2 R FERAR AR R
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries RERD 14,448 22,317
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due CUNETYNE
from associates b,/ () (15,802) 5,777
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and ERERREE
bills payables #m,/ i) 6,337 (33,896)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hip B RERETEE
and accruals #m,/ i) 179,438 (71,877)
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R [E &Mt B A BRI A1 536,708 19,020
Decrease in an amount due to the REIEZER A RIFIA
ultimate holding company N (1,478) (2,448)
Decrease in amounts due to related companies /R B A Rz B R (3,647) (78,886)
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling RYTBA R FEER
shareholders of subsidiaries RRZIBRD (53,783) (66,852)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due REEE A RIFUR
to associates #in,/ CRd) (24,680) 21,952
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PEE R B 2 R (30,465) (92,885)
Cash generated from operations ELBME 2R E 877,246 1,131,802
Interest received BUFIE 18,494 27,924
Interest paid BERFIE (35,750) (64,822)
Mainland China income tax paid BB AREEH (204,042) (352,145)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBEE ZR SR FE 655,948 742,759
pEERAERAE 201645



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
LEReTRER(B)

Year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE20164F 12 A31 BIEFE

2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz THET BT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES hﬁ/ﬁ:ﬂmﬁ%/m;
Increase in restricted bank balances XBRBIRITEEERIE - (6,974)
Decrease in pledged deposits BHREZRD 10,997 97,967
Dividends received from associates B E R RIRE 39,756 50,727
Dividends received from available-for-sale BEWAIEHERE
investments ZHRE 48,689 46,862
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE  BRENREEE
plant and equipment 1S 2R 77,159 23,209
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment HEFABR 2 ERRE
though profit or loss ZFTBRE - 19,194
Purchases of items of property, EENE  BE
plant and equipment KRR (815,130) (786,725)
Additions to prepaid land premiums B L& 0 (15,088) (75,126)
Increase in deposits for purchase of items of BEVE BER
property, plant and equipment HEBEE 2 & (38,860) (1,214)
Receipt of government grants o B B T4 B 206,454 186,501
Proceeds from redemption of available-for EOafEHERE
sale investments Zﬁﬁﬁﬂ - 387,297
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBA 11,31 647,436 =
Repayment of amounts due from a former A=Y ﬁ HAIIE
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries PRIRERE 2 BRZE 31 340,411 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REESE/(FTFE) 501,824 (58,282)
investing activities ZBemEE
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
New bank borrowings HIBRITER 3,278,036 618,985
New other borrowings L EMER = 3,376
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (3,619,506) (1,415,145)
Contribution from a non-controlling —HRB QR EERER
shareholder of a subsidiary R - 9,374
Dividends paid BARE (58,960) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BLIENSERE S
shareholders of subsidiaries SRS (470,063) (295,270)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEBMAZRE TR (870,493) (1,078,680)

]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
ceBReRER (8)

Year ended 31 December 2016 #;Z= 20164 12 A31 BILF[E

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 THER TET
(Restated)
(=71)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BeRREEEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in/ (Bd) 28 287,279 (394,203)
Cash and cash equivalents FozHekRe 908,470 1,356,458

at beginning of year EHEER
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (E R B 2R (62,753) (53,785)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FURZEERES

AT END OF YEAR ZEER 1,132,996 908,470
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BeRBREEMEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDM
Cash and bank balances and cash and cash AR

equivalents as stated in the consolidated FrEl v B RIBTHESRUER S R

statement of financial position He&EEER 1,120,224 899,170
Cash and cash equivalents attributable BRI EEBE RS BRFERE

to a discontinued operation and a disposal ZHERERENEE

group classified as held for sale RE&EERR 11 12,772 9,300
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FERERERME RS

consolidated statement of cash flows KIR&EMEIER 1,132,996 908,470

hERRARATE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements
B AR R MY EE

31 December 2016 2016412 A31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities:

o processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling
beverage products, and distribution of still beverage
products;

o production, sale and trading of grape wine and other
wine products;

° distribution of packaged cooking oil and seasoning
products;

o distribution of other consumer food and beverage
products that are not categorised under the
aforementioned activities; and

° production and distribution of chocolate and other
related products, which have been discontinued during
the year (note 11).

The immediate holding company of the Company is China
Foods (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is COFCO Corporation (“COFCO"), which is a state-
owned enterprise registered in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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1.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIRE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

AAREEESR (&)

BEMBLAR 2ER
ARABEEMBAT ZFHBWT

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name RiiAYe BRITLER/ KAFMEL  Principal activities
£ AMRSE Y ZRE BRABAL — EEEH
China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB180,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
FERBEEAERAR" M/ B ARE AR 180,000,0007 and beverage products
FERHEEHEERAHER
Yantai Greatwall Wines and Spirits The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
Co., Ltd.* R/ hEIARE AR 1,000,0007C BEEED
EaRNERHEERRAR"
Qinhuangdao Huaxia Greatwall Wines &~ The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
Spirits Co., Ltd.* B /B ARE AR 1,000,0007T HEEED
REBEERNEFERAR"
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Yantai) The PRC/Mainland China RMB146,900,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
Co., Ltd.* BB AR AR 146,900,000 7 EERHEERDE
hRRAEEE(ER)BRAR
COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd.*  The PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
PEEERNAEEARAF" EREARE AE#200,000,0007C HERHEEEEE
COFCO Huaxiahong Wines & Spirits The PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 80 Wholesale of grape wine
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** W/ EARE AR 3,000,0007C HEFEA
mEERAEE () BRAE
COFCO & Arrive Vine Plant (Yantai) R&D  The PRC/Mainland China EUR500,000 58.38 Plantation of vine and production
Co., Ltd.* B /B ARE 500,000 Bt of related products
rERAMSRASEA (2R HE BREEEREERTER
BRAR*
COFCO Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB11,760,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
REXARAA* R/ HEIARE AR 11,760,000 BEBEE
COFCO Foods Penglai Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
mERMERERAR" PEREARE AR 1,000,00070 REEEE
COFCO Shaoxing Winery Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB68,670,000 100 Production and sale of Chinese
PEAEEERAR /B ARE ARH68,670,0007 yellow rice wine
EERHEETEEKRE
=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RSeRR B AT (48)

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) FREMB AT Z2ER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARREZENMBARZFBWT
follows: (continued) (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name RN BRTEER/ AAFEME  Principal activities
& MRS E Y R RAGAL  FEEE
Huailai Greatwall Vine Base Development  The PRC/Mainland China RMB6,860,000 75 Plantation of vine
Co., Ltd.** i,/ B K AR 6,860,007 EBEE
BRERBEEENREERDF
COFCO Greatwall Sungod Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
(Huailai) Co., Ltd.* /B AR ARE1,000,0007 EERHEGHE
PERESETER (ER)ERAR"
COFCO Greatwall Wines (Zhuolu) The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wine processing and bottling,
Co., Ltd * e /B AR AE#1,000,0007C sale and distribution of wine
FERBEEE(FE) BRAR products
FEEMIRER  HER
DHEBER
COFCO Greatwall Wine (Ningxia) The PRC/Mainland China US$16,080,000 100 Import and export of grape wine
Co., Ltd.* E/ R AR 16,080,000% 7T and related materials
PERNEEE(ZE)BRAR" ENOEEERAER R
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited Hong Kong HK$2,524,855,402 65 Investment holding
g O AR E R AR BB 2,524,855,402 /& T REER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) The PRC/Mainland China US$110,000,000 65 Investment holding
Investment Ltd.* FE /B AR 110,000,000%7¢ REER
igR A A e (R E) REBR AR
Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China US$15,500,000 32.5*  Beverage bottling production,
KEOTLHRERAR M,/ B AR 15,500,000 T sale and distribution
RRERAE - BERRZ
Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$11,700,000 5 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited* R/ HhEIARE 11,700,005 T and distribution
BETRTOTLHRERAR" FRRINAE - BEREZ
Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China 1S$8,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production, sale
Company Limited* B /B ARE 8,000,000 7T and distribution
AR O 2gEERAR" FREMAE - BERER
Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages  The PRC/Mainland China RMB23,000,000 05 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited* BB AR AR 23,000,000 and distribution

EIPRIATERAERAR

FBERAE - BERER

1156
r—y
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Wi e (8)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARARKEEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) FREMBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRREEMBARIZFBWOT
follows: (continued) (#8)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name B AN BRTLER/ KAFEE  Principal activities
B RS- SR RABAL — EEEH
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited™* R E/HEIARE 5,000,000% 7T and distribution
HETRIOTESRRERAA FREMAE - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Xinjiang) ~ The PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 52 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited** VAN S AR 60,000,007 and distribution
g DR 280K (318) AR AR FEEMEE - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jiangxi) The PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited* EWRE YN AR 40,000,000 7T and distribution
g Al O ATEERE (1) BRAR RS - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Shandong)  The PRC/Mainland China US$12,500,000 48.75¢  Beverage hottling production, sale
Limited** VAN S 12,500,000 7T and distribution
g DR 28R (IUR) AR AR FREREE - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jinan) The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 48.75"  Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited** EWRIE NS 5,000,000 7T and distribution
g Al O ATAERE (Bl BRAR FREMAE - HERRR
Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China 1US$19,500,000 48.75¢  Beverage hottling production, sale
SR OTLHRER AR W/ A RE 19,500,000 T and distribution
FREREE - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Inner The PRC/Mainland China RMBA48,000,000 4355%  Beverage bottling production, sale
Mongolia) Limited** B /B ARE AR 48,000,0007T and distribution
g A QAR (W) BRAR FREM A - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei Beverages The PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 585 Beverage bottling production
Limited** VAN AR 78,000,000 FREREE
iR ORI SR ERAA
COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong Beverages  The PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited* B /B ARE AR 78,000,00078 and distribution

PR OARERHHARAR

PREREE - BERKX
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B TR aR PR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREMBATZER ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRB TEMB AR ZERBWMT :
follows: (continued) (%)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name RN BRTLER/ AAFEE  Principal activities
£ SR SEHE BTN BAEAL  EEEER
COFCO Food Sales & Distribution The PRC/Mainland China RMB370,000,000 100 Distribution of consumer pack
Co., Ltd.* FE /B ARE AR 370,000,0007T edible oils and other consumer
TERREHERAT" food products
PENERRABREAM
HERM
COFCO Foods Management Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China 1S$10,000,000 100 Research and development in
HERMEEERAR E /R EARE 10,000,000 7T food, wine and beverage,
management and consulting
services
HARAZERM  BR
Bk BB RAARS
COFCO Fortune Food Sales & Co., Ltd.*  The PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100 Distribution of consumer pack
PEREMRREHERAR /B ARE AR 100,000,0007 edible oils and other consumer
food products
PENEERBEREMEE
R
Vifia Santa Andrea Limitada Chile CLP7,750,000,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
A7 7,750,000,000 vineyards, production and sale
BHR of grape wine
RERCEEEE  £ER
HEREH
COFCO Wines & Spirits (Huailai) Co., Ltd.*  The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape wine, brandy and
PR (BR) HEARR A" REREARE AR 1,000,0007 beverage
HEBEE R RHH
COFCO (Ningxia) Vine Plantation The PRC/Mainland China US$7,040,000 100 Plantation and sale of vines,
Co., Ltd.* BB AR 7,040,000 7T production and sale of grape
T (ZE)HEREERAR" BEIEEIEEN
FEREEEE
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain (Tianjin) ~ The PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 635 Retails of bulk foods and
Limited** /A RE AR 10,000,000 7T relevant materials, information

PR OARHER (R2)BRAR

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) FREMBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRREEMBARIZFBWOT
follows: (continued) (%)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name R AN BRTLER/ AAFEWE  Principal activities
£ RS-k TR BRAEA  TEEER
Top Glory Wines & Spirits Europe SAS France EUR4,150,000 100 Investment holding
ozl 4,150,000B0T REZR
Société du Chateau de Viaud SAS France EUR3,920,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
5B 3,920,000Bt vineyards, production and sale
of grape wine
RERCEEEE  AER
HERED
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Hebei) The PRC/Mainland China RMB83,000,000 325" Beverage bottling production, sale
Limited** /B ARE AR 83,000,0007T and distribution
g ORI EERR (L) AR AR FEEMAEE - HERER
Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola Commerce & The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 65 Beverage sale and distribution
Trade Limited* VAN S AR¥2,000,0007C HRAE R 8
FRErR O EHEERAR "
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Xinjiang) The PRC/Mainland China RMB38,300,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
Co., Ltd.* B/ EIARE AR 38,900,000 7T EERHERDE
R RMEEE (38 BRAR"
COFCO Greatwall Huaxia Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape wine
(Changli) Co., Ltd.* VAN S AR 1,000,007 EERHERER
MRRMER B (B8 ERAF
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd** The PRC/Mainland China RMB58,211,932 4875 Wholesale of packaged foods
FREARRERAR FE/HEARE AE#58,211932 7T HERBKRM
Changli Huaxia Travel Chateau Co., Ltd.*  The PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000 100 Tourism and catering
ERGER AR ERAR " R/ HEIARE AR%300,0007T IRERER

* ok

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
Sino-foreign equity joint ventures

& These are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Accordingly, they are accounted for as subsidiaries by
virtue of the Company’s control over them.

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

L ITEELE
Y EELRE
* REGRARFFEEENE L 2B
BRAE] > XARAEXRFHZFENFE
el Bl NI

ALPREE2WMBARIEAAR R
BRA -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Except for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, Top Glory
Wines & Spirits Europe SAS and Société du Chateau de Viaud
SAS, the statutory audits of the above subsidiaries were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the board, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the board, result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. A disposal group held for sale is stated at the
lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell
as further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affects those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

AAREEESR (&)

FEMBLRZER (&)

FRAPBRAIORT BRI BER AR Top
Glory Wines & Spirits Europe SAS &
Société du Chateau de Viaud SASh
B A BN IER B BT KRG AT
ALK B ERPEEHEMEKE R
AEITEEEZ °

ERINRARB 2HMBRR] - MAR
REZERR  ZEWBARATHA
FEEEELBEAFEIBUAEH
BEFEZEIEZHN EFERA
AR B AR ZFERESIBA
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BREMERI - BIELEZHERS
12 E PR EE 82 SRR & AN HI 3
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

WS R MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

2.1 mREE (&)

meEE (H)

EARFEERAMEERDONKRIRE
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EEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

22 SR BERRREZ2E

AEBEERAFERBHERERT ERK
AT B MRERT B AV B®RE

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

1

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

ZER o

Amendments to , Investment Entities: Applying ABHBHE 2R REERE - GRS
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 the Consolidation Exception F105 - BAEIE AGBIHI9MET
and HKAS 28 (2011) WEERIE 1295

REBESTEL
£28% (2011 %)
SEHES

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions B IS A WEREZF R

of Interests in Joint Operations ERNRACCHEY) Zil%

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts BB R 2R EERIERF

£14%

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative ERGENSELR  HEHE

CHES
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BREERE 6 EEUTEZINE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation kBB RE 7%

£ 385 (E5TA)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants BRGEANE 6T BE - LEMEY

and HKAS 41 REREHER
FA41% (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BEQHENEIR  BUHEFES
(2011) Financial Statements (2011 %) ({E5T ) gy

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of P2 FEZ0I4F8H ETHBWBERE

2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs and HKASs ZER RAIRBBLHE
A (BT )
_I1| 162 China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain amendments
included in the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the
statement of financial position and the statement of profit
or loss. The amendments have had no significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(c)

China Foods Limited

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has not used a
revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation
of its non-current assets.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 change the
accounting requirements for biological assets that meet
the definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments,
biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants
are within the scope of HKAS 16 instead of HKAS 41.
After initial recognition, bearer plants are measured under
HKAS 16 at accumulated cost before maturity. After the
bearer plants mature, they are measured either using
the cost model or revaluation model in accordance with
HKAS 16. The amendments also require that produce
growing on the bearer plants remains in the scope of
HKAS 41 and is measured at fair value less costs to
sell. Government grants relating to bearer plants are
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 20 Accounting
for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance.

Annual Report 2016
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FATsR M5 ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

(c)

The application of amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 has affected the accounting for the Group’s grape
vines. Upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 41 on 1 January 2016, retrospective
adjustments have been made to the previous accounting
and grape vines have been accounted for as properties,
plant and equipment since 1 January 2015, using their
corresponding fair values as at 1 January 2015 as their
deemed costs at that date. The opening balances as
at 1 January 2015 and comparative information for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have been restated in
the financial statements. The quantitative impact on the
financial statements is summarised below:

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

22 SRR KE 2SS (F)

(%)

FEREEETERE 165 &
BB TETERIE 415 (185
MU AEBEEEHENDE
BRIEEEATE HEGQTE
B 165 R BB GRS
4157 (& 5T 48 ) 20164 1
B1BHEMNE - Ta@Yw
¥ BEMREEESE
BEETEPAE  MAE
BERN 201541 A1 BiRERN
20151 A1AMATES
Z B HEARRRERKA » 722015
F1A1HFHRBEEES
2015 12 A31 HILFEH
LERER BRI IETREPE
H o WHIBHRAN L TE
BEatan T

AR MR e

2015
20154
HK$'000
FiBT
Increase in cost of sales SHEE K ZNIE N 19,695
Decrease in gross profit FEAE (19,695)
Increase in other expenses and losses E b K& EEIE b 10,769
Decrease in profit before tax from REFFESEER 2
continuing operations BREE R A > (30,464)
Decrease in income tax expense i Himd 5,512
Decrease in profit for the year from continuing SRR BB K L EK 2
operations and profit for the year sa Al N2 F g AR A (24,952)
Decrease in profit for the year attributable to: {5 77 FE RIS FE A
Owners of the parent ISTNEILY=WN (24,520)
Non-controlling interests eI e e (432)
(24,952)

Decrease in earnings per share attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent:

Basic and diluted
— For the profit for the year

SREIEREEAFAA
FEIEERABFIRD
— R A

(0.88) cents 711

— For the profit from continuing operations

—REFELEEB R

(0.88) cents 711l

pEERAERAE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S EHRRIEE 228 (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(c) (continued) () (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive HiFE2HEBARK ZZE
income:
2015
20154
HK$'000
FHET
Decrease in profit for the year F @A (24,952)
Decrease in exchange differences BMEBINETSR 2
on translation of foreign operations PE 5 Z= R > 977

Decrease in net other comprehensive lossto R ABHIREHHESE
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent  18z5 2 HE b & FE 18 F5E

periods and other comprehensive loss for REANHEMEEEBE
the year, net of tax (B H0RRARIE) B 977
Increase in total comprehensive FAEEBEERELN
loss for the year (23,975)
Increase in total comprehensive loss for R A ERNEEEE
the year attributable to: HAZEIR N
Owners of the parent ISYNEIET 2SN (23,556)
Non-controlling interests PR A (419)

(23,975)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(c)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

WS R MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

22 SRR KE 2SS (F)

(%)
HIRAMBHRRR 2R

position:
31 December 1 January
2015 2015
2015 20154
128 31H 1A1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Increase in properties, ET =N
plant and equipment RN 168,910 200,806
Decrease in biological assets EYEERD (198,172) (200,806)
Decrease in total non-current assets IEMBEERER D (29,262) -
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities BEETIEEE R
and total non-current liabilities IEREa ERERS 5,287 =
Decrease in net assets BEFERD (23,975) -
Decrease in equity attributable [SYNGIE 2PN T
to owners of the parent AR AR > (23,556) -
Decrease in non-controlling interests AR R (419) -
Decrease in total equity IR A @ER (23,975) -
Amendments Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012- (d) 2014910 AEMIEEL R

2014 Cycle issued in October 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are

as follows:

° HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a
plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
Accordingly, there is no change in the application
of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The amendments
also clarify that changing the disposal method
does not change the date of classification of the
non-current assets or disposal group held for sale.
The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group did not have any change in the plan of
sale or disposal method in respect of the disposal
group held for sale during the year.

EFRRI2012F F2014F AR .2 F
B Z AR B 5 RE A
AIRIMERT ° RFERTRHIBANE ¢

o EHEMBMEENELHRAF
B EZHRBEERKIL
ERT  BBRERNE
TTHESAIEH IR AT EH)
BH TR R — R
Bt E > MERRARE
RIERR - Bt - EAEEY
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EBEE ZFEFNEFE
FRENATSHNERERF
ERIEREREEB AR
Hi o ZBERTRARRER -
R ARERAFERERF
ERRFEREXBHER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?®

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

HKFRS 16 Leases®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses"
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs!?
2014-2016 Cycle

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to

have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
application now.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to
HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure
a more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS
15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure
to be provided in the financial statements. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMEBRHREMZEBUH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application for
other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs
to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets
for more than their carrying amount. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and a disposed group classified as held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0)
(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant position of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Buildings

Plant, machinery and equipment
Bearer plants

Not depreciated
2% t0 18%

6% t0 33.3%
3% to 16%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and machinery and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEBE (H)

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and the disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must
be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and the disposal group (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of three to eight years.

Water rights

Water rights are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of forty years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases, net of
any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
or available-for-sale financial investments. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W5 aR MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

24 FTESTTHBERME (F)

EEEY
NEERBEGRZ BRI EIHR K
R EBEARE - RBEBEES
RBEHLD - MAKRBSHEA -
AEEREEBEOTHEZEET G
AFRRBEE - MELEMA T 2B
HeEERNERET ARER
®WMASBARBA  LEMELHE
T2 EAEE R R HEAME L E
D) AR BIA B AVEN B R
AFAER ©

REBEEENBEN 2 LSBT IR
AT - RRREBMARERET
VABERR,

REFREMERERE
RUEBRE
TREENVTHERRDBR/RAF
BIABBRZEMEE - ERXREHK
AR AHELESRNE - SRMEE
T ERABRAFEMRESREE
MG 2 X BRAGE » M BRAF
BB E R E QIR -

EEBATEARKEZEREER
RH5B (AEEAKBERHERE
ZR)HER - ERBERATEARLER
RRPIHTI5 8B G —REEEZ BEA
RNEMEEZBEARLE -

Hiki 2
EHMEE KA EIORNKE 2 PA

THHE :

BAFEIIAEBZZ 2B E
BAFEIABZNEREEBRT
FEEZEREE RN B RERRE
DRBAFEINABSNEREE °
AAENEHALEMBAZERME
E BIERRIMBAZEME
E - SRUTETA(BREIFIBA
ATETR) MO BARHEEE @ KRIE
BERIETE BB B G ERIF 395
REZAMEHTA -

hEERAERAE 20164



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEBE (H)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as other
expenses and losses in the statement of profit or loss. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in other expenses and losses in
the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the statement of profit or loss in other expenses and losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively, and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments and
financial products cannot be reliably measured because (a)
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MIRE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MIRE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses and
losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TESTHBRME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

FriS®i ()

P8 AJ 0BG 2 By 1 2 B R AR ED
Z IR R B B 18 2 A S A
RABELEHIAEE - BEXEHIBEEEZ
TR R PR 70 AT BE LA & SR A g A #K 40 A
REREEE  IASHREEZR
BB HAER R RHEER -

o fHEAHHEREREMAELT
HBEERRRZ ST ERER
BREEXABEME - MARER
HUWHEBEG - REXHHETT
B BEst BN ERRE N
BERAETE &

s FREMBAREEERRZER
BREL AR EREERE
BEEREEER RN R ERE
A] RETA A 18 5 SR B & m] )
FEER T FI A A A FNE B 1 2=
RARTRERRRRD

BETRIBRE < RHENSEREH
R WHIREE TNBAIEEE B
FER Bt MR A KB BRER AR
ERBALL - ERWHERELH AR
E Al 8278 2 S B aR Bt )8 P A B AP
IR RE R TR & B KR B By 10 % ¥ 1
R EFN TG R AER -

SEERERAABRBER - BEL
MIABER A EAZEENS 2 #E A
MEEE  WREXRBRERARZAD
HEXBEREHE 2B R (RBUE) &t

s
= o
Ean

5 78 A X R] 52 B BT AEH LA BT H]
HMIREERENPHRBRBERZFE
FERIA R T R — AR B 8 M B — 7%
WE - RIEEHREERETEHR AR
(ECIEREE S



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
the grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary
assets and released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, in the period in which the
services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 28 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Services and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also services and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest, because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or loss
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

Retirement benefits are provided to certain staff employed by
the Group. In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, the Group’s Hong Kong employees enjoy
retirement benefits under either the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORS0Q”) Scheme, or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under which employer contributions have to be made. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to both schemes are at a maximum of 10% of the
monthly salaries of the employees. When an employee leaves
employment prior to his or her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing ORSO Scheme
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme. However, in respect of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, only the employer voluntary
contribution amounts are refundable to the Group when the
members leave employment prior to their contributions vesting
fully. The Group’s mandatory contributions vest fully with the
employees when the employees leave employment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the relevant authorities of the provinces or
the local municipal governments in Mainland China in which
the Group’s subsidiaries are located. The Group contributes
to this scheme in respect of its employees in Mainland China
and such costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time
the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill, including those classified as held
for sale at 31 December 2016, was HK$1,625,136,000 (2015:
HK$1,684,061,000). More details are given in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on an assessment
of the recoverability of accounts and other receivables and the
timing of their recovery. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires management judgement and estimation.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact on the
carrying value of the accounts and other receivables and the
amount of impairment/write-back of impairment in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed. Net impairment
of the Group’s receivables, including those classified as held
for sale, of HK$31,842,000 (2015: HK$49,525,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year. The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
accounts and bills receivables, and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including those classified as held for
sale at 31 December 2016, was HK$2,634,765,000 (2015:
HK$2,786,050,000).

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the
Group and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. A considerate amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
inventories. If the market conditions were to change, resulting
in a change of provision for obsolete items, the difference
will be recorded in the period it is identified. The carrying
amount of inventories, including those classified as held for
sale as at 31 December 2016 was HK$4,158,341,000 (2015:
HK$4,127,658,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2016 was HK$42,003,000 (2015: HK$45,153,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses including those attributable
to the discontinued operation at 31 December 2016 was
HK$2,988,343,000 (2015: HK$3,154,777,000). Further
details are contained in note 26 to the financial statements.
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China Foods Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has five reportable
segments as follows:

(a) the beverage segment is engaged in the processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products
and the distribution of still beverage products;

4.

«‘M/_\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ

7,%%?@5 B REBIZEEMREEE
DTRMNEBETYEEREATE
WL BT

(a) 'ﬁAﬂ 28 WEFEITKE AN
KD R A= R E
quI’J D

(b) the wine segment is engaged in the production, sale and (b) BB RELE  HER
trading of grape wine and other wine products; BEFHAREMBREER

(c) the kitchen food segment is engaged in the distribution of (c) BERRPE RESHEBE=R
packaged cooking oil and seasoning products; i R R an

(d) the confectionery segment is engaged in the production (d) KEARRDI  EEERDH

and distribution of chocolate and other related products
(discontinued operation (note 11)); and

(e) the “others” segment is engaged in the distribution of
other consumer food and beverage products that are not
categorised under the aforementioned segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before
tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/loss before tax from continuing operations
except that interest income, dividend income, gain on disposal
of subsidiaries, finance costs, share of profits of associates, as
well as unallocated head office and corporate results are all
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid tax,
restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale investments, investments in
associates and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATE R MY ()

31 December 2016 2016

4. KETHER (FH)

#£12H31H

(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2016 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
BZ2016512A31ALLEE Bt BRE  BERA Efts At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TEL FEL FEL T#x
Segment revenue: AR :
Sales to external customers HIMEE 11,290,514 2,503,101 13,963,214 229,052 27,985,881
Other revenue Ehlis 151,109 88,565 12,051 51,669 303,3%
Revenue from continuing operations BECLERIE 11,441,623 2,591,666 13,975,265 280,721 28,289,275
Segment results PEEE 640,510 111,148 85,657 4,169 841,484
Reconciliation: Hf
Interest income FEBMA 18,407
Dividend income BREMA 48,689
Finance costs BEKA (35,750)
Share of profits of associates NG el 73,010
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNEG 118,774
Corporate and other unallocated AR REM
expenses AOES T (416,658)
Profit before tax from continuing BELERE
operations BRERTER] 647,956
Segment assets AHEE 5,532,300 4,296,663 2,987,885 251,826 13,068,674
Reconciliation: A
Investments in associates IR E AR ZRE 726,412
Corporate and other unallocated assets A RIREMADEEE 1,361,962
Assets of a disposal group classified PEARBREEL
as held for sale HERLEE 958,220
Total assets BEDE 16,115,268
hERRARATE 20164
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

4. BEIHER (A)

Year ended 31 December 2016 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
BZ20165 12831 ALLEE Bt BRE  BERm Efts At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER ThER ThER THEL TEL
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,764,734 680,321 3,247,436 - 6,692,491
Reconciliation: i -
Corporate and other AR REA
unallocated liabilities *okafE 1,801,358
Liabilities directly associated BERENBRRARE
with the assets classified LEEEB AR
as held for sale 329,299
Total liabilties RERE 8,823,148
Other segment information: At HEH -
Net impairment losses/(gains)
recognised in the statement of MERHERER L
profit or loss REFEE/ (&) (137) 33,634 907 247 34,651
Provision against/(write-back of
provision against) inventories S/ (BERmE) 7,046 31,133 (5,630) 2,087 34,636
Loss on disposalfwrite-off of items of ﬁ’%/ k=t E R
property, plant and equipment e A 5,191 1,057 9 = 6,257
Depreciation and amortisation & R 334,003 138,985 4,805 = 477,793
Unallocated amounts FoEgmE 4,295
482,088
Capital expenditure BARY 848,610 72,960 2,051 = 923,621

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land premiums.
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(continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATE R MY ()
31 December 2016 20164 12 A31 A

4. KETHER (FH)

Year ended 31 December 2015 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food QOthers Total
HE0E2A3NBILEE FB B HERR ity =
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (&)
Segment revenue: Ak
Sales to external customers HOMEE 12334997 2295403 12851913 359,857 27,842,170
Other revenue Atz 173,046 57,457 42,037 75,864 348 404
Revenue from continuing operations BECaERG 12508043 2,352,860 12,893,950 435721 28,190,574
Segment results LR 695,227 94077 117,070 11,668 918,042
Reconciliation: HtE -
Interest income FIEWA 27,870
Dividend income BREMA 46,862
Finance costs BAMA (64,822)
Share of profits of associates iGNt 71,872
Corporate and other AS)E
unallocated expenses ARSI (324,656)
Profit before tax from BERERE
continuing operations BRERTER] 675,168
Segment assets PHEE 6,174,395 4,846,579 2,768 845 243919 14,033,738
Reconciliation: -
Investments in assaciates i AN A 780,759
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ ARIREMADEEE 1,433,042
Assets of a disposal group PERREREL
classified as held for sale HERAEE 375,131
Total assets BEQE 16,622,670
B ERAERAE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

A

4. REFHEFR ()

Year ended 31 December 2015 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food QOthers Total
HE0BERA3NBILEE L B HERM i Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tidn Tin Tin TiHn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&71) (&)
Segment liabilities AEHEE 3,537,542 767,142 2,426,477 630 6,731,841
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR E AT EE 2,736,936
Liabilities directly associated with ERANEAREREL
the assets classified as held for sale BEEBZERE 101,694
Total labilties RfRAE 9,570,471
Other segment information: HttAHEH -
Net impairment losses recognised BRI R
in the statement of profit or loss JREFER 4742 37,908 22,889 - 65,539
Provision against/(write-back of provision
against) inventories FERE/ (BfERE) 10921 36,314 (10,425) - 36,310
Loss/(gain) on disposaliwrite-off of items ~ Hi% /HissHE Bz Rk
of property, plant and equipment BE BB/ (W) 6,138 1,137 (3,574) - 3,701
Depreciation and amortisation TERZH 351,234 153,735 11,778 = 516,747
Unallocated amounts FOEEE 8,265
525,012
Capital expenditure EARY 726,887 127,494 2,380 - 856,761

*

equipment and prepaid land premiums.

Geographical information

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
operating in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group’s non-
current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred

tax assets, are situated in Mainland China.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no single customer from which the
revenue derived has accounted for 10% or more of the Group'’s

revenue (2015: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W5 aR MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. KA >~ HibW A R ks
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold WA TR ARFENGRES RE ST
during the year, after allowances for returns and trade HENEEEEMBERFE -
discounts.
An analysis of other income and gains from continuing BEELEEBNEMURA R B D T
operations is as follows: W
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt F#ET THETT
Other income Hipug A
Gross rental income e U A LBz 2,722 3,060
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 18,407 22168
Interest income from EREMLZ
financial products LB U A = 5,702
Dividend income from AHEHERE
available-for-sale investments A% BUg A 48,689 46,862
Government grants * AT B * 155,122 167,668
Compensation income fE WA 3,016 18,191
Sale of by-products and scrap items & &2l &5 M EER TE B 26,035 35,045
Commission income <2 BA 102,126 115,220
Others Hit 14,258 4139
370,375 418,055
Gains &=
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A TS 31 118,774 =
Gain on disposal of equity HEZRATFETIA
investments at fair value Bam s EmiRE
through profit or loss 2 Wes = 4,466
Fair value gains on investment WEYHEZ
properties N EWRE 15 115 615
118,889 5,081
489,264 423,136

* Various government grants were granted for investments in
certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate. Government grants for which related
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income (non-current portion) and other payables and
accruals (current portion) in the statement of financial position,
respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

Y REEEERZEEKITHE AR
BARRFIME 2 AR & P 2 Bl
BEETE 1 o BATH BIE R0 R 2
XM BB EIFER MK F AIE
WA (FERBNES D) R E M FENT R
REFRE(RBERD)A - ZFH
By AT EZ IR A E
Ig o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

China Foods Limited

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIANGEF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is REBE 7 ELEEBEBRB AR A TY
arrived at after charging/(crediting): e (GEA) FHIBIE
2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
023 TET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 21,434,260 21,480,818
Provision against inventories FERE 34,636 36,810
Cost of sales HER AR 21,468,896 21,517,628
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z S Em T B 3,037 3,227
Depreciation e 464,581 503,859
Amortisation of other
intangible assets H i f T & B 5 18 4,242 9,794
Recognition of prepaid
land premiums RIEM L e 16 13,265 11,359
Minimum lease payments CETREMNRIE
under operating leases HEFE 206,980 213,631
Employee benefit expense EERMAX
(including directors’ and (BEESER
chief executive’s TR E I (PHEE8)) -
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries TERFE 1,671,879 1,685,553
Equity-settled share option expense DA 45 5 1) BB AR A ] 2 (2,821) 2,469
Pension schemes contributions* RIRETEI K - 177,735 181,176
1,846,793 1,869,198
Foreign exchange differences, net MEN =58« F58 8,863 14,935
Other expenses and losses Hink> KEE
include the following: BFEA TR
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of Mm% - BE REEEE
property, plant and equipment ZHEBE M 6,257 3,701
Impairment of available-for-sale
investments AEHERE ZRE 20 378 3,477
Impairment of items of property, L ER NG
plant and equipment 1BE ZRE 2,431 15,119
Impairment of accounts receivable FEUWERFORE 32,183 46,738
Impairment/(reversal of H it FIBRE,
impairment) of other receivables CRERE) (341) 205

* At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in

future years (2015: Nil).
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7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIRE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

7. BERAK
18 T A S T O B R B R AT AT -

follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on: FE
Bank loans wholly repayable AFEREEHEE

within five years ZIRTTEFK 33,493 61,062

Loans from non-controlling 2R B Fft B A R SEERR
shareholders of subsidiaries (note 35) R 2 B (Fi7E35) 1,699 2,590
Others EHA 558 1,170
35,750 64,822

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

8. EERITHRAHME

REEEZRITREZMSIRIBH R
P&z EmARA( EMRAL) - FE
NEHEGIZE383(1)(@) * (b) * (c) & (f) &
NR(BBEEENRER) RIS 2805

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of (N
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
Group
AEE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Fees: W
Executive directors HITES — =
Non-executive directors EHMITES - =
Independent non-executive directors BYIEAHTES 1,375 1,275
1,375 1,275
Other emoluments: HEe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYR G 4,381 3,927
Discretionary bonuses B IBIEAL 6,517 3,430
Equity-settled share option expense IR 45 5 s A A <2 173 330
Pension scheme contributions BRIRETEIR R 589 501
11,660 8,188
13,035 9,463
pEERAERAE 201645

205
b—x



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EERTHARME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
In prior years, certain directors were granted share options of RUABFEE - RIBEARFBERER
the Company, in respect of their services to the Group, under g AETESHESERASEIREHZ
the share option scheme of the Company, further details R mER TAQ G EARE - HFE
of which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. BRI ISR E28 - ZEERIEZ
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised AFE(ENEBHEEBERRARE
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was R)TIAREBHETE - A& AR
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included FEPBKRE TR EAREERITR
in the financial statements for the current year is included BH M NIEEE
in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHTESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRMBILIERTES T 24
during the year were as follows: ST :
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiBT
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark IRV ey 340 320
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A 345 320
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FRPEE 345 315
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANSEE 345 320
1,375 1,275
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR- WEMBYIIERTEES
independent non-executive directors during the year HEAMEE (20154 : ) o
(2015: Nil).

I1206 China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FATsR M5 ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

8. EERTHAHMS (F)

(b) HTEE  FHTESERITH

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
inkind Discretionary expense contributions Total
Fees & 2R bonuses  MRAEE  RKEHE remuneration
e REWNE BERL  BRERX #3 ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thr THr THR T#n T#n
2016 2016 %
Executive directors: HiTE%:
Mr. Jiang Guojin* RS RE" - 1,967 3,043 - 328 5,338
Ms. Wu Wenting! RYELT! = 898 1,134 30 40 2,102
Mr. Wu Fei? B2 - 1,081 2,028 46 143 3,298
Mr. Zhou Chenguang® RN 2 - 435 312 - 78 825
- 4,381 6,517 76 589 11,563
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ma Jianping SETLE - - - 39 - 39
Mr. Yu Xubo? FhER A4S - - - - - -
Mr. Ning Gaoning® EREEAS - - - 10 - 10
Ms. Liu Ding* M7 &t - - - 35 - 35
Mr. Wang Zhiying T7BEE - - - - - -
- - - 84 - 84
- 4,381 6,517 160 589 11,647

Mr. Jiang Guojin is also the chief executive of the
Company.

Ms. Wu Wenting resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 15 September 2016.

Mr. Wu Fei and Mr. Zhou Chenguang were appointed as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 15
September and 9 November 2016, respectively, and the
remuneration during their tenure as executive directors
accounted to approximately HK$400,000 and HK$80,000,
respectively.

Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as non-
executive directors of the Company with effect from 15
February 2016.

Ms. Liu Ding resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 9 November 2016.

ITBY % 55 2 TR 3 AN 22 AT T I AR
2o

RXBLLBERRAHITE
% H2016F9H15HEERL -

SRIRELER BRI TE L TEZ T/
AREHTEE - 552016
FIORAISARIIAIASER - iy
REETNTTEE ZHE D5
#3400,000,£7T % 80,000,87T °

FIB5 56 4 & B2 /5 BE 5F A BT
AREIHHTEE » F2016%F2
A 15 HFELZK °

WTRLEHFERRFHFHTE
% - H2016F11 H9HEERL -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (continued)

8. EERTHAHME (F)

(b) HMTES  FHUTEERITH
()

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

in kind

Fees ¢ 284
e REWHR
HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity-settled Pension

share option scheme
Discretionary expense  contributions Total
bonuses  FRAKE  RIREEl remuneration
WEEL BRERX 3R ae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET FAx AR AT AT
2015 20156
Executive directors: HTES
Mr. Jiang Guojin* TRELE" = 1,965 1,863 = 261 4,089
Ms. Wu Wenting RELT - 1,233 896 78 137 2344
Mr. Lu Xiaohut! EEELE! - 729 671 - 103 1,503
- 3,927 3,430 78 501 7,936
Non-executive directors: FRITES
Mr. Ma Jianping SETEE = = - 78 = 78
Mr. Yu Xubo? TR A2 = = = = = =
Mr. Ning Gaoning? ERELE? = = - % = %
Ms. Liu Ding W7zt - - - 78 - 78
Mr. Wang Zhiying T A%k - - - - - -
- - - 252 - 252
- 3,927 3,430 330 501 8,188

* Mr. Jiang Guojin is also the chief executive of the
Company.

L Mr. Lu Xiaohui resigned as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 26 August 2015 (The
remuneration during his tenure as executive director was
HK$1,212,000).

2 Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as non-
executive directors of the Company with effect from 15
February 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2015: Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2015: one) directors and one of them is also the chief
executive, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
three (2015: four) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

WS R MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

9. HEBREHFMzESR

FRALERRFMZER  BEME
EE(2015F : —R) HPF—RTA
TR - A TR LXK
8o FIN - HER=4 (20155 : M%)
REHMERRBREELITHRAE
BEZFEMEEIIMAT

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYH = 5,285 6,613
Discretionary bonuses E)IBIEAT 3,809 5,284
Equity-settled share option expense A EE B ERA S 140 369
Pension scheme contributions RIRFHEIE R 459 574
9,693 12,840

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

R EE CFERRITHAE) Z#
BN THNAER 2 AT

Number of employees

EEHA
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /712 3,000,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 i 712 3,500,000 % 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 i 752 4,000,000 % 7T 1 1
3 4

In prior years, the non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees were granted share options of the Company in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value
of these options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE  FESRTBAHRS
B B 5L i S S AR BRI AR
ERTARRNBERE  BRAFEH
R BRRM 28 - ZEBAED
NHED R RE R A 85 HRR AR
@ RE LA REEARAFI R
XHERNEREBRN LSS
EITBAEERFHMEENHE R E
A o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2015: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC in 2013, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprises
(collectively the “CREs”) and relevant enterprise income tax
policies of the PRC are applicable to the CREs commencing
from 1 January 2013.

10. A%

AEBRFARBEEE ZHAE
RBEA - 1 16.5% Z T ERAELEFE
ST (20154 © ) o EE A0
IR PR EIR P R A ) B R BR AN SR A 2
EBEREEBRMEIT ZRITHR
K EHA

RB013FHEBEKRHEEBEL
ZHX - RAR R E T B QB HAR
SPEERRGE(BRBEIHEERD
X)) "EEBEEMEHREERH
0B3F1IAIBEERRTEERD
o,

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current — Mainland China BVER — AR B R
Charge for the year RAFEE IR 218,115 290,746
Underprovision in prior years BEFERENE 1,963 10,167
Current — Hong Kong ENER— &
Underprovision in prior years BEFERENE 130 =
Current — Elsewhere BNER— E fib i (=
Charge for the year RAFEEHIBR 56 =
Deferred (note 26) PRI (I3 26) 5,821 (20,803)
Total tax charge for the year FEBEFITR 226,085 280,110

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the maijority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Wi e (8)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

10. &% ()

UTRFBARE - EREMHHEAR
B AE RDAR X ER K EM
ERRBAERN,(BR) 2HIAX
- RRAMBERFE 2 FAHEE
AR ERAB R (ALAER R ) B8 M
R ZFENIAR

2016 2016 F
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
B HEAE HtHE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn % THx % ThL % ThL %
Proft before tax Al 19241 626,795 1,920 647,956
Tax at the statutory tax rates BT E ZHE 3,175 165 156,699 25.0 (134) (6.9) 159,740 2.7
Lower tax rate for specific provinces [ERl B A E e
or enacted by a local authority* i - - (5) - - - (5) -
Profits attributable to associates Benakbat - - (18,253) (2.9) - - (18,253) (2.8)
Income not subject to tax BEAT I (3707 (19.3) (36999) (59 - - (407060  (6.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz 532 28 14993 24 546 84 16,071 2.5
Adjustments in respect of B HRAATE
current tax of previous periods S 130 0.7 1,963 03 - - 2,09 03
Adjustments in respect of B HRETHE
deferred tax of previous periods LHE - - (4011) (0.6) - - (4011 (0.6)
Tax losses utlised from previous periods 1B/ HE 27t - - (8%9) 0.1 (1,298  (676) (2153)  (0.3)
Tax losses not recognised AR - - 111,849 178 1460 760 113,309 174
Tax charge at the Group's EASEEMHENS
effective rate ZHEX 130 0.7 225381 36.0 574 299 226,085 349
hERRARATE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FA TR M o ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

10. &% ()

2015 20154
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
Bk HELARE AR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i % Thn %  TAn % TR %
(Restated) ~ (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated) ~(Restated) (Restated)
(1) (&) &) &) ) ()
Profit(loss) before tax hangsl/ (&) (29878) 730,023 (24977) 675,168
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEREE 2 HE (4930) 165 182506 50 (3513) 141 174063 258
Lower tax rate for specific provinces (Bl it k)
or enacted by a local authority* REHZ* - - (764) (01 - - (764) (01)
Profits attributable to associates BENAREER - - (17968) (25) - - (17968) 27
Income not subject to tax BERT WA (4432) 148 (5503) 08 - - (993) (15)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz 9,763 (326) 18825 26 2693 (108 31281 46
Adjustments in respect of AR R
current tax of previous periods L% - - 10167 14 - - 10167 15
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax ~ BAHEELHE
of previous periods L% - - BH07 32 - - B507 35
Tax losses utlised from previous periods ~ E1FiBA SR 25 (401) 13 (2019) (03) - - (2416) 03)
Tax losses not recognised R - - 68381 95 379 (152) 72175 107
Taxcharge at the Group's effective rale ~ RASBAMHEHE2 B - - 11% RO 2974 (119) 280,110 415

Under the PRC income tax laws, enterprises are subject to

corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25%. However, certain
of the Group’s subsidiaries are operating in specific development
zones in Mainland China, and relevant authorities have granted
these subsidiaries a preferential CIT rate of 15%.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$21,374,000 (2015: HK$24,623,000) is included in “Share
of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIRE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11 AL REEE R 2 EARES
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE ExHEHSE

(1) Discontinued operation (1) RIEEEEK

Prized Developments Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Target Group”) are engaged in the production of the
Group’s chocolate and other confectionary products,
which are sold and distributed via COFCO Food Sales
& Distribution Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. Together these two components comprise
the Group’s confectionery segment (the “Discontinued
Segment”).

On 31 December 2015, the Company announced the
decision of its board of directors to dispose of the Target
Group by entering into an equity transfer and debt
assignment agreement with Tops Properties Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Property (Group)
Co., Ltd. which is a Shenzhen-listed company owned
as to 45.67% by COFCO, for a total consideration
of RMB611,000,000 (subject to certain potential
adjustments). The Group has decided to cease the
Discontinued Segment because it plans to focus its
resources on its other business.

As a result, the Discontinued Segment was classified
as a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued
operation. With the Discontinued Segment being
classified as a discontinued operation, it is no longer
included in the note for operating segment information.

On 31 May 2016, the disposal transaction in relation to
the Target Group was completed.

Prized Developments Limited & £
MEBAR (SR BEEEE]) S
EERNSEEMNT R REMKE
ROER ZSEMBBASE
N—REEHBARTREREMRE
HAERARETHERSH - &
MEBMH EREAKAEENKRBR
a0 ([ RIS E D)) o

MN2015% 128310 & & 7
EMEEEYRTE  RBHEPIE
WE(EB)BROHERAR(—XK
FIETAR  AhEEEEFS
4567%)MEENBRARIESE
EBR AR N EREE
HEHEEZEE BREAA
R #611,000,000 7T (I #1745 T
BIEARE) - BEARRERK
AHMERS I - XAFERE
IR HEEERE D ED o

At - RIEEEXBE DAL
FELE 2 HEEE RIS
X5 ARNRIEREXRB D E D
BRAKIEREXE HETHE
RERLEDEEMMER -

201655 HA31H - BHEBRES
BEHNHERXZETK °
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31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11. BRI RE R
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EZHEAS

(continued)

(1) Discontinued operation (continued)

(1) AR ()

The net assets of Discontinued Segment as at the date of IR ST D ER A H & B BHY
disposal were as follows: BEFENT
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment W - B NKEE 128,207
Investment properties "EME 79,297
Inventories FE 43,891
Accounts and bills receivables FEWAR R R R 10,553
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFRIE ~ e REAMEWGRIE 1,878
Prepaid tax TEETIE 1,490
Due from fellow subsidiaries R XMW B R RIRK 5,666
Cash and bank balances He RIRTT4EH 17,329
Accounts and bills payables ENEREER (18,353)
Other payables and accruals HAbfENFRIB R ERT B E (23,474)
Due to fellow subsidiaries REIRZMBAEIFIE (946)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIETIEAE (14,879)
230,659
Exchange fluctuation reserve INE BN R (43,110)
187,549
Gain on disposal of the discontinued operation HE R IR 7 Wes 418,242
Related income tax expense SR E A (52,760)
Post-tax gain on disposal of the SR RS ERS
discontinued operations Z W 365,482
553,031
Satisfied by: ATRB B
Cash Be 677,997
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNGEL N ENGIE S (94,758)
Tax payable ANE R (30,208)
553,031
China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11 RUEREERR 2 EAFES
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE E2HEAS (&)
(continued)
(1) Discontinued operation (continued) (1) AR (]E)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHELENBRARICRERRS
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: LEBERAFELITOT -

HK$’000
FiBT
Cash consideration BERE 700,549
Related income tax paid TERAFT ST E R (22,552)
677,997
Cash and bank balances disposed of REERZIRE MIBE &% (17,329)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BRAHERIEREEB R R
of the disposal of the discontinued operation ReFBEIBER MAFRE 660,668
The results of the Discontinued Segment for the year are || 4% A e 7R SR PA TR 4 FEF ) 3
presented below: %ﬁ%ﬁljpu‘r
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FiBT
Revenue WA 114,747 388,907
Cost of sales SHEKA (77,377) (232,682)
Other income and gains E YA Rz 1,917 9,581
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R D (77,576) (246,553)
Administrative expenses T (5,218) (13,562)
Other expenses and losses HAtb 7 H R EE (216) (4,161)
Loss before tax from the RIEREEBL 2
discontinued operation BrELATE1E (43,723) (98,470)
Income tax credit/(expense) ERERTAIEE 2
related to pre-tax loss FsRie, (1) 205 (53)
Loss for the year from the RIEREEBE 2
discontinued operation FEEE (43,518) (98,523)
Post-tax gain on disposal of the HER FEEHETK 2
discontinued operation gl 365,482 =
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 42 | FAR & 27 E(E 2
the discontinued operation FEmM,/(EB) 321,964 (98,523)
Profit/(loss) before tax attributable to 48 1F A& EFEFEML 2
the discontinued operation BEALs A (EER) 374,519 (98,470)
Income tax expense attributable to %gii‘“%%fiﬂgfﬁz
the discontinued operation BEZH (52,555) (53)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to IR 2
the discontinued operation ifm%'/()*éﬁé\ 321,964 (98,523)

pEERAERAE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11 RUEREEBER S EABES
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE %Ztﬂ’%#&ﬁé(%)
(continued)

(1) #RIEREXER (&)
K12 A3l Ap B ARHARFERK
HREEXBOMNEERRARN

(1) Discontinued operation (continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the
Discontinued Segments classified as held for sale as at 31

December are as follows: FEHFEMT ¢
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBTT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - RE MR = 133,338
Investment properties B = 80,331
Inventories FE = 89,043
Accounts and bills receivables JE%ZEE%\&KTF = 21,112
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - ek
other receivables E{@EEH&ZMIE = 15,661
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEINIEEACIVSE S - 24,840
Prepaid tax TR IR = 1,506
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER = 9,300
Assets classified as held for sale NEAREFEZEE = 375,131
Liabilities aE
Accounts and bills payables ERNERRREE - (38,114)

Other payables and accruals Hib N HRIBEREGTAE - (46,379)
Due to fellow subsidiaries REIZMBREIFIE - (1,893)
Due to related companies REBFE N R FIA - (62)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 26) FEIEF TR & & (M5 26) - (15,246)
Liabilities directly associated

with the assets classified BEEHESEARAEREZ

as held for sale BEEBHEMNERE - (101,694)
Net assets directly associated BHR AR A TS EB

with the Discontinued Segment BEMBEEFE - 273,437
Asset revaluation reserve of the BRI EEE D HNE

Discontinued Segment EShFE - 6,910
Exchange fluctuation reserve of IR TS D IR

the Discontinued Segment N A BN 4 = 45511

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR ERR M ()
31 December 2016 20164 12 A31 A

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11 AL REEBR D EABEES
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EZHEHS (,%E
(continued)
(1) Discontinued operation (continued) (1) RIBEEK(E)
The net cash flows incurred by the Discontinued Segment BRI EEB D BEENR SR
are as follows: EFEMAT
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Operating activities R ED) 9,612 3,450
Investing activities "EES (1,583) (3,683)
BErEnA
Net cash flow inflow/(outflow) O #88 8,029 (233)
Earnings/(loss) per share: BF,(E18)
Basic, attributable to the
discontinued operation ER IR ST HK11.51 centsi&fl  (HK3.52 centsi#{l)
Diluted, attributable to the
discontinued operation g IR PR HK11.51 centsi&fl  (HK3.52 centsi#{l)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to the discontinued operation are based

on:

ATERREEBRENTRE
AREERN, (BIE) THER :

2015
20154

2016
2016 &

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the parent AR EEREREE A

attributable to the discontinued FEAG AR I E A & TS HY

operation e R (E518) HK$321,964,000 %7 (HK$98,523,000/47T)
Weighted average number of ordinary 5+ & AR E 7R K #5E

shares in issue during the year EBERHEAN

used in the basic and diluted loss BETEER

per share calculation (note 13) hnrE g8 (FisE 13) 2,797,223,396 2797,223,3%

hERRARATE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11 AL REEER P EARES
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EZHEAS (8\)

(continued)

(2 PEAFEREZHELAS

(2) Disposal group classified as held for sale

On 16 December 2016, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the Company entered into the public sale equity transfer
master agreement with Swire Beverages Holdings Limited
pursuant to which the Company agreed to dispose of
its entire equity interests in Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Limited, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jiangxi)
Limited and Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, and its associates Swire Coca-Cola Beverages
Jiangsu Limited, Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Zhejiang
Limited and Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Wenzhou
Limited and its available-for-sale investments in Swire
Guangdong Coca-Cola Limited, Swire Guangdong Coca-
Cola (Huizhou) Limited and The Coca-Cola Bottling Unit
of Shanghai Shen-Mei Beverage and Food Co., Ltd.
(collectively referred to as the “Public Sale Companies”)
to Swire Beverages Holdings Limited at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB2,122 million.

The Public Sale Companies are engaged in the processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage, and
distributing still beverage in various regions in Mainland
China, which are part of the Group’s beverage segment.
The above transactions, which are expected to be
completed within one year, together with the acquisition
of various beverage companies from The Coca-Cola
Company and Swire Beverages Holdings Limited expected
to be completed in 2017 as well as the disposal of the
Discontinued Segment during the year, form part of the
Group’s overall strategy of concentrating on expanding its
core activities.

M20165F 12 A 16 B « KA R
B 65% HE 51 2 i BB X m AP IE Al
ORISR AR Q) AR A AR
R RRHER AR A AR L AR
HEEREBZASR Bt &
NARBRA G SRZERERA
BAHEARRRREMB AR SR
PR ORISR BR AR -
8RO AT 2Rt T 78) AR A A)
KOs T g r O R E BR A
A ARREBE QRTINS
A AR KRB ABRAT - HHTK
ERIERE S-S ERo) VNIV
AEAI ORI R BRQA - LA
RERAHEERERRALA
ARLER AR - BERAHAH
AILEEINAR D F N LiBRER
HRMARARR HAILEEME
7 (528 [ AR E AR ) 2 AR
Bt MREHARE21.22(E
IT o

AL ERRERBRKENR
BIEESKERONT  ZRKX
DEETEREERNDHE
BN EESREEB D I — 36
17 o FAEIR —FE AN TR E Eat 2
5 - EREFEEN 2017 e8I A)
A O A 240 B MoK i R R A
RARIWEZERE AT UK
FRAEERIIEEEEDE B
NEBF TR BRZ D EIFHE

RERAR -

]
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Wi e (8)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL 11, R REXRT P ERBFEF
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EHEAS (&

(continued)

(2) Disposal group classified as held for sale (2 P EABEFEZHEAS
(continued) (%&)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Public E"20l6¢ 12A318  AAHE
Sale Companies classified as held for sale as at 31 AN HEARBHEEZEZEH
December 2016 are as follows: ﬁ?&%ﬁﬁu—l—
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE MR 316,405 =
Prepaid land premiums FEf L e 34,043 =
Prepayments for items of BEYE  BWER
property, plant and equipment HBEE B 2 BN RIE 25 =
Goodwill B 102,782 -
Investments in associates REEE AR 218 E 88,148 =
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE 195,393 =
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE = 9,946 =
Inventories FE 150,516 =
Accounts and bills receivables FEWER R R R 25,134 =
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - ek
other receivables Hofh e W IR 20,504 =
Due from associates N USEN 1 =
Prepaid tax TEEFIIE 175 =
Pledged deposits EIRFER 2,376 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReKFEEEEE 12,772 =
Assets classified as held for sale SHERFHERFEZ
HEHEEE 958,220 =
Liabilities =
Accounts and bills payables FERBR R R 25 (115,879) -
Other payables and accruals HEMENZIARETAE (182,881) =
Due to associates NI E R (26,972) -
Tax payable FETRE IR (3,567) -
Liabilities directly associated with the ~EEZEDBAZEFEZ
assets classified as held for sale HEHEEEERZBE (329,299) -
Net assets directly associated with BEEHEARTEAREGH
the Public Sale Companies ZEEFE 628,921 =
Exchange fluctuation reserve of the AREERARZ
Public Sale Companies HNE BB 35,100 -
MEEMARAT 20165 219

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RSeRR B AT (48)

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interim — HK1.2 cents (2015: Nil) per FRHEE — AR EAR
ordinary share 1.2l (20154 : ) 33,572 —
Proposed final — HK1.2 cents FEAH - BT AR
(2015: HK1.0 cent) 1.2 7%l (20154 :
per ordinary share 1.07841L) 33,567 27,977
67,139 27,977

The board has resolved to recommenced to shareholders the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.2 cents per share for the
year (2015: HK1.0 cent per share) to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members on
Friday, 16 June 2017.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,797,223,396 (2015: 2,797,223,396) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 in respect of a dilution because the impact of the
share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share amounts presented.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

EExechmAE2017E6A16H (2
B ) A5 AR R ER A R A A B
RIRBEAFERRIPIREFR 1.2
(20154 : &A% 1.05840) -

FRAEERERFE ARG
BREF

EREABNBBLDRERA LR
BREmTE ARG AFE SR -
URAFEERTNEFHER
B2 B 2,797,223,396 % (20154
2,797,223,3961% ) 5t & °
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. &
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT =3

(continued)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FATsR M5 ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 H

5
B

—

(%)

NEEBRESTA ARG

HESREARNDER ;

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRaEakERFE A
holders of the parent, used in the E(EaA - AREE
basic earnings per share calculation: SIRERZR :
From continuing operations BB 177,771 153,156
From a discontinued operation IR ETE 321,964 (98,523)
499,735 54,633
Shares % 13
Weighted average number of ordinary RARETESRER
shares in issue during the year used MEERFNENR
in the basic and diluted earnings B a7 T B
per share calculation DEF 8K 2,797,223,396 2,797,223,396

pEERAERAE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BENRZE

Plant
machinery
Freehold and
land equipment Bearer  Construction
XA%E  Buildings BE plants in progress Total
Ti BT HERRE +SEHED  HERIE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx TAR TER TEn TAR
31 December 2016 M2016%12531R
At 31 December 2015 and R015E12A31HK
at 1 January 2016 (restated) 2016F1R1R(E7) :
Cost kA 76,737 2,745,756 4,946,268 188,498 272,186 8,229,445
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
and impairment KRfE - (864,602) (2,674,611)  (19,588) - (3,558,801)
Net carrying amount RRFE 76,737 1,881,154 2,271,657 168,910 272,186 4,670,644
At 1 January 2016, net of R016F1A1E
accumulated depreciation NREHTERAE
and impairment (restated) (Z5) 76,737 1,881,154 2,271,657 168,910 272,186 4,670,644
Additions HE - 12,844 325,145 - 476,506 814,495
Amount included in the SAERREL
assets held for sale (note 11) SE (M) - (104,130) (212,275) - - (316,405)
Disposalsfwrite - off HE /M - (2,046)  (81,370) - - (83,416)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 31) HEMBAR (M 31) - (267,238) (40) (51,789 - (319,067)
Depreciation provided during the year  ERTERE - (104,257)  (355,281) (5,043) - (464,581)
Impairment WE - - (2,431) - - (2,431)
Transfers from construction
in progress BRETRTE - 120,348 122,630 - (242978) -
Exchange realignment [ A% 1,730 (116,425  (140,865) (7,057)  (24,572)  (287,189)
At 31 December 2016, net of M2016%F12F31H -
accumulated depreciation TRZEHER
and impairment e 78,467 1,420,250 1,927,170 105,021 481,142 4,012,050
At 31 December 2016: R2016%12A318 :
Cost A 78467 2,183,638 4226762 119013 481,142 7,089,022
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment SATERRE - (763,388) (2,299,592)  (13,992) - (3,076,972)
Net carrying amount REFE 78,467 1,420,250 1,927,170 105,021 481,142 4,012,050

China Foods Limited
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

14. Y% - BEKRRE (E)

FATsIAR M5 ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 H

(continued)
Plant
machinery
Freehold and
land equipment Bearer  Construction
XAFE  Buldings 5 plants in progress Total
1 BF WHREE EEMED  ERIE @i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (Z31)
31 December 2015 R2015512831H
At 1 January 2015: ROBELALR:
Cost KA 88318 2779733 5,119,203 200,806 412,49 8,600,554
Accumulated depreciation ZiE
and impairment KAE - (857,080) (2,842,390) - - (3699,476)
Net carrying amount REFE 88318 1922647 2276813 200,806 412494 4901,078
At 1 January 2015, net of
accumulated depreciation RABELALR
and impeiiment R T E R 88318 192647 2076813 20806 41249 4901078
Additions HRE - 60312 466,418 3,590 256,405 786,725
Assets included in the SARIHER RS,
discontinued operation (note 11) BE(MEEL) = (58390)  (72.37)) - 2571)  (133339)
Disposalswrite-off HE /s - (124)  (265%) (1,036) - (27,755)
Depreciation provided during the year  ENFERLE - (112327)  (398,34]) (9472) - (520,140)
Surplus on revaluation Bfh B = 5,586 = = = 5,586
Impairment HfE - - (5104)  (10,769) - (15873)
Transfers to investment BESRENE
properties (note 15) (FzE15) - (24,344) - - - (24344)
Transfer from investment ERERENZ
properties (note 15) (FzE15) - 3,197 - - = 3197
Transfers from construction
in progress BEATETR - 201797 171,741 - (3735%) -
Exchange realignment AR (11881) (117,200  (140898) (142090  (20604)  (304,492)
At 31 December 2015, net of M2015%F12A31H -
accumulated depreciation TRZHTER
and impairment E 76,737 181,154 2271657 168,910 272,186 4,670,644
At 31 December 2015: M2015%12A31H :
Cost KA 76,737 2,745,756 4,946,268 188,498 272,186 8,229,445
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZAERAE - (B64602) (2674611 (19,588) - (3558,801)
Net carrying amount FEFE 76,737 181,154 2271657 168,910 272,186 4,670,644
hERRRARAE 20164

=
223 E




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - MENRE (&)

iy

224

me—ng

(continued)

An impairment of HK$2,431,000 (2015: HK$15,873,000
(restated)) was recognised for certain property, plant
and equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$32,153,000 (2015: HK$112,597,000 (restated)) (before
deducting the impairment loss) during the year because those
property, plant and equipment had been dormant and/or
obsolete.

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$171,461,000 were pledged to banks to secure the bank
loans granted to the Group (note 25).

At 31 December 2016, certificates of ownership in respect
of certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$222,351,000 (2015:
HK$140,960,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR M RE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

15. REY%E

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZERmE 34,735 98,331
Transfer from owner-occupied HEBRXFEAME
properties (note 14) (Fi7E14) = 24,344
Transfer to owner-occupied HEREET EAYME
properties (note 14) (Ft7E14) = (3,197)
Net gain from a fair value AN ERAERMESE 115 2,004
adjustment e F58
Exchange realignment PE 5 #E (2,206) (6,416)
32,644 115,066
Less: Assets included in the discontinued &l @ 5T AR IEAS & 275
operation (note 11) ZEE(BEE1L) = (80,331)
Carrying amount at 31 December M®12 A31 BZREE 32,644 34,735

The Group’s investment properties consist of three commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties are
commercial properties based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2016 based on valuations
performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$32,644,000 (2015: HK$34,735,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 33(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

AKEBZIEEYEBRERRBARER
—HEHERAWE - ARAEERES
KEYWEZHES B RERR
VIEBEYMEAEAME - K2016F
12A318 ' BYFEXEAERGER
F—AFREHENGEELEEERAR
NAHAEE 2 EMEETHHES
32,644,000 7T.(2015 4 : 34,735,000
BIT) °

ZEREMEHDBBLLEROMAT
FZ 0 EMbRFEIERL R B RS HRR MY
5F33(a) °

DFHERBR
TRIPARERANENAFE
EER :

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using

R2016 12 A31 BRRATHEXFENATLE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

it FET TERT
miZRE BE2Y BE2Y Total
(B—H) (=) (=) #gt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TEx T THET

Recurring fair value B RFIIE B ETE R
measurement for: NFERE -
Commercial properties [k ES - - 32,644 32,644
hEERAERAE 20164



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MIRE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

REW=E (&)
DFERER (R])

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
M20156 12 A31 AT A XA 2N ATE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Ja iR FET FENH
minmE B2 BR2Y Total
(F—&) (=) (=) wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET FAET

Recurring fair value B RFIIE B ETE R
measurement for: RNEERE -

Commercial properties [ElakES = = 34,735 34,735

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

RER RFEFEES - EHE—
BRI BETHES  NEEE=]E
ETEAREH (20155 © &) -

NERBAAEH R EYRETHERPT
RENGEETEREIEZH

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
HERE TERTBRZY HERMEFY
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value HK$19 to HK$21 to
cash flow method (per sg.m and per month) HK$85 HK$218
EliikES BHRREREE et EEE 19%ZE 2178 E
(BERAKREBA) 85787 21887T
Rent growth (p.a.) 0% 0% to 5%
HEHRE(8F) 0% 0% £5%
Long term vacancy rate 0% to 2% 0% to 20%
REIZZE &K 0% Z2% 0% 2 20%
Discount rate 2.5% to 7% 2.5% t0 7%
BhIR 2.5% & 7% 25% & 7%

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A
market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected cash
flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income is then discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W5 aR MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

15. REW = (F|)

ANEEER (&)
e mE M FER R XOR ARG
HErAERKEDAESKR  HOE
fﬂ&ﬁ?ﬁ]ﬁ}ﬂ HEIBFEEHA
 HEMBEREXMETA(BY
%*EEJE’Jﬁ’IE)%; TEHR S RER
BWHHBRZEE - ~AIEKER - I
BRIBK  THERE  #EEH K12
*Dﬁ@ﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁééﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
8o z—ERTHLE WA FREE
ARIRERIE o

AR EEERMSHEEFIRRERE
BARIEI, RO EBIRE M EN
NFEAREEN R o REEE K
SEIFER PN R | I B S
REMEN RN TENERD,EM
—RmE - A EEBEEDNR
REPEHBEEHSFERRNER
KHRIEAES  MEHEERHR
[RIA&E o

16. ¥ L&

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1RZEEE 471,842 435,351
Additions NE 109,126 75,126
Recognised during the year FRTER (13,265) (11,359)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 31) HEMBAE (MiFE31) (14,419) -
Amount included in the disposal group BRERDEABEREZ
classified as held for sale (note 11) HEAE 25 (FiFEL) (34,043) -
Exchange realignment bE 5 (32,852) (27,276)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12H31H ZEE@TE 486,389 471,842
Current portion included in BIERIERRIE
prepayments, deposits ?ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁlm
and other receivables 2 BNERER (D (13,815) (11,991)
Non-current portion JEBNER =R 15 472,574 459,851

At 31 December 2016, certificates of land use rights in
respect of certain land of the Group in Mainland China with
an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$20,926,000 (2015:
HK$89,780,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.

R2016F 12 A31H » ANEBKFE
j(B?EH'EEﬁ*'fE = /\7%20 926, OOO/’%TE
(20154 : 89,780,000/ 7T) & F £
My mREMRBER BRI REE
B E) + e FARERE o

pEERAERAE 201645



iy

228

me—ng

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR (BB)

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units, which are reportable
segments, for impairment testing:

° Beverage cash-generating unit
e  Wine cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of each of the above cash-generating
units has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections ranged
from 12% to 13% (2015: 12% to 13%) and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%
(2015: 3%).
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17. GOODWILL 17. 58
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
At 1 January: R1A1A8 :
Cost PR R 1,684,061 1,753,834
Accumulated impairment Z5PRE = (11,610)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,684,061 1,742 224
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated MR1A1BZEAK
impairment kR 25HRE 1,684,061 1,742,224
Attributable to the disposal group BEFEZHEAS
classified as held for sale (note 11) FE(EEBn (FizE11) (102,782) -
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (58,925) (58,163)
Cost and net carrying amount # 12 A31 B 2K
at 31 December FEEEFE 1,522,354 1,684,061
Impairment testing of goodwill BE R EIR

BEREBEHMBBEZAE  E0R
ENTREELBM (AT T2%KD )
DAERERIE -

o SRR EEAEM
o BmBERSELBM

PR ERSEL BN 2 ATUREIRER
DIRBEREEEE - EREEAR
ReRERELERERFHREY
BEETERRERERENE -
RenEREMERZUBBAERNF
M12% Z£13% (20154 : 12% &=
13%) - MBERFHENRE R IR
3%(2015%F : 3%) ZIBHREFIAHEA -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MR (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

17. GOODWILL (continued) 7.5 (&)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- NRESRCELEN 2 HEREE
generating units are as follows: N

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Beverage okt 1,109,906 1,190,583

Wine B iR 412,448 493,478

1,522,354 1,684,061

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the cash-generating units for 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the years immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

R 2016412 A 31 H ] 20154712 A31
A EHERSELEM 2 EREE
B DREMAETRR - A TEERE
F*“ﬁfﬁﬁ/,.uifﬁiéﬁﬁmﬁz:—Ea
SRR - UETTREREAR

REEFE - RIEBEREEN XA
HEBEIEE  REERAFEA
HTEERFZFHEME - WHETR
Him G EREmM T -

HBEE-FERMBBRERBFTEREA
Al IR ARIBRE BTS2 B E

g o
ZON
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. AtuBIFEE

Computer
software Water rights Total
ERE MG K a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T
31 December 2016 201612831 H
At 1 January 2016: R201651A1R :
Cost KA 75,433 7,389 82,822
Accumulated amortisation REEH (66,067) (1,145) (67,212)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,366 6,244 15,610
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of R2016%1 A1 8 2B
accumulated amortisation Mk 25T 9,366 6,244 15,610
Amortisation provided during the year 4 Py 5 & & (4,025) (217) (4,242)
Exchange realignment P 5 AR (466) 370 (96)
Cost at 31 December 2016, netof ~ 2016912 531 H2
accumulated amortisation PR+ 0% R 8 4,875 6,397 11,272
At 31 December 2016: M2016%12A31H :
Cost A 70,648 7,834 78,482
Accumulated amortisation T (65,773) (1,437) (67,210)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,875 6,397 11,272
31 December 2015 2015F12A31H
At 1 January 2015: R201551A1R :
Cost A 80,109 8,654 88,763
Accumulated amortisation KETEY (60,297) (1,096) (61,393)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,812 7,558 27,370
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of R2015F1 A1BZHA
accumulated amortisation R 25128 19,812 7,558 27,370
Amortisation provided during the year 4P & (9,568) (226) (9,794)
Exchange realignment [ i % (878) (1,088) (1,966)
Cost at 31 December 2015, netof ~ 72015412 8318 °
accumulated amortisation MR 25188 9,366 6,244 15,610
At 31 December 2015: M2015%12A318 :
Cost XA 75,433 7,389 82,822
Accumulated amortisation REEH (66,067) (1,145) (67,212)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,366 6,244 15,610

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Wi e (8)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REFE RN F 2 ’R’E
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 726,412 780,759

The amounts due from and to associates included in
current assets and current liabilities of HK$26,297,000
(2015: HK$10,496,000) and HK$124,753,000 (2015:
HK$176,405,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

AARBEELRRDAGZHBHED
BIRAKRREBENRRED B A
26,297,000 7T (2015 £ : 10,496,000
7 7T ) & 124,753,0005% 7T (2015 4
176,405,000/ 70 ) » ¥ /AEEIE - %
BMIREN(EE -

AREEMR2016512 A31 H 2 X Z8i &
RAHRHEER IS RAMTES6 -

TRINBALE L T EFEAHE

information of the Group’s associates that are not individually NEIRPE LA E R -
material:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Share of the associates’ profit for the year — JE(GHFE N &) F[Z % 5 73,010 71,872
Share of the associates’ other FE(EEEZ R A/
comprehensive income HE2EBA 548 682
Share of the associates’ total FE(EEEZ R A/
comprehensive income e PNE 73,558 72,554
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s A& E B E A &)
investments in associates ZIEEREREEE T 726,412 780,759

hEERAERAE 20164
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMITE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. At ERE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FETT

Unlisted equity investments I ETRERIRE 12,975 209,637
As at 31 December 2016, the Group's available-for-sale R2016F12 A31H @ A&EBE 2 Al
investments were stated at cost less impairment because the EIRE N ABEHNRBEEIR - 1Ty
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that HREENATEMFHEEELR - &
the directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot EREBEATEEEEFE - A%
be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose BESEESHANEZSERE - RF
of them in the near future. During the year, an impairment A EmE S EBARREE A 9,929,000
of HK$378,000 (2015: HK$ 3,477,000) was recognised for BT (RIIBRBEEIER) 2 A HEE
an available-for-sale investment in the wine segment with B HER IR (B 378,000 7T (2015 4F
a carrying amount of HK$9,929,000 (before deducting the 3,477,000 ) - RAAE REBIE

impairment loss), because there are objective evidences BRI IEIS A HIR R E ©

indicating that such investment was impaired.

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Raw materials R 1,939,219 1,927,016
Work in progress R 6,752 9,290
Finished goods SIRK i 2,061,854 2,102,309
4,007,825 4,038,615
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22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W5 aR MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

22. BWRRRRE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Accounts and bills receivables G S E S 1,446,904 1,481,028
Impairment JRE (127,232) (104,618)
1,319,672 1,376,410

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally for one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its account and bill receivables
balances. Accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

BRErEPIN AEEEEF ZEHIF
ROEBREERY - —RAEHE
PRENK - EEH-—KNF—E=
EA - BREFHIBEERLR-
REB TR RFBEBITHEREER
WERR MR B EEZEGIED - B 1E
SRRBRERE - SR EEETERE
ZBHEE o EN L - ARAKEE
WRAETREE ZBWERR - 5
ERRsETREYITERE - A&H
I St E R W BR R N RR AR A (E
Al o S H A 15 AR B AR - IEUER R
REBB/TETER

R E IR 2 AR R & RIE AR IR
BZRAMARBREINOT :

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T BT

Within 3 months =EAR 1,039,048 1,298,638
3 to 12 months —EAZ+=@EARA 252,501 55,587
1to 2 years —FE-FR 19,296 13,309
Over 2 years HBE—F 8,827 8876
1,319,672 1,376,410

The accounts and bills receivables included in a disposal
group classified as held for sale (note 11) of HK$24,551,000
are aged within three months and the remaining balance of
HK$583,000 is aged within one year.

AN ERFAEREZHEAS (M
11)#924,551,0007% T FE 4 ARk e SR 4%
Rt = =18 B A K2 g T #9583,00078
TCREMBR R S IR A BRI A A —F A ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR R MIRE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. BRI R (&)

(continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

FEUSRFUREREE BT -

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
At 1 January R1A1H 104,618 71,867
Impairment losses recognised BEHERRERSE 32,183 48474
Amount written off as uncollectible B A BR A Al 8 < SRR (1,988) (1,674)
Exchange realignment bE 5, B (7,581) (5,561)
127,232 113,106

Less: Amounts included in the W FT AR B E ETE
discontinued operation (note 11) &5 (fEEL1L) - (8,488)
At 31 December MR12H31H 127,232 104,618

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts
receivable of HK$127,232,000 (2015: HK$104,618,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$428,556,000 (2015:
HK$138,211,000).

The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

it EARER SR E R B IR E R R (A
W Rk 7 #1549127,232,0007% 7.(2015
T : 104,618,000/ 7T) © ZEEIER
TR 2 BRIE{EX) 5 428,556,000
70 (20154 : 138,211,000 %) °
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7 - TRER AR E R RS -



22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W5 aR MR (48)
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

22. BWRR R ZEE (&)

FEMER 2 AR R E R Z FE W AR R K&
SEBRZEREDITOT

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#BT T

Neither past due nor impaired REEITARE 1,001,693 1,333,882
Within 1 year past due BMH—F AR 16,655 8,935
1,018,348 1,342,817

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of HK$52,412,000
(2015: HK$12,247,000) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by
the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was HK$52,412,000 (2015: HK$12,247,000) as at
31 December 2016.

KRBT AR B 2 FRY AR KT R % 2
MY |BEBRBREAZSEETFE

EBBERBE L BRERIIES R
BERAEERFITHRFZBILE
FER - ERAELR  ARmES
R HRRER/B I EEERLE
HIRERNE S B )RR SR BB
[ - i I 4 B2 L% S A R A HORUE
B -

AEMEHERA 2 EHMEE

MR2016E 12 A31H » &N &£ & A &
ETHEMRE DR RERITEAD
8% [ 18 /452,412,000 7T (2015 £ :
12,247,0007870) 2 & TRKREE ([ &
EZE]  LWBERNZEHERD
ENESER(BE]) - BEERE
AEBEREAREHRERRMEER - 2
EHZESEZREENELRR -
Eit - HEERRASEZEREBEE
BEENESEFINEEEREE &
2% AEBVTERBERAEEEE
ZIEAER > BFEREAE =R E
E EHREHBESEEE- - R2016
F12A31H  FAUHBEZERNE
EERFEZENEZSERZEM
{8 42 %8 /552,412,000 7T (2015 £ :
12,247,000/ 7T) °
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At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) with a carrying amount in aggregate
of HK$64,318,000 (2015: HK$45,823,000) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to these
suppliers. The Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss
on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been
made evenly throughout the year.
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22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. EWBRF R E#E (48)
(continued)
Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety FIERLBRANEMEE

M2016F12A31H » AEFEHEET
HEERE PR RERITEMNNSE T
FEWEE ([BUERERZER]) - LUEE
RITZEHERNENESERDR &
E{E42% 564,318,000 7T (20154
45,823,000/ 7T) ° IREREHIR - BUB
BREENEREN T —ZEA -
mﬁﬂhlm%ﬁi fiki 5% & 0 B K B R
THR  BUBRERZEFE AL ARE
l%ﬁﬁk%%(rﬂt;&&n cEBER
B AEEDEBEEEUEEREE
MRS R B3k o At - EEE
/ﬁﬁﬁémEZHMEE;%EE%FWHF%JEH%
RRNEEREE -  AEBRFE
/*/F&H)Z/éﬁﬁwm?ﬂx&@E%HX%;EEW
ERNATBERSAME YN RS E
BRBRESENERME - EFRA
NEERHE S MEUHERZERN AT
BEITEKX °

FAR AKETEREZDURERR
B BREREMIRE - AEE W EH
SRS RERFNA R BE - HE
ERFRGIFRETT



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MR (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCE AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

23. B RBFEEEER - IRF
RITAERRIBHER

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Cash and bank balances B MIRTT 48R 1,120,224 899,170
Time deposits TE BATF K 51,607 71,954
1,171,831 971,124
Less: Restricted bank balances* B XBRFIERITAERRY = (6,974)
Time deposits pledged for TN RIRmMER 2
bills payable (note 24) FEHATFR (MisE24) (51,607) (64,980)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBECEMEEE 1,120,224 899,170
# The amounts were restricted solely for the purpose of the t BZEZEERRAYE(FEEE K

payment of refurbishment costs to a former landlord of a property
in which the Group has moved out.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$1,020,218,000 (2015: HK$834,802,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of within one year depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances,
restricted bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

B BT R L (T ERHIEEST

RBEMR AEBUAARBTA
REDBBEUNZRAEMAESEFE
HHE ZRGIRTE SN REA
15 5 4 1,020,218,000 7% 7t (2015 4F -
834,802,000%7T) - AR A B H
RMAEMEE - AW REFEK
e INE & B 5 (1) B2 A5 EE - = BE M AT [
EEMRE - ANEEEEE BT ITET
SNEFRTE Z IRITIFARBE LR ZINE -

R IRTT 2R E TIiRE B RITFER
MR E 2 F BN ERRAE - RF
AEEAEZREFLME - RAE
HERDE-FANEZHEFN
I 2 & 75 8 7 BT SRR SR BRERF 2. o
RITHER - XRBBITHBRRERTF
REAROL BENCEZEERY
ZERIT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
MR E (48)

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

24. BRERRAREE

R ERRZ BABRRARERBERER
BRAMOWWT :

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 3 months =EAR 1,114,518 1,173,579
3 to 12 months —ERAZE+ AN 75,035 107,137
1to 2 years —FE_FR 1,251 11,615
Over 2 years HBiE—F 8,416 7,765
1,199,220 1,300,096

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled in one to three months and one to six
months, respectively.

The accounts and bills payables included in a disposal group
classified as held for sale (note 11) of HK$115,759,000 are
aged within three months, HK$69,000 are aged within one
year and the remaining balance of HK$51,000 is aged within
two years.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to HK$51,607,000
(2015: HK$64,980,000).

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

ENEREZBES TR - —ROM
FHADRA—E=EAR—ZE<EA -

SIANDBARKERFENHEAS (M
11)#9115,759,000 % 7T ~ 69,000 7T
K IT 2 51,000 7 TT 45 &4 & 1~ BR 0 &2
EBEREDHIA=BARN - —FAK
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MITE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. sFERITERRHEMER
BORROWINGS
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRAR (%) B8R Figm ERAE(%) el TiEm

Current BE
Bank loans - secured BTEFR-EHE - - - 534 2016 167,108
Bank loans - unsecured RITES—EIER 1.25-1.50 Ondemand 820,000 155566 2016 1442971
REN
Other loans - unsecured EtEH -2 - - - 560 2016 37,571
820,000 1,647,650
Non-current E )
Bank loans - unsecured RITES—EH A 0.92-1.75 2018 800,000 0.92-2.12 2017 1,000,000
Other loans - unsecured Hip &5 — B R 4.28 2019 25,086 = =
825,086 1,000,000
1,645,086 2,647,650
Analysed into: P :
Bank loans repayable: RFRE 2R
B
Within one year R—ER 820,000 1,610,079
In the second year F-ER 800,000 1,000,000
1,620,000 2,610,079
Other loans repayable: R H
B
Within one year R—ER - 37,571
In the third year F=ER 25,086 =
25,086 37571
1,645,086 2,647,650

AR AT 201648 ;23.9E




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRIz HIAE (B)

31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

26.

China Foods Limited

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

25. SFERTERREMER (&)

At -

(a) At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s bank loans were (a)

secured by:

(i)  mortgages over certain of the Group’s buildings, which
had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately

HK$171,461,000; and

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s land use rights,
which had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately

HK$16,416,000.

(b) Except for other loans of HK$25,086,000 denominated in (b)
RMB, all other borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (2015: except for bank loans of HK$210,079,000 and
other loans of HK$53,088,000 denominated in RMB, all other
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars).

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

R2015F 12 A31 A - A& EFHZ 517
RITEATIA TEIREELR

(i) N E B E AR R
171,461,000% 7T 2 & T 1&
F R

(i) 7 EE F [ E AR R
16,416,000% v .2 & F 1 #
(ZfFHE -

B T 25,086,000 T2 At EFANA
REBEN - BAMHHEXEGLET
#BEL(2015% B 7210,079,000%
L2 #R1TE K 53,088,0008 T2 B
EHAA R BEN - EMTAE
KGN ETT A ENL) »

26. EEHIE
REERELHIAREREEL 2D
T
EERESE

Fair value adjustments arising from
investment properties, bearer plants
and acquisition of subsidiaries

REWMZE - EEEEYRWEBEHERR

EEZ A TFERHE
HK$'000
TET

At 1 January 2015 M2015F1A1R 63,873
Deferred tax credited to the statement of RAFEBEBRATTA

profit or loss during the year (restated) ZIBFERLIE (E5)) (1,762)
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive ~ AARNFEE E i 2 EUWA A

income during the year kR 2 EERTE 1,397
Exchange realignment (restated) i 5 3 (E=5) (4,248)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015412 A31HK

at 1 January 2016 (restated) 20161 A 1A (&%) 59,260
Disposal of subsidiaries (notes 11 and 31) HEMBAR (MFE11 % 31) (22,212)
Deferred tax credited to the statement of RAFEBRERRANTAZ

profit or loss during the year RAETIE (2,887)
Exchange realignment B 57 S B (1,326)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2016F 12 A31HZ

at 31 December 2016 RIET IR B (EERE 32,835
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
7&1

RERPAEE (48)

17 ¥

)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

26. EERE (&)

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Losses
available
Provsion for offsetting
against  Impairment  against future Unrealised ~ Deferred

inventories of receivables taxable profits

Accruals profits income

Others Total

TRREH
FRERH
FERE BUSEHE WRNEE ERER ABEE EENL f aif
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
T fEr  TEr  TEr Tt TR TEr TEn
At 1 January 2015 ROLELALA 2044 6428 56,200 59984 21,586 24366 13913 184921
Defered tax credied(charged) othe setement ~ AEEIRERAMEA/
of proft or loss during the year (1ks) ZBiERE (1,106) O @830 I3 (743)  (L4) (3700 18988
Exchange realignment Eii% 87 B RB) Ae @78 (1380 (801)  (108%8)
At31 December 2015 and ROBEI2A3NBR
at 1 January 2016 NI6F1A1R 8bl 5961 45153 93094 13305 21545 1272 192601
Defered tax crectedcharged) o the statement ~ WNAERBZEREMETA/
of proft or loss during te yeer (1ke) ZEiER R 9 (1,0683) () 6838 B019) (423 (1% 83
Exchange realignment EffE (62) (304) (2854) (6,121) (590) (1,230) (747 (11948)
(oross deferred tax assefs RAN6E12A31AZ
at 31 December 2016 EthadzEas 1,048 4554 42003 93811 46% 16022 10066 172200

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

RIEEINZA  BETEEHREEN
BEDRMBIRARIEN - BT
2/ AEENREEHIRGEHD

Group for the financial reporting purposes: W
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the IRA MR RIERA
consolidated statement of financial position B IAE EF5 154,964 182,837
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the IRA MR RIERA
consolidated statement of financial position ELEHEAETE (25,545) (34,200)
Net deferred tax liabilities included in the TR IEEE TR
discontinued operation (note 11) EEHBEAEFE(HE11) - (15,246)
Net deferred tax assets included in FADBEARARECHE
the disposal group classified as HAEREIERIEEEF5E
held for sale (note 11) (BfzE11) 9,946 -
139,365 133,391
pEERAERAE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BRIz HIAE (B)

31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$2,961,759,000 (2015: HK$3,124,278,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits to a
maximum period of five years of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in France
and Chile of HK$26,584,000 (2015: HK$30,499,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the company in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises which
are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprise (“CRE”). The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China or offshore
incorporated enterprises which are regarded as CRE in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the approvals received by the Company from the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
and most of its subsidiaries are regarded as CRE and relevant
enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to the
Company and these subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2013.
As a result, the Company and these subsidiaries are therefore
no longer liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by their subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of retained earnings generated from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2012. No deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries or associates established in Mainland China at 31
December 2016.
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26. EERE (&)

AEBREFEAREZHRIEB A
2961,759, 00078720154 + 3,124,278 000
BT A ELEEBZ ARIER KR
RiERF 7 B AR IE 8 R 2R FERR 71
SRl o NG B AN S IR B AR B F
2 T 8 /526,584,000 7T (2015 £ -
30,499,000 7T) * AIMHELABEZA
BI7E B 1& 1€ B P A K 85 R SR FERR Bt
wmh e ARZEEEREEENRER
REE— BRI 2B AR - mBETR
AEERT AN HEPZERE
M ke S BB MR R TR B EE o

RIBHECEMRSIE  ERBEKE
PRI Z NE D E AR INEMA L Z
PEEREXE(THEEREE]) RN
BrEET KRS - BRAKRE AN
10% Z L » UL TER 2008 F 1 A
1HERWEAR2007F 1283182
BRESZ A - B EZEZINE R
BEMERDEERI] A TR EERE
A RIFEMBEET TFE - Bk - A
5 B ZEARHE R P B KA ST 2 7% S MY
BRARSEBRINEMKIZZPEER
REN2008F 1 A1 BEEMERF S
IRIR B E A 2 FRHIT -

TR AR A B & P B B SR B 7 B A8 3 Y
HE3  ANRQE M E KIS M B A R
REAPBRERMLZE - RH20134F1
AlERERBEBLEMSHE -
it - AR T R EHTE A B A E AR
H pA e B K BE Ak S22 BT B A B B 2008
F£1A1BERE20124F 12 A31 BIEH
fE £ MR &R 2k B B8N TE
B o 2016512 8318 » WARFEA
& B 7 P B K BERK 3 2 T B A B ok B
BN R 2 AR EMN BB ERIELT
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to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA
Shares & 13
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: ETE
BRHEE0.10ETL
4,000,000,000 (2015: 4,000,000,000) L38A% 4,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (20154F : 4,000,000,000 f% ) 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREAR
2,797,223,396 (2015: 2,797,223,396) BREEQC.10E T2
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each L@ 2,797,223,396 %
(20154F : 2,797,223,396 fi% ) 279,722 279,722
Share options BB
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share NN E R ERT 8 M B R IR T B3 1T
options issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to R AR RE R IB S A B TS5 e R R M7 28 o
the financial statements.
28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. BRAESTE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 November
2006, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
Scheme (the “Option Scheme”). The Option Scheme became
effective on 21 November 2006 (the “Effective Date”), which
has a term of 10 years and expired on 20 November 2016.
All outstanding options granted under the Option Scheme will
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme. No further option will be granted

under the Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
motivate senior management personnel and key employees
of the Company, and provide eligible participants with an
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the issued
shares of the Company at the date of the adoption of the
Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options granted to each eligible participant
pursuant to the Option Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
relevant time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general

meeting.

RIEM 200611 A2l HiRiBry — I8
BRZER AR B GIEFHEM—IEE
PEAEET & ([EBRRAERT & ) - SR BBk HE
21200611 A21 B ([4zkBE )
A3 BABR104F » IWE 2016411 A
20 BfgEim o IRIFERERT BRI FT
BARITEEIE SRR ERETEN
BB ER B RAIITE - KRETE
R IE A 5T 2 R T AT BB AR AE -

RSB ARl - B8 KB
NESREREABRTIERS @ &
BERSEEZEEARABEAMBA
D SEAERSEERNRNG
ARAREBRERN SR AR A
RERBZEE -

BB BB AT R T M AITELZ
BRERNTTER A RE 2 AR A )
RE LREE - HERARTRRR
FERESTEIE R BT 2 10% °
PMER+ —{E A B - RIBBAERT
AR TEUABRBEE ZBIRER
BT 2 &= 8 B RAARERREIS R
RARBERITRDZ 1% ° EBBILLIR
BEME— SR N 2 BRERTE
BRERREERAGHA
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. EMr T8 ()

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of its
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the relevant time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. The exercise periods of the
share options granted commence subject to the applicable
vesting schedule and in any event end on a date which is not
later than seven years from the date of acceptance of the share
options, subject to early termination thereof as provided in the
Option Scheme.

The exercise price shall be determined by the board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
the offer; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; or (c) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 29 March 2011, a total of 30,880,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group. The exercise price of such options is HK$4.91. The
closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the
date of grant was HK$4.80 per share.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. lEMR T8 (&)

The following options were outstanding under the Option TR REEMKERTSIT 5B

Scheme during the year: RITIE -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
hnE BRI piliL::3 B R
FIGITEE BB THIRE L=

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
BTER T4 VARSTis T
At 1 January R1A1H 4910 25,080 4910 25,700
Lapsed during the year FRERH 4.910 (2,960) 4.910 (620)
At 31 December Mm12H31H 4.910 22,120 4910 25,080

RS HIR M AR TT 2 P AR i 2 171

The exercise price and exercise periods of the options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BRITEHT -
2016 2016 &
Number of options granted to
RitERES R
Directors Employees Total Vesting period Exercise price* Exercise period
= =] @5t BEH TRE* Cagid
'000 '000 '000 HK$ per share
T4 T T Bk
260 4,188 4,448 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2013 4910 29-3-2013 to £ 28-3-2018
260 4,188 4,448 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2014 4910 29-3-2014 to £ 28-3-2018
260 4,188 4,448 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2015 4910 29-3-2015 to £ 28-3-2018
260 4,188 4,448 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2016 4910 29-3-2016 to £ 28-3-2018
260 4,068 4,328 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2017 4910 29-3-2017 to £ 28-3-2018
1,300 20,820 22,120

pEERAERAE 201645
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

28. B Rt E ()

2015 20154
Number of options granted to
KtEREER

Directors Employees Total Vesting period Exercise price* Exercise period
= B8 CHI 58 TRE* 1R ER
'000 '000 '000 HK$ per share
T SNy T EURS
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2013 4910 29-3-2013 to & 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2014 4910 29-3-2014 to & 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2015 4910 29-3-2015 t0 & 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2016 4910 29-3-2016 to & 28-3-2018
508 4508 5,016 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2017 4910 29-3-2017 to & 28-3-2018

2,540 22,540 25,080

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated
as at the date of grant, using a binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the

model used:

Y WARFETTRK - BITATR LR
BRI - RIEIREZTT
EERTHE »

BAGERBEREZ A FEDRETHE
P E B A — B B E EBRAEL
st XEZEEHBIREZ GR R
Rt - TRINMZBRAZBARE -

Date of grant

Dividend yield (%)

arg=p

BB (%)

Expected volatility (%) TEHRR 1R (%)
Historical volatility (%) BEKE (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) R [ F A1) 2 (%)
Expected life of options (year) B ETERT SR A (4F)

Weighted average share price (HK$)

IR ER (B T)

29 March 2011
20113 A29H
2.109

33.716

33.716

2.40

7

4910

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The expected life of the options is determined with reference
to the vesting term and original contractual term of the Option
Scheme and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, a total of 22,120,000
(2015: 25,080,000) share options remained outstanding
under the Option Scheme. The options outstanding at 31
December 2016 had remaining contractual lives 1.25 years
(2015: 2.25 years). The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 22,120,000 (2015:
25,080,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately HK$2,212,000 (2015:
approximately HK$2,508,000) and additional share premium
of approximately HK$106,397,000 (2015: HK$120,635,000)
(before issue expenses).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

28. B Rt E ()

BREEFHM2 BRI
BEBREFEAENEAMEE - KR
PVREBRTEBRENR - BHK
8 BB R I8 Al R R KB E AR

A 8 34 5 5 4 PR 5 8651 A 2
TEMHEES -

REREEIR - BRI EIIE T MARTT
13 &) B8 B #E & $£22,120,00015 (2015
1 25,080,00017) ° A2016F12 A31
HHARITEREREFRISRE LR A
1.25%E (20154 : 2.254F) o e /R A TR
HRNEARER TE2EITERARITERD
BE RS S BN A R 3517 22,120,000
% (20154 : 25,080,0008% ) A5 & 38
% K ZESNIE AN 49 2,212,000 7 (2015
F: 492,508,000/87T) & 585N % 19
8 #9106,397,0007% T (20154 : #)
120,635,000/ 7T ) (FBR TR AT ©
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29. RESERVES 29. f#&

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 148 to
149 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to
use.

The Group’s capital reserve includes:

(1) the differences between the consideration and the book
value of the share of net assets acquired/disposed of
when there is a change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control;

(2) share of other comprehensive income of an associate;
and

(3) the contributed surplus which represents:

(i) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor under the group reorganisation
in 1991, less the goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries and associates which remains
eliminated against the capital reserve; and

(ii) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation as
completed during the year ended 31 December
2006.

On 15 April 2008, the Board passed a resolution in relation
to a share premium cancellation pursuant to Section 46 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which was approved
by shareholders on a special resolution on 19 May 2008, and
was later approved by the registrar of companies of Bermuda
on 3 June 2008. Accordingly, the share premium accounting
for approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was transferred to the
contributed surplus during the year ended 31 December 2008.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

AREEERBEEE HESER
BB 255 E 1485 149 HBHEHE
2 EARARBEED -

REHING ERRZBRRED KA
B ARRETHBEARERERRR
BEnm 2 aNBrcBRERER
Rz FEEEA -

REBZEAFEEE

(1) ERARKREZEHENOERLT @ fid
MR AR LIRS
PR HEEEFE I RER
PG FTIEE BB EFEZ IR
EEZERE

(2) RiE—THBERRE M2 EK
AN R

(3) BAZER - BN :

(i)  M1991F K E B FTUSE
Bin 2 BEBBARBRELL
& 1T 2 B0 BB <« 8038 -
AR B AN A R
Z W BB B 1 B M B R R )
FELZEE R

(i MRIBEEZE20065F12 A31H
LFFE TER R B A T U IE AR
0 BEBBANR AL
BT EEBER -

MN20084E4 A 15H  EE€@BA—18
EHABREBAREELIBIERNTEFL6
EIRESHI D R B 2 RER - ARRE
ZE N 200845 A 19 AiE B RA S
R AR AL A - WE &R 2008 &
6 A3HEAREARGEMELE - &
It - BE20084 12 A31 HEEARKRHD
i B ER4Y 3,660,432,000 % 7T B BB E
NEER o



30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Details of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a subsidiary of
the Group, which has material non-controlling interests are set

out below:

BTSSR oL ()

31 December 2016 2016412 31 H

30. EEEAFEREZ ZFEE

o) PN

AEBEREGEAGFERERZMBL
BIFPIER] O AR AR QR Z 1B
;T

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Percentage of equity interest held by IR ERATSA
non-controlling interests ZIRER DL 35% 35%
Profit for the year allocated to IR R G
non-controlling interests ZARFEE G A 264,486 272,789
Dividends attributable to non-controlling FRtE AT O A] 4Rt
interests of COFCO Coca-Cola AR AR ER
Beverages Limited (528 59,553 839,564
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ~ 3F{RRRAEZS A 3R E H Hf
interests at the reporting date 2 BET 4R 1,817,132 1,696,147

pEERAERAE 201645
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30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage Limited.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

30. EEEAFEREZ ZFEE
B R~ =) ()

TRIRFIER O AT LR B R QA
MEEMBERHE - IRESER
HBRERI A RELHER -

eliminations:
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Revenue A 11,290,514 12,334,997
Total expenses Y (10,712,119) (11,732,707)
Profit for the year FEm A 578,395 602,290
Total comprehensive income for the year — FE 2 EUW A5 390,143 387,655
Current assets mENEE 3,279,058 2,407,283
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,048,202 6,021,756
Current liabilities mEaE (2,897,395) (3,501,546)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (239,067) (67,285)
Net cash flows from operating activities LRETREEE VRS RFE 969,303 441,962
Net cash flows from/(used in) EEBESL(FTR) 2
investing activities IR FRE (582,713) 1,445,586
Net cash flows used in ”EEEATH
financing activities IR HEE (470,063) (2,226,520)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR& MIREEEEE R
HEE (83,473) (338,972)

China Foods Limited
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Financial Statements (cont[nueg)
SRR MIE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

31. HEKMBAR

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizF FET FBT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFENOT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 319,067 =
Prepaid land premiums BN s 14,419 =
Prepayments for items of BEME - BER&E
property plant and equipment HE 2B KE 31 =
Inventories FE 101,613 =
Accounts and bills receivables RUBR AN 218 4,503 =
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - e REM
other receivables &S] 462,610 =
Prepaid tax TSR 83 =
Restricted bank balances SRR FIERTTAE AR 6,694 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEHER 13,232 =
Accounts and bills payables FERRR R ER (11,095) -
Other payables and accruals BN FRIERERAE (119,894) =
Interest-bearing bank and FTRERTTER
other borrowings REMER (378,108) -
Due to a non-controlling KRB RARZ
shareholder of subsidiaries AR AR BR R IE (321,437) =
Tax payable FER TR 122 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEE & (7,333) -
Non-controlling interests I i e 162,629 =
247,136 -
Exchange fluctuation reserve NP B BN (25,499) -
221,637 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AWz 5 118,774 =
340,411 -
Satisfied by: AT S ER
Cash He - =
Repayment of amounts due from FEWHIE A F—&A]
a former non-controlling FEERR AR R
shareholder of subsidiaries Z[BEFIR 340,411 =
340,411 -
MEEMARAT 20165 251}
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

31. HEMB AR (&)
ERHENBARNZASRASSE

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: HE mEFELINAOT
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Cash consideration ReERE - =
Cash and bank balances disposed of HE 2R MIRTTHER (13,232) -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ~BREHEHBARZIRE X
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries REEEIER LT (13,232) -
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. REEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any REEHAR - AEEIW FEEMEKRL
significant contingent liabilities. NEME -

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one or six years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

33. REMENRH

(@) ERHBEA
AR BRI E TR O Z AR
@ (M 15) - EiHE 2
Blm—E TS — R
B2 GRIRERP % (%
© - WATH A BB IR S TR
ARHES -

RBERR - AEERBEEEM
PRI Z TR R & A FE
ZARRKEESL@ERNT :

2016 2015

2016 & 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 6,161 6,393
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF

inclusive (BiEEEMTE) 18,856 21,524

After five years hEE - 4,175

25,017 32,092
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 33. KEMAHORH(RA)

(b) As lessee (b) ERFEEAA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and some AEERELERNLHMERE
grape farms under operating lease arrangements. Leases TRAEMERBEER %=
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to MERNEHE 2 BBRBR—FE
forty years. PU+FREE o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RERE R - AERERE A
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEEHNEN 2 R RFEHES
operating leases falling due as follows: HAZELDT ¢
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Within one year —FR 60,163 91,973
In the second to fifth years, F_EZFERF
inclusive (BiEEEME) 13,631 59,430
After five years AF& 4,089 4753
77,883 156,156
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EAREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note BRI _ESCHIRE 33(b) 5l 2 45 8 FH 49
33(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments EON - REERBEHARBUTER
at the end of the reporting period: HE
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI4BEARRTR
Property, plant and equipment: Y - R MR 297,986 343,702

R K ARAT 20165 8 253 R
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AEANLERF
(@) BrATEsmR B ) IR E 2 X
P REHRI REBRAFEE
NEREATETZERARZ N

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during

the year:

T

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries: EERZRXMBARIZR 5 :
Sales of goods* HEEMm™* 296,483 285,201
Purchases of goods* BEER™ 12,188,242 10,892,498
Service fee income* RS & U A * 54,063 75,864
Rental expenses* et~ 16,400 18,025
Service fee expenses* RIGE S H * 13,079 35,513
Transactions with the ultimate ik S g Sl
holding company: RNAEIZRS :
Sales of goods* HEEm* 22 20
Rental expenses* ezt 31,213 32,447
Service fee income* RIS E WA * = 920
Service fee expenses* RS E S * 3,959 8,394
Transactions with associates: B ENRIZR S
Sales of goods SHEEm 21 38
Purchases of goods* BEER™ 1,854,481 1,970,059
Service fee income RS & WA 70,962 66,511
Transactions with related companies*: EEFERGIZX5* :
Purchases of goods* BEER™ 174,375 50,447

Y REHEALRGRE LT
AIHE » BE T HKEZ &

* These related party transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions discloseable in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

* BRERERBRAEE R
RABAFEZ RA] °

& Related companies are companies under significant
influence by the Group’s ultimate holding company.

ZERSHIEBRER2ETER
B IE MR S R HETT o

These transactions were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

]
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other transactions with related parties and a non-

controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiaries

(i) Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered
into between the Group and COFCO, the Group
was granted the exclusive rights to use certain
trademarks for its kitchen food business. The
licensing fees for the current year and the prior year
were waived by COFCO.

(ii) During the year, the Group disposed a subsidiary,
Prized Developments Limited, to a subsidiary of
the Company’s ultimate holding company. Further
details of the transaction are included in note 11(1)
to the financial statements.

(ii) During the year, the Group disposed subsidiaries,
COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd. and Shandong
COFCO Junding Wines Spirits Co., Ltd., to their
non-controlling shareholder. Further details of the
transaction are included in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Commitments with related parties

Pursuant to certain lease agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO Plaza Development
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of COFCO, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments amounted to approximately
HK$13,822,000 (2015: HK$30,723,000) as at 31
December 2016.

Outstanding balances with related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s
subsidiaries

Except for (1) amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries of the Group of
HK$25,086,000 (2015: Nil) which are unsecured,
interest-bearing at the rate of 4.3% and are not repayable
within one year (2015: Nil); and (2) amounts due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$12,789,000 (2015:
HK$13,655,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year, the remaining balances with
the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, associates,
related companies and non-controlling shareholders of
the Group’s subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In addition, there
were amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries of the Group of HK$37,571,000, which
were unsecured, interest-bearing at the rate of 5.6% per
annum and not repayable within one year and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of the
Group of HK$55,778,000, which are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year as at 31 December
2015.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BTSSR oL ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

35. BEALRS (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEEEALTR -BXEENE

DREWEERRR 2EMRZ

(i) REAKBEEFTIEEET L
ZE TR AREE
RBHFTAE - I RNEERE
RoEGERETAER M
REEFBEFEXFTE
ERETEREERS -

(i) FA - AEERAR B
MR ARA—HEHBA
AL E— B 2R Prized
Developments Limited ° 3
WA NE el
11(1) °

(i) FA  AEBERKSEZIEE
BRBREEMB AR TEE
TBEEARARMIIRSE
BIEBEEBRAR - RHZ
EACE ST EEEEL I

ERRRE A & 2GR
RIBAEEE P BEE M B
RAPRESERAMRAARL
METHE RS - K2016F12A
31 BARKEAR K&/ NEENKE
49 /13,822,000 7% 7T (20154 :
30,723,000 7T) °

BEALRAEENEQTFE
BERIRR 2 KRBT

BROR—BAEBH B R A
IE +% % A% 3R B $X 25,086,000
JC(20154F : £ ) BEIRIT - 1%
AZEFBRBAN—FRNEE
(20154 @ £ ) Q)R IERR
A 7 F0I8 12,789,0007% 7T (2015
£ : 13,655,000 7T ) A& & K
e RERBER—FREE &
EEWB AR ZIERAT - AR
MEBAR - BtE AR -~ BEEADR
NOEE IR AR SR B H s 4 e 1 £
I 8 BEBETEEN - It
AN - 2015512 A31 B R AREE
WEBRAR—ZIEERBEREEE A
37,571,000 JL R X A EK R -
REFES 6B B R TNER—F
NEERRAEBHBAR—%
FEFE[% IE BE £ B8 A& 55,778,000 75
TCR KA - Tt EWAR
—FREE -

pEERAERAE 201645
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of

()

China Foods Limited

35. EALRS (B)
(e) AEEEEEEAR ZHM

the Group

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Short term employee benefits REEERET 21,292 19,083
Equity-settled share option expense IR ZAN4E BB IRRERT L 265 603
Pension scheme contributions RIRFTEIE R 1,196 1,085

Total compensation paid to key NTEEEEAR
management personnel ) FEE 22,753 20,771

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Transactions and balances with other state-owned
enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases of
raw materials, property, plant and equipment and other
assets, receiving of services, and making deposits and
borrowings with certain State-owned Enterprises, other
than COFCO and its affiliates, at terms comparable to
those with non-state-owned enterprises. The directors
consider that transactions with those State-owned
Enterprises were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and that dealings of
the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected
by the fact that the Group and those State-owned
Enterprises are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also established pricing
policies for products and services, and such policies do
not depend on whether or not the customers are State-
owned Enterprises.

Annual Report 2016

EERTBALMESHE—THITH

REATE AR M FES -
(f) HEEMEAELENRS RER

AREEEZHNREBERTTRDE
RERTEBFBEE RS K
W BEAESEARE R
12 B A Sl Y 1 5 (AR [
BRE]) RERAEHEERL
BELXETHNREZXSRER
TRNHEER  BEERME
WE BEMKBREMEE
BRI - WA AR S K ELE
BN RIASN B R 7 SRS
R BERZHGREIFRB D
ERHIEFHEU - EFRG - &
HZEEBERENR S BEAEE
BEERBERETNES B
7 5= 98 22 R A r R KA A AR
KEANBEEENRHIEE
XEEARTELE - AKEE
1) T 7 M AR A5 B SE (BERER - 1
BURRI THUAREFPEER
BARE -



36. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

36. FEHENTZHE
AEBEEEHZRFMR2016F 12 A31

December 2016 are as follows: == ZZDT
Percentage
Place of of ownership
Issued incorporation/ interest
ordinary/registered registration attributable Principal
Name share capital and business to the Group activities
AEE
RTLER ML ElhEaE
a7 AR A ElgSEd-iik s BHEADL TEXH
CBPC Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 16.3 Procurement of
10,0005 a5 raw materials
for Coca-Cola
bottlers in
Mainland China
EREAER
G S
SRR AL
Coca-Cola Bottlers HK$2,093,950,029 Hong Kong 13.7 Investment
Manufacturing 2,093,950,029 % ¢ a5 holding
Holdings Limited REEKR

In the opinion of the board, the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over the above companies as the boards
of these companies comprise representatives of the Group,
who participate in the policy-making processes. Accordingly,
they are accounted for as associates of the Group.

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.

EZeRn ARARFARIZERS
EPHZIK%IZK%% 2 BRI E B
2 AREEEMAESE ER A RITE
E 2 .lﬂ: HEREFEAKHE

P N

LA EFr BB 2 AR R AR BIREE R
ﬁ o

pEERAERAE 201645
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

37. BERIB s 2 EMTA
RBEMR - SERSRMTANER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT :
2016 2016 F
Financial assets TREE
Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
AHtHEZ BRER
SREE FEUS IR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FER FExT
Available-for-sale investments ARNERE 12,975 = 12,975
Accounts and bills receivables  FEUWIRR N E1E = 1,319,672 1,319,672
Financial assets included in T ATERFRIE
prepayments, deposits and e REMFEN
other receivables HIBZEMEE - 864,272 864,272
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEL NGV - 321,552 321,552
Due from the immediate
holding company HEER AR - 162 162
Due from the ultimate
holding company S ¢S NI UNE - 13,037 13,037
Due from non-controlling hy=PNSIE S
shareholders of subsidiaries A& R R 3K - 946 946
Due from associates /N NG - 26,297 26,297
Pledged deposits TR - 51,607 51,607
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EIER - 1,120,224 1,120,224
12,975 3,717,769 3,730,744
China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2016



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MITE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. kERE eI A ()
(continued)
2016 2016 £
Financial liabilities o N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
278 5]
RABE 2
SRAas
HK$’000
FET
Accounts and bills payables FERTBR R R B4 1,199,220
Financial liabilities included in STAE M FEAS FOE K FE AT
other payables and accruals BE EREE 1,870,771
Due to fellow subsidiaries YNGELNEVNGIE e 1,885,271
Due to the ultimate holding company REHIER R RIFRIA 23,989
Due to related companies U ENEIE R 6,232
Due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries U EUNEIE R 2 E 64,612
Due to associates NN EE] 124,753
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st BRI TE X R Hith B2 1,645,086
6,819,934

RS ARAT 20104 250
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 2016412 31 B

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. BB 8 2R T A ()

2015 20154
Financial assets SREE
Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
AEHE 2 BR K
SREE FEURSRIE HRET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT FBT
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 209,637 = 209,637
Accounts and bills receivables  JEUERF N ZiE = 1,376,410 1,376,410
Financial assets included in FTATEFIA -
prepayments, deposits and e Rk HALREU
other receivables FIBZ&mEE — 693,672 693,672
Due from fellow subsidiaries BEIENGIVE — 351,977 351,977
Due from the immediate
holding company BHEERATRK - 162 162
Due from the ultimate
holding company BRI A B R R - 14,157 14,157
Due from non-controlling N ENGIE 203 s
shareholders of subsidiaries %R R 5% - 15,394 15,394
Due from associates NN — 10,496 10,496
Restricted bank balances R EIERTTAEER — 6,974 6,974
Pledged deposits R — 64,980 64,980
Cash and cash equivalents RekIBeEEAR = 899,170 899,170
209,637 3,433,392 3,643,029
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BTSSR M oL ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

37. ZERE s 2T A ()

2015 20154
Financial liabilities TRIAE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FMEZ
ERBRE
HK$'000
FHT
Accounts and bills payables ERERRREE 1,300,096

Financial liabilities included in ST AE At R - 5008 K e &
other payables and accruals BEZEHARE 2,104,704
Due to fellow subsidiaries Kﬁ?ﬁﬁ% A R)FIR 1,270,244
Due to the ultimate holding company REEAER A RIFRIA 25,467
Due to related companies REAE R RIGRIA 9,817
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries /& /&2 73H EAR AR BR SRIE 553,991
Due to associates REE AT 176,405
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERIT &ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁm 2,647,650
8,088,374

38. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, other than the available-for-
sale investments, of which the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s financial instruments approximated to
their fair values largely due to the short term maturities of the
instruments or they bearing floating interest rates if they have
long term maturities.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

38. EWTAZAVE

RBER - RAHHERERSE
MAFEGHEEN  EFRSH
RNFENEAISEAEI  AEEDE
TAZEEEREQAFERS =2
EEECE%Z?IEEUH;EHHW?L‘JZ 2 H8
RRRERFHNEAE

TREENRAGBZA i{ELAEZIE
BRER 577 (MIFREHBRIEE)
AR5 T ZRAIA %i%ﬁ)\ﬂ%"

03 Fﬂ>
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRHIAE ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B EMERE B FERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and bank
balances and time deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on minimising potential adverse effects of these risks,
with material impact, on the Group’s financial performance.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term and short term
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.
The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the long
term and short term interest-bearing bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in Hong Kong dollar interest rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings):

AEBEz T2 T ABERRT
ERREMER  URBEE RIBITLHE
BEREMER  ZFEMTATER
MIIRAREZXBERES - KK
EEEETHMERMEERAE  fl
R R R R BRI (B R A E X H
mES) -

AAEESBMTAREEZ TER
RMXERE - SMNERR  EERR
ERBETRER AREEERRE
EBISPREERIZERAR (B
SECUBRABREATE) 2B
THEE EFQERTRBEEZ
FRERZBRE - B -

A2 LB
AEBASNTISH X &S 2 E R E
2 RAKEIZF IR R E 2 K
KB BRITEER - AEEZ Y
FREHIE BIRTTREZBERM R RE
TR IRR M T 25 KR -

TREREMRA EMA] 2 ERGREF
PEZER T AREEGRB NG N (Fi8
ERIERZFE) BT AR
EEEH I HREE

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax

2B EH RRBEAT R R

(TB)  #in CR2)

HK$'000

TFHET
2016 2016 &F

Hong Kong dollar BIT 100 (16,200)

Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 16,200
2015 20154

Hong Kong dollar BIT 100 (24,000)

Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 24,000
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and Hong
Kong with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group has not used
any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit before tax in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MITE (8)

31 December 2016 2016412 A31H

39. M EMERE B S REEEK (&)

SN RLRR
AEBTERTREARERETBE:
MAEEZBAMOELREE - BF
RRXZBAUEBBIT - ARBMET
FHE o AE B W EN B ITAITEE M
SR EL AT 8 2 SN R o

TRIR EEMEBEETENER
T ANER [ 2 B AT 5 A B BE R Al B
B2 F) (RSB LI R & B K

significant exposure at the end of the reporting period with all BEARER) ZBOEENE
other variables held constant:
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
change in before tax
exchange rate BRF% Al s A
FEREE M OED)
HK$'000
% FAT
2016 2016 F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BBTHARE
against Renminbi iAI] (5) (62,941)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BBTHARE
against Renminbi FE 5 62,941
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against BIBTLAETT
the United States dollar B71E (5) 3,598
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BIBITLAETT
against the United States dollar FE 5 (3,598)
2015 20154
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BBTHAREK
against Renminbi [irAI] (5) (72,602)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BBTHAREK
against Renminbi FE 5 72,602
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BBTLAETT
against the United States dollar ihZ =] (5) 1,654
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BIBITLAETT
against the United States dollar FE 5 (1,654)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit before tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

EREINZDMERBIAE B Z2TNHE
EBAECAKESZER Z AR F
X ERE AN WHEHE W
RS RRERBER/ET -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B A ERE B ERBER (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amount of the accounts receivable represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policies are to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and to have available funding through bank and
other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

FERR

AEEZFEERRBIY &S - BUER
RZEEEDASEESARE SR
BEZRNEERR - AEEDHE
R HRAEBZEEEELZE
FE&E&-

AEEEMEREENEERRRS
RBHUFTNEN  RARREES
RizETENRAEEE -

RBES AR
A B 7 O T R 2 B RR
SEEEE - WEBRTRAMBE
MEGELENEEEE SRS -

R|ERKR - AEEEREHORITER
NRzeaEBIMERNT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2016 2016 F
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
7EA 1£R 125% ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TET

Accounts and bills payables N ES 263,647 931,598 3,975 1,199,220
Financial liabilities included in ST AR FRIE R

other payables and accruals EETEE eRmARE 1,870,771 = - 1,870,771
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNEEY NG 1,885,271 = - 1,885,271
Due to the ultimate holding

company RIS N RIFIE 11,200 12,789 - 23,989
Due to related companies REENRIZA 6,232 - - 6,232
Due to non-controlling UENGIE

shareholders of subsidiaries [k SR IE 64,612 = = 64,612
Due to associates RSN RIZOR 124,753 = - 124,753
Interest-bearing bank and STRRITERR

other borrowings HMER 821,860 12,583 827,886 1,662,329

5,048,346 956,970 831,861 6,837,177
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AND POLICIES (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR ()

31 December 2016 2016412 A31 H

39. M EMERE B S REEEK (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) nBESREE (&)
2015 20154
Less than 1tob
On demand 1 year years Total
B@BA 1R 1Z5% BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TET TET
Accounts and bills payables LRk ES 100,115 1,195,953 4,028 1,300,096
Financial liabiliies included in ~ sFAEMENFER
other payables and accruals EtaEzemas 2,104,704 = = 2,104,704
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNEES = UNGIEE 1,270,244 = = 1,270,244
Due to the ultimate holding
company RE AR N RIFR0R 11,812 13,655 = 25,467
Due to related companies RESENRIFOAR 9,817 = - 9,817
Due to non-controlling U IEUNGE =2
shareholders of subsidiaries PR R IE 498,213 55,778 = 553,991
Due to associates REEE AR ZUR 176,405 = = 176,405
Interest-bearing bank and SERITERK
other borrowings HE®R - 1,684,159 1,005,789 2,689,948
4,171,310 2,949,545 1,009,817 8,130,672
hERRARATE 201645
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2016 20164 12 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for capital management
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015.

B AR EE R ERBUR ()

BEXRER
AEEEREANHERRERER
SENBELLERN RERFBRNE
AT DXEEEBEREEA
BREE -

AEEeRELEREELCEREE
AREBILHEEHTARE - BB
BEREE  AEENREABRIHT
A% SR AR BFREE ~ RIBE AN TR K
BEITHARD - B E20165 12 A31H K&
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2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

(Restated)

FET THET

(&%)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =tE$R1TE R M H i E 1,645,086 2,647,650

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB MRS EEER (1,120,224) (899,170)

Net borrowing position SFEEL 524,862 1,748,480
Net assets attributable to owners [SYNEIEZZ=PN

of the parent EIEFEE 5,461,081 5,492,761

Net gearing ratio FEBLL R 9.6% 31.8%

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. EHIEREE

On 28 March 2017, in view of consolidating the Group’s
business focus and enhancing shareholders’ return, the board
of directors decided that the sale and distribution by the Group
of certain consumer products including fruit juice beverages,
instant noodles, peanuts and others collectively categorised
as the “others” segment (not categorised under the beverage
segment, wine segment and kitchen food segment) in
operating segment information of financial statements would
be progressively terminated in 2017.

41. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 41.

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of revised HKFRSs during the year, the
accounting treatment, and presentation of certain items and
balances In the financial statements have been revised to
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior
year adjustments have been made, and certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment, and
a third statement of financial position as at 1 January 2015 has
been presented.
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

42. NPT 2 B FR R

BRAAR ARG RRO I AN K
MEREIIT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZKE 4,284,188 4,624,536
Total non-current assets FERFEERE 4,284,188 4,624,536
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments AN S 1,362 10,861
Due from subsidiaries NP EENEIYNE 4,466,617 4,603,231
Due from the immediate holding company — EZ A FI/R 165 165
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 28,548 30,794
Total current assets MENEERAE 4,496,692 4,645,051
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals B ENRIE KR ERTBE 6,096 3,116
Due to subsidiaries U GIENGIESE 522,980 442 977
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 820,000 1,400,000
Tax payable FERIFLIR 44,103 11,695
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 1,393,179 1,857,788
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 3,103,513 2,787,263
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERAER
LIABILITIES REAE 7,387,701 7,411,799
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITER 800,000 1,000,000
Total non-current liabilities EREaEaE 800,000 1,000,000
Net assets BEFE 6,587,701 6,411,799
EQUITY JiE:N
Issued capital BEITIAR 279,722 279,722
Reserves (=] 6,307,979 6,132,077
Total equity R A 4818 6,587,701 6,411,799

hEERAERAE 20164
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. KD T2 MR R R (F)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Mt -
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: NATREBEELNT -
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
REES  ERERE AR R A b

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TR TR &R TR

Balance at 1 January 2015 W2015F 1 A1 2 & 37,367 29,807 4,759,898 245,014 5,072,086
Equity-settled share option RAEH B

arrangements T = 2,469 = = 2,469
Transfer of share option HRERIES Mk

reserve upon the forfeiture il

expiry of share options BRERE - (1,202 - 1,202 -
Profit for the year FEEH = = - 1057522 1057522
At 31 December 2015 2015 12A31 R

and 1 January 2016 R2016F1A18 37,367 31,074 4,759,898 1,303,738 6,132,077
Equity-settled share option RAEE R

arrangements T - (2,821) - - (2,821)
Transfer of share option NG HLE

reserve upon the forfeiture ol il

expiry of share aptions RRERE - (4,475) = 4475 =
Profit for the year FERF = = = 240,272 240,272
Final 2015 dividends 015 FRERE = = = (27977) (27977)
Interim 2016 dividends 016 FHHRE - - - (33572) (33572)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A 311 37,367 23,778 4,759,898 1,486,936 6,307,979

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. BIERER 2 E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for S RAN2017F3 A8 HEEE=S
issue by the board on 28 March 2017. HefE R AR RETI)E o
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Five-Year Financial Summary
EENBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- REEBEAETBFEFECEFEREE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, BEEFERERME RSB E TR
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial RIS EHR - WKEY RESE
statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set out ks BEERNAHNTX

below:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BIEFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 F 20156 20144 20134 20124
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THL THT THL SR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5) (E3) (E5)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE WA 27,985,881 27842170 26238668 25783418 30,152,731
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERER/ (F1B) 610,696 668,118 390,159 (182,880) 844,009
Finance costs BB (35,750) (64,822) (69,844) (98,723) (62,222)
Share of profits of associates JE(hEEE DBl R 73,010 71,872 93,816 113,917 67,320
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BHADER/(F8) 647,956 675,168 414,131 (167,686) 849,107
Income tax expense FriEfiAx (226,085) (280,110) (223,829) (311,129) (191,133)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BEREER

FROM CONTINUING ZEERT

OPERATIONS (B58) 421,871 395,058 190,302 (478 815) 657,974
DISCONTINUED OPERATION Pl S
Profit/(Loss) for the year from a IR ER

discontinued operation FEHT/(B8) 321,964 (98,523) (163,095) (227,682) (65,816)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERFN/(FR) 743,835 296,535 27,207 (706,497) 592,158
Attributable to: FEfE 7 -

Owners of the parent [STNGIEZZPN 499,735 54,633 (224.688) (889,634) 381,931

Non-controlling interests RS 244,100 241902 251,895 183,137 210,227

743,835 296,535 27,207 (706,497) 592,158

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8RR

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  FEiZpRiE#
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 16,115,268 16622670 18246694 20973517 20,212,181
TOTAL LIABILITIES waE (8,823,148)  (9570471) (10,124,147) (12,775,292) (11,514,195)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiRptiEs (1,831,039) (1559438) (2,234,898)  (2,052,250)  (1,892,851)

5,461,081 5,492,761 5,887,649 6,145,975 6,805,135
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Jianping
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Managing Director)

Ms. Luan Xiuju

Mr. Wu Fei

Mr. Zhou Chenguang (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yelong
Ms. Xiao Jianping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
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Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis
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Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Ma Jianping
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Mr. Ma Jianping (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis
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Mr. Jiang Guojin (Committee Chairman)
Ms. Luan Xiuju

Mr. Wu Fei

Mr. Zhou Chenguang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
B % B

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS
Tuesday, 28 March 2017

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting: Friday, 26 May 2017 to Thursday, 1 June
2017 (both days inclusive)

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final

dividend: Thursday, 15 June 2017 to Friday, 16 June 2017 (both
days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Thursday, 1 June 2017

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: HK1.2 cents per share

Proposed final dividend: HK1.2 cents per share (Payable on or after
Friday, 7 July 2017)
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